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The franchises described in this disclosure document are for the establishment and operation of family-
oriented steakhouse and buffet style restaurants.   

The total investment necessary to begin operation of a restaurant ranges from $3,534,450 to $6,828,230 
for the less expensive restaurant design, and from $4,860,450 to $9,213,230 for the more expensive 
restaurant design. This amount includes $51,400 to $828,000 that must or may be paid to the franchisor 
or its affiliates for the less expensive restaurant design and $51,400 to $931,000 that must or may be paid 
to the franchisor or its affiliates for the more expensive restaurant design. 

We grant development rights to developers which enable them to open a specified number of restaurants 
within designated development areas under separate franchise agreements. The development fee is 
$20,000 for each restaurant to be established, and is credited against the initial franchise fee for each 
restaurant. In addition to the development fee, the total investment necessary to acquire development 
rights ranges from $100 to $16,000, none of which is payable to the franchisor or its affiliates. 

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of your franchise agreement and other 
information in plain English. Read this disclosure document and all accompanying agreements carefully. 
You must receive this disclosure document at least 14 calendar-days before you sign a binding agreement 
with, or make any payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise 
sale. Note, however, that no governmental agency has verified the information contained in this 
document.   
 
You may wish to receive your disclosure document in another format that is more convenient for you. To 
discuss the availability of disclosures in different formats, you may contact Nicki Miles at Golden Corral 
Franchising Systems, Inc., 5400 Trinity Road, Suite 309, Raleigh, North Carolina 27607, (919) 781-9310. 
 
The terms of your contract will govern your franchise relationship. Don’t rely on the disclosure document 
alone to understand your contract. Read all of your contract carefully. Show your contract and this 
disclosure document to an advisor, like a lawyer or an accountant. 
 
Buying a franchise is a complex investment. The information in this disclosure document can help you 
make up your mind. More information on franchising, such as “A Consumer’s Guide to Buying a Franchise¸” 
which can help you understand how to use this disclosure document, is available from the Federal Trade 
Commission. You can contact the FTC at 1-877-FTC-HELP or by writing to the FTC at 600 Pennsylvania 
Avenue, NW, Washington, D.C. 20580. You can also visit the FTC’s home page at www.ftc.gov for additional 
information. Call your state agency or visit your public library for other sources of information on 
franchising. 
 
There may also be laws on franchising in your state. Ask your state agencies about them. 
 
The issuance date of this Franchise Disclosure Document is April 25, 2023. 
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How to Use This Franchise Disclosure Document 

Here are some questions you may be asking about buying a franchise and tips on 
how to find more information: 
 

QUESTION WHERE TO FIND INFORMATION 
How much can I earn? Item 19 may give you information about outlet 

sales, costs, profits or losses. You should also 
try to obtain this information from others, like 
current and former franchisees. You can find 
their names and contact information in Item 20 
or Exhibits K and L. 

How much will I need to 
invest? 

Items 5 and 6 list fees you will be paying to 
the franchisor or at the franchisor’s direction. 
Item 7 lists the initial investment to open. 
Item 8 describes the suppliers you must use. 

Does the franchisor have 
the financial ability to 
provide support to my 
business? 

Item 21 or Exhibit P includes financial 
statements. Review these statements 
carefully. 

Is the franchise system 
stable, growing, or 
shrinking? 

Item 20 summarizes the recent history of the 
number of company-owned and franchised 
outlets. 

Will my business be the 
only Golden Corral 
business in my area? 

Item 12 and the “territory” provisions in the 
franchise agreement describe whether the 
franchisor and other franchisees can compete 
with you. 

Does the franchisor have 
a troubled legal history? 

Items 3 and 4 tell you whether the franchisor 
or its management have been involved in 
material litigation or bankruptcy proceedings. 

What’s it like to be a Golden 
Corral franchisee? 

Item 20 or Exhibits K and L list current and 
former franchisees. You can contact them to 
ask about their experiences. 

What else should I know? These questions are only a few things you 
should look for. Review all 23 Items and all 
Exhibits in this disclosure document to better 
understand this franchise opportunity. See the 
table of contents. 
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What You Need To Know About Franchising Generally 
 

Continuing responsibility to pay fees. You may have to pay royalties and other fees 
even if you are losing money. 
 
Business model can change. The franchise agreement may allow the franchisor to 
change its manuals and business model without your consent. These changes may 
require you to make additional investments in your franchise business or may harm 
your franchise business. 
 
Supplier restrictions. You may have to buy or lease items from the franchisor or a 
limited group of suppliers the franchisor designates. These items may be more 
expensive than similar items you could buy on your own. 
 
Operating restrictions. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a 
similar business during the term of the franchise. There are usually other restrictions. 
Some examples may include controlling your location, your access to customers, what 
you sell, how you market, and your hours of operation. 
 
Competition from franchisor. Even if the franchise agreement grants you a 
territory, the franchisor may have the right to compete with you in your territory. 
 
Renewal. Your franchise agreement may not permit you to renew. Even if it does, you 
may have to sign a new agreement with different terms and conditions in order to 
continue to operate your franchise business. 
 
When your franchise ends. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from 
operating a similar business after your franchise ends even if you still have 
obligations to your landlord or other creditors. 
 

Some States Require Registration 
 

Your state may have a franchise law, or other law, that requires franchisors to 
register before offering or selling franchises in the state. Registration does not mean 
that the state recommends the franchise or has verified the information in this 
document. To find out if your state has a registration requirement, or to contact your 
state, use the agency information in Exhibit A. 
 

Your state also may have laws that require special disclosures or amendments 
be made to your franchise agreement. If so, you should check the State Specific 
Addenda. See the Table of Contents for the location of the State Specific Addenda. 
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Special Risks to Consider About This Franchise 
 

Certain states require that the following risk(s) be highlighted: 
 
1. Out-of-State Dispute Resolution. The franchise agreement and development 
agreement require you to resolve disputes with us by litigation only in the judicial 
district in which we have our principal place of business at the time the action is 
commenced, which is currently North Carolina. Out-of-state litigation may force you 
to accept a less favorable settlement for disputes. It may also cost you more to sue us 
in North Carolina than in your own state.  

Certain states may require other risks to be highlighted. Check the “State 
Specific Addenda” pages for your state in Exhibit M. 
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ITEM 1 
THE FRANCHISOR AND ANY PARENTS, PREDECESSORS AND AFFILIATES 

The Franchisor 

Golden Corral Franchising Systems, Inc. (“Golden Corral” or “we”) was incorporated 
in Delaware on December 6, 1985. Our principal place of business is 5400 Trinity Road, Suite 
309, Raleigh, North Carolina. We do business under the names “Golden Corral,” “Golden 
Corral Buffet & Grill,” “Golden Corral Family Steakhouse Restaurant,” “Golden Corral Steaks, 
Buffet & Bakery,” and “GC Grill House,” and under no other names. Golden Corral has offered 
franchises similar to those offered in this disclosure document since April 1986, but has 
never owned or operated any similar company-owned businesses and has never operated 
or sold franchises in any other line of business. 

Our Parent, Predecessor and Affiliates 

We are a wholly-owned subsidiary of Golden Corral Corporation (“GCC”), our parent; 
in turn, GCC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Investors Management Corporation (“IMC”). 
GCC has operated company-owned Golden Corral restaurants throughout the United States 
since 1973 and, as of our fiscal year end on December 28, 2022, owned and/or operated 4 
such restaurants in the United States. GCC has never granted franchises in this or any other 
line of business. GCC, through its Coastal Equipment Company division (“Coastal”), also sells 
restaurant equipment, fixtures, furnishings, and signs to our franchisees. GCC also provides 
computer hardware and software support to our franchisees. 

GCC is located at the same address as our principal place of business. IMC conducts 
business at 801 N. West Street, Raleigh, North Carolina 27603. Coastal conducts business at 
130 Coastal Lane, Jacksonville, North Carolina 28546.  
 

A list of state administrators appears in Exhibit A; our agents for service of process 
are listed in Exhibit B. 

The Franchise Offered 

Golden Corral offers franchises to an individual, group of individuals, corporation, 
limited liability company, or partnership (“you”) for a family-oriented buffet/grill style 
restaurant which features a wide variety of beef, pork, seafood, chicken, cold salads, 
vegetables, desserts at our in-store display bakery, and other food and beverage items for 
lunch, dinner, weekend breakfast (daily breakfast offered in some restaurants), and snacks.  
These restaurants must be operated in strict conformance with Golden Corral’s standards 
and operations procedures (“System”) and be identified by those trade names, service 
marks, trademarks, logos, emblems, and indicia of origin (collectively, “Proprietary 
Marks”) licensed by us to you. Restaurants operated under the System and Proprietary 
Marks are referred to as “Restaurants.” To obtain a franchise, you must sign the franchise 
agreement in the form attached in Exhibit D to this disclosure document (“Franchise 
Agreement”). 
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Restaurants usually are situated in a free-standing building, with accompanying 
ample parking, and may be located in a rural or urban setting, a suburban location near a 
shopping mall, or in a strip shopping center. Two Restaurant building designs are available 
to you as of the date of this disclosure document: 

 GC-11S GC-11M 

Typical land 
requirement 

60,000 - 
90,000 sq. ft. 

78,000 - 
140,000 sq. ft. 

Typical  
building size:* 

7,571 - 
8,404 sq. ft. 

10,300 - 
11,098 sq. ft. 

     *Building size may vary due to Golden Corral approved modifications. 

In some instances, Golden Corral also may offer you the right to establish more than 
one Restaurant within a specified territory. To obtain these development rights, you must 
sign an Area Development Agreement (“Development Agreement”). Under the 
Development Agreement, each time you open a Restaurant, you will sign the then-current 
form of Franchise Agreement, whose terms may differ from those offered at this time.  In 
some geographic areas, the only franchises granted by us are under Development 
Agreements. Our current form of Development Agreement is in Exhibit C to this disclosure 
document. 

Golden Corral also offers franchises for existing Restaurants currently owned by GCC. 
In such circumstances, you will acquire the Restaurant assets from GCC as well as a franchise 
from us. In this disclosure document, we describe these Restaurants as “Conversion 
Restaurants.” 

As of the date of this disclosure document, we also have programs to encourage 
Golden Corral franchisees to: (1) pursue possible acquisition of sites vacated or to be vacated 
by our competitors; and (2) pursue possible acquisition of sites vacated in 2020 or 2021 by 
GCC and/or by other Golden Corral franchisees due to compliance with related federal, state 
and local government emergency declarations and mandates in response to the outbreak of 
novel coronavirus disease (“COVID-19”) that commenced in March 2020. Please see Item 5 
for further information.  

We are also currently offering a financial incentive for those who sign a Development 
Agreement or site-specific Franchise Agreement by July 15, 2023 (or by a later date, if we 
extend the program) and open one or more Restaurants within 24 months after signing the 
agreement (the “New Development Incentive Program”). The New Development Incentive 
is also available to existing franchisees who have a Development Agreement and open 
Restaurants within 24 months after the launch of the program. Please see Items 8 and 11 for 
details. The New Development Incentive Program is not available for re-openings of existing 
Restaurants that were previously closed (due to COVID-19 or otherwise), relocations of 
existing Restaurants on the same or adjacent parcel of land, or for any Golden Corral-
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approved ghost kitchen operation. Incentive programs cannot be combined and may have 
additional requirements. 

General Market for the Services/Competition 

The market for family-oriented buffet restaurants is well established and is 
characterized by intense competition. Your Restaurant will compete with other franchised 
restaurants, independently owned restaurants, restaurants of well-known national chains, 
and restaurants which are a part of local and regional chains. Your Restaurant will 
experience the most direct competition from local, moderately-priced steakhouses and 
buffet/cafeteria style restaurants and steakhouse chains. Your Restaurant also will compete 
with fast food and family restaurants that feature items other than steak. Your ability to 
compete will depend upon factors such as the geographic area, location, and local economic 
conditions as well as the skill of your management team and employees. You also may 
compete with Restaurants owned and operated by GCC, as well as franchise restaurant 
concepts operated or licensed by affiliates of IMC.  

Government Regulations 

You must comply with all local, state, and federal laws that apply to your Restaurant 
operations. Golden Corral is not aware of any Federal laws or regulations applicable to our 
Restaurants that would not apply to restaurant businesses generally, but you should consult 
with your attorney on this subject, especially with respect to state and local laws and 
ordinances that may affect your Restaurant operations at your particular location.  

We currently permit, but do not require, serving alcohol in your Restaurant. If you 
elect to serve alcohol, or if we make it a requirement, you must obtain a liquor license and 
any other comparable permits, licenses and authorizations from the government bodies 
having jurisdiction (federal, state and local) or otherwise necessary for such use of the 
premises (the “Liquor License”). You must keep your Liquor License in full force and effect 
at all times that you serve alcoholic beverages on the premises of the Restaurant. 

 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank] 
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ITEM 2 
BUSINESS EXPERIENCE  

President and Chief Executive Officer, Director:  Michael Lance Trenary_______________________ 

Mr. Trenary has been President and Chief Executive Officer of Golden Corral and GCC since 
January 2015. He has been a Director of Golden Corral since January 2013. He has been 
associated with Golden Corral affiliates since January 1986. 

Chief Development Officer:  David M. Conklin  

Mr. Conklin has been Chief Development Officer of Golden Corral and GCC since December 
2021.  He was Senior Vice President of Development from March 2014 to November 2021.   

Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary:  R. Chappell Phillips  

Mr. Phillips has been Executive Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary of Golden 
Corral and GCC since December 2021.  He was Senior Vice President, General Counsel and 
Secretary from August 2017 to November 2021, and he was Assistant General Counsel and 
Assistant Secretary from May 2013 to July 2017.   

Chief Financial Officer:  James D. Laverty__________________ ________________________________________ 

Mr. Laverty has been Chief Financial Officer since December 2021.  He was Senior Vice 
President of Finance and Administration of Golden Corral and GCC from May 2014 to 
November 2021.  He has been associated with Golden Corral affiliates since March 1981. 

Chief Marketing Officer:  Paul A. (“Skip”) Hanke__________________ ________________________________ 

Mr. Hanke has been Chief Marketing Officer of Golden Corral and GCC since October 2021.  
He was Executive Director of Brand Marketing of Applebee’s Restaurants from August 2017 
to January 2020, and he was their Director of Brand Marketing/Media Director from 
December 2014 to July 2017. 

Chief People Officer:  Rachelle (“Shelley”) Wolford__________________  

Ms. Wolford has been Chief People Officer of Golden Corral and GCC since December 2021.  
She was Senior Vice President of Strategy and Communication from March 2018 to 
November 2021.  She was Vice President of National Marketing and Media for Golden Corral 
from February 2012 to February 2018. 

Division President:  David P. Webb  

Mr. Webb has been Division President since March 2020 and was President of Division 2 of 
Golden Corral from January 2017 to March 2020.  He was President of Division 1 of Golden 
Corral and GCC from August 2014 to January 2017. He has been associated with Golden 
Corral affiliates since June 2001. 
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Division President:  Kim L. Davis____________________________________________________________________ 

Mr. Davis has been Division President since March 2020 and was President of Division 4 of 
Golden Corral and GCC from August 2014 to March 2020.  

Division President:  Rolando “Roy” Hinojosa  

Mr. Hinojosa has been Division President since August 2014. He has been associated with 
Golden Corral affiliates since April 2000. 

  

ITEM 3 
LITIGATION 

BANKUNITED, NA v. GC OF VINELAND, LLC, WILLIAM SCISM and KAREN SCISM, and 
GC OF VINELAND, LLC, WILLIAM SCISM and KAREN SCISM (Third-Party Plaintiffs) v. 
GOLDEN CORRAL CORPORATION, GOLDEN CORRAL FRANCHISING SYSTEMS, INC. and 
FIRST CHATAM BANK (Third-Party Defendants), U.S. District Court for the District of New 
Jersey, Civil Action No.: 2:18-CV-12879 (ES/CLW), third-party complaint originally filed July 
16, 2018. In this action, a Golden Corral franchisee and its owners were sued by a lender 
after defaulting on a note. The franchisee and its owners (collectively, “third-party plaintiffs” 
or the “Scisms”) then asserted several third-party claims against Golden Corral Corporation 
and Golden Corral Franchising Systems, Inc. (collectively, “Golden Corral”).  Most third-party 
claims were dismissed by way of the Court’s Order dated December 4, 2019.  The third-party 
plaintiffs’ breach of contract and New Jersey Franchise Practices Act claims remain, which 
Golden Corral has answered and intends to defend vigorously. 

   
Golden Corral filed a separate lawsuit against the Scisms seeking payment of 

franchise fees of over $1 million dollars arising out of the Scisms’ abandonment of the 
franchise. This lawsuit was filed in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of 
North Carolina and styled Golden Corral Franchising Systems, Inc. v. GC of Vineland, LLC, 
William J. Scism, and Karen L. Scism, Civil Action No. 5:19-cv-255 (BO). The action was later 
transferred and consolidated into the BankUnited matter.  The Scisms’ motion to dismiss 
Golden Corral’s affirmative claims was denied on September 30, 2021. Golden Corral intends 
to press its claim for damages as well as defend the remaining third-party claims.  
 
 Other than the above action, no litigation is required to be disclosed in this Item. 
 
     

ITEM 4 
BANKRUPTCY 

No bankruptcy information is required to be disclosed in this Item.  
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ITEM 5 
INITIAL FEES 

Development Fee 

Your Development Agreement will specify the number and type of Restaurants you 
must open during the mutually agreed-upon time frame. The development fee is $20,000 for 
each Restaurant to be developed. The development fee is due when you sign the 
Development Agreement and is non-refundable. However, if you are in full compliance with 
your development obligations under your Development Agreement, Golden Corral will 
credit $20,000 towards the initial franchise fee payable under each Franchise Agreement 
executed under the Development Agreement. 

Franchise Fee 

A. Franchise Agreements Signed Under a Development Agreement 

If you have a Development Agreement, when you sign the Franchise Agreement for 
each Restaurant, you will pay our then-current initial franchise fee. As of the date of this 
disclosure document, our initial franchise fee is $50,000. A portion of your development fee 
will be credited against your initial franchise fee. Depending on the form of Development 
Agreement you signed, you will pay us either $25,000 or $15,000 when you sign the 
Franchise Agreement, with the remaining balance of the franchise fee payable 14 days before 
the opening of the Restaurant. The initial franchise fee is non-refundable. 

B. Franchise Agreements Signed Without a Development Agreement 

The initial franchise fee, regardless of building design, is $50,000, payable as follows:  
$20,000 when you sign the Franchise Agreement, $15,000 when we notify you of site 
approval for the Restaurant, and $15,000 at least 14 days before opening the Restaurant. The 
initial franchise fee is non-refundable. In 2022, all franchisees who signed a Franchise 
Agreement without a Development Agreement paid a uniform initial franchise fee of 
$50,000, except for a number of franchisees who obtained franchises for shorter initial 
term(s) and thus paid prorated initial franchise fees. 

Incentive Programs 

As noted in Item 1, we have a program to encourage Golden Corral franchisees to 
pursue possible acquisition of sites vacated or to be vacated by competitors.  If you notify us 
that that a vacated competitor site is available to you, we will determine whether the market 
is available for a Golden Corral franchise and, if so, we will make a preliminary assessment 
of whether the site meets our development criteria and how it would affect existing Golden 
Corral restaurants and planned development. If (a) the former competitor location passes 
our preliminary assessment; (b) you sign a site-specific Franchise Agreement for that 
location; and (c) you open a Golden Corral restaurant in the location within 12 months of 
signing the Franchise Agreement, then you will pay us a non-standard, non-refundable 
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franchise fee of $10,000.  If Items (a) – (c) are not satisfied, then the franchise fee will be 
$30,000. 

Also, we have a temporary program to encourage Golden Corral franchisees to pursue 
possible acquisition of sites vacated in 2020 and 2021 by other Golden Corral franchisees 
due to compliance with related federal, state and local government emergency declarations 
and mandates in response to the outbreak of COVID-19 that commenced in March 2020. If 
you notify us that that a vacated site is available to you, we will determine whether the 
market is available for a Golden Corral franchise. If (a) the former location passes our 
preliminary assessment; (b) you sign a site-specific Franchise Agreement for that location; 
and (c) you open a Golden Corral restaurant in the location within 90 days of signing the 
Franchise Agreement, then you will pay us a non-standard, non-refundable franchise fee in 
which no franchise fee is charged to you relative to the first two years of the initial franchise 
term granted to you.   

In addition, we have an incentive program to encourage expansion by franchisees that 
have owned and operated a Golden Corral restaurant for at least one year as of December 
31, 2022. Eligible franchisees who sign a new area development agreement by April 15, 2024 
will pay an initial franchise fee of $15,000. This non-refundable fee represents the entire 
franchise fee if the approved Restaurant is under construction within 18 months of executing 
the area development agreement. If the Restaurant is not under construction within eighteen 
(18) months, the franchise fee would be the standard amount of $50,000. 

Finally, our New Development Incentive Program offers financial incentives for the 
development of new Restaurants under Development Agreements currently in effect and for 
new Development Agreements and site-specific Franchise Agreements signed by July 15, 
2023 (unless we elect to extend the deadline). The incentives under this program do not 
affect the initial franchise fee, however; please see Items 8 and 11 for details. The New 
Development Incentive Program is not available for re-openings of existing Restaurants that 
were previously closed (due to COVID-19 or otherwise), relocations of existing Restaurants 
on the same or adjacent parcel of land, or for any Golden Corral-approved ghost kitchen 
operation. 

Incentive programs cannot be combined, and additional restrictions may apply. We 
may discontinue particular incentive programs at any time without notice. 

VetFran Program 

Golden Corral is a member of the International Franchise Association (IFA) and 
participates in IFA’s VetFran Program, which provides special financial incentives to 
honorably discharged military veterans or wounded warriors. Our program applies to any 
veteran or returning service member who qualifies and signs either a Development 
Agreement or Franchise Agreement to develop a Restaurant. We offer a 50% discount 
(“Veteran Discount”) of the initial fee to individuals who qualify under VetFran.  If the new 
franchisee is a corporation, limited liability company, or other entity, then the Veteran 
Discount applies if one or more eligible Veterans own more than 50% of the new franchisee. 



8 
Golden Corral 2023 FDD 

* * * 

In addition to the franchise fee and development fee, you must pay us $1,400 to 
$1,600 before opening for a license to use the required back-office software for the 
Restaurant. If you use Coastal for equipment, signs and other build-out items for the 
Restaurant, the estimated amounts you will pay Coastal are $700,000 to $925,000 for the 
GC-11S building design and $1,100,000 to $1,400,000 for the GC-11M building design. 

To the extent you use sources other than Coastal for equipment, signs and other build-
out items, the amounts shown above will be reduced by the amount you pay to the other 
sources. 

Payments made to us or an affiliate for these items are not refundable. The 
refundability of payments you make to others will depend on the arrangement you make 
with the supplier you choose. We do not collect any monies on behalf of third parties.  

 
ITEM 6 

OTHER FEES 

Type of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks 

Royalty 4% of Gross Sales Weekly by electronic 
funds transfer 

See Note 2 

Opening Advertising $10,000 - $15,000 Before, at, and during 
the first 90 days after 
opening 

Please refer to Item 11 
for details 

Advertising 
Contributions 

2% - 6% of Gross 
Sales – Currently 
2.4% 

Weekly by electronic 
funds transfer 

Please refer to Item 11 
for details 

Required Software Microsoft Office 365 
- $60 

CheckPoint email 
security package - 
$15 

CBS Northstar recipe 
viewer system - $35 

Plus applicable taxes 

Quarterly You are required to 
use these programs 
and to access them 
through GCC’s 
enterprise license for 
each program. The 
charges are subject to 
increase over time. 
Please refer to Item 11 
for details 
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Type of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks 

Transfer Franchisees pay 5% 
of the then-current 
initial franchise fee.  
Developers pay the 
greater of 5% of the 
aggregate 
development fee 
paid by the selling 
developer or our 
costs to review the 
proposed transfer 

Before transfer We do not impose a fee 
for transfers from a 
partnership or sole 
proprietorship to a 
corporation in which 
the former partners or 
sole proprietors own 
all of the outstanding 
stock 

Securities Offering The greater of our 
reasonable costs and 
expenses to review 
the securities 
offering or $10,000 

30 days before the 
start date of the 
offering 

You must obtain our 
prior approval for all 
securities offerings 

Renewal Then-current initial 
franchise fee 
applicable to the 
Restaurant design 
being renewed 
divided by number of 
years in the initial 
term under the then-
current franchise 
agreement 
multiplied by five 

When signing new 
Franchise Agreement 

Developers have no 
renewal rights 

Audit by Franchisor Cost of Audit As incurred See Note 3 

Late Fee for Overdue 
Payments 

$75.00 As incurred  

Interest on Overdue 
Payments 

Lesser of 1.5% per 
month (calculated 
daily) or maximum 
legal rate 

As incurred Interest payments on 
overdue amounts are 
in addition to other 
remedies available to 
Golden Corral 

Additional Training Training materials 
are currently $205 

Before training See Note 4 

Site Selection Reasonable expenses 
(including travel, 
meals, and lodging) 

As incurred See Note 5 
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Type of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks 

Costs and Attorneys’ 
Fees 

Will vary under 
circumstances 

As incurred  You must reimburse us 
for our expenses in 
enforcing or 
terminating the 
Franchise Agreement 

Indemnification Will vary under 
circumstances 

As incurred You must reimburse us 
and certain entities 
and individuals 
associated with us for 
any and all costs and 
expenses associated 
with, as well as any 
payments made, in 
defending against any 
claims arising from 
your actions 

Relocation Fee The then current 
initial franchise fee 
less unamortized 
portion of previously 
paid initial franchise 
fee 

Before Relocation Golden Corral has the 
option to charge this 
fee, but may not 
always do so.  Please 
refer to Item 12 for 
details 

Approval of New 
Products or Suppliers 

Will vary depending 
on circumstances 

When request is made You must reimburse us 
for our reasonable 
costs in reviewing and 
evaluating your 
request.  The fee for 
reviewing suppliers of 
electronic point-of-sale 
equipment will range 
between $4,000 - 
$10,000 
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Type of Fee Amount Due Date Remarks 

Operation and 
Maintenance of 
Computer System 

Varies depending on 
agreements selected.  
Please refer to Item 
11 under the 
subheading 
“Computer System” 
for information 
about estimated 
costs 

Varies  Our affiliate, GCC, 
offers several 
computer software 
and hardware 
maintenance and 
support agreements.  
You are not required 
to enter into any of 
these agreements with 
GCC.  Please refer to 
Item 11, “Computer 
System,” for further 
details 
 

Future Royalty and 
Advertising Fees 

Greater of $50,000 or 
the sum of the 
royalty fees and 
advertising 
marketing fees you 
were obligated to 
pay for the last 12 
months of operation 

On demand Payable only if we 
terminate the 
Franchise Agreement 
based on your uncured 
default. 

    
 
Notes: 
 
1. Unless otherwise noted, all fees are non-refundable, payable to us or our affiliate, and 

uniformly imposed on all franchisees receiving this offering. Unless otherwise noted, 
the fees and expenses are for franchisees, and not developers. 

 
2. “Gross Sales” are defined as all receipts from the sale of food, beverages, and 

merchandise or services in or from the Restaurant and all other income of every kind 
and nature related to the Restaurant and/or generated or initiated from the 
Restaurant premises, (including off-premises catering, vending machine, electronic 
or other game machine receipts and employee meals at discounted sales prices) 
whether for cash or credit, and regardless of collection in the case of credit.  Gross 
Sales do not include refunds or any sales taxes or other taxes collected by you for 
transmittal to the appropriate taxing authorities. 

 
3 This expense is payable if an audit reveals an understatement of 3% or more of the 

amount due Golden Corral. We have not as yet audited any franchisee and, thus, have 
no prior experience on which to make an estimate.  Costs could range from $2,000 to 
$20,000. 
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4. This fee applies to initial training offered to any additional manager after we have 
trained the number of initial managers required for each Restaurant. We also have 
the right to require your managers to attend additional training programs as well as 
to charge a fee for these programs. Please see Item 11 for details about this expense. 

 
5. Golden Corral will not charge for the first two site evaluations per Restaurant. We 

have not as yet charged a fee for evaluating a site and, thus, have no prior experience 
on which to make an estimate. Your fee will reimburse us for our reasonable 
expenses, and we will not make any profit. We would not anticipate that the cost 
would exceed $10,000. 
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Notes: 
 
This chart represents our estimate of your initial investment for one Restaurant. These costs 
may vary, and the total cost may affect Golden Corral’s willingness to approve a site or 
construction of a particular building design. This chart and the notes below assume that the 
Restaurant location is not a former competitor location under the incentive program 
described in Item 5. The costs of reimaging a former competitor location are likely to differ 
from the typical range of buildout costs for a Restaurant described in this Item. 
 
1/ Please refer to Item 5 for details. This figure assumes that no incentive program or 

VetFran discount applies. 
 
2/ The figures in the table are based on the estimated cost of your purchase of improved 

or unimproved land and estimated required site preparation costs, excluding 
depreciable leasehold improvements. Special site restaurant costs may be higher.  
These payments will be paid in the manner as arranged with the seller. Golden Corral 
expects you to obtain topographical and boundary surveys, obtain environmental and 
geotechnical soil evaluations, and purchase or lease the land.  Golden Corral estimates 
that the square foot cost of unimproved land for a free-standing building will range 
between approximately $13.38 and $22.89 for GC-11S Restaurants and between 
$18.35 and $27.53 for GC-11M Restaurants, depending upon the location, market 
conditions, easements, and the degree of site preparation required before 
construction. If you lease the Restaurant premises, these costs will be reflected in the 
rent. 

 
3/ Before beginning operation, you must construct, decorate, and equip the Restaurant 

to conform to Golden Corral’s standards and specifications. Costs will vary depending 
on whether the property is purchased or leased. Costs also will vary depending on 
whether you purchase unimproved land and construct the premises or convert a pre-
existing building. Expenses are likely to be paid in progress payments before opening 
the Restaurant. The figures in the table are based on the estimated costs for site 
preparation and constructing the premises on unimproved land that has been 
purchased; however, in certain situations the costs may exceed those reflected in the 
chart. Typically, site preparation includes demolition, if needed, clearing, grading, soil 
tests, paving, walks and pads, utilities, storm drainage, lighting, retaining walls, 
fences, landscaping and irrigation. Some jurisdictions may require off-site 
improvements such as acceleration and deceleration lanes, turn lanes, traffic signals, 
and other work and some sites may require environmental clean-up costs if there has 
been soil contamination or similar events; these requirements could add 
substantially to the costs outlined in the chart. Building construction typically 
includes structure and roofs, exterior finishes, partitions and ceilings, doors and 
hardware, heating and cooling systems, plumbing and fixtures, electrical and lighting, 
painting and wall covering, floor covering (excluding carpet), fire prevention and 
alarm systems. You will incur architectural and engineering fees in constructing or 
converting the premises, or making leasehold improvements. You must employ a 
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qualified, reputable, properly-licensed general contractor who is not disapproved by 
us to supervise construction and/or reimaging of the Restaurant and completion of 
all improvements, and you must submit a statement identifying the general 
contractor and all subcontractors and consultants providing services in connection 
with construction and/or reimaging. Construction costs may be higher if you request 
non-required additions or modifications that are then approved by Golden Corral. If 
you lease the Restaurant premises, Golden Corral estimates the annual rental of the 
required space will be 9% to 12% of what would have been the total cost of 
acquisition and construction of the property. Some jurisdictions assess high impact 
or similar type fees, and require significant off-site work as part of the zoning, 
permitting or other approval process. These higher than usual fees/costs could be as 
high as $700,000 or more, and will make, in certain instances, the construction/site 
preparation costs exceed the estimates appearing in the table.  

 
4/ You must have one free-standing sign. This estimate includes both exterior and 

interior signage, as well as the cost of installation, freight, foundation, and internal 
wiring. You will need to arrange the payment method and schedule of payments with 
the vendor. 

 
5/ You will need tables, chairs, and booths for seating approximately 278 to 300 

customers for a GC-11S Restaurant and 380 to 400 customers for a GC-11M 
Restaurant. You also must purchase the manager’s office furniture, computer 
equipment, kitchen equipment, small wares/utensils, grills, exhaust equipment with 
a fire suppression system, refrigeration, fire prevention equipment, and equipment 
for food bars. You must submit a list identifying the vendor(s) which are to supply 
furniture, fixtures and equipment to the Restaurant. You will need to arrange the 
payment method and schedule with the vendors. 

 
6/ Please see Items 6 and 11 for details about opening expenses for marketing. You and 

the respective vendors and employees must arrange the payment method and 
schedule. For Restaurants that qualify for our New Development Incentive Program, 
you may be eligible for a marketing credit for your new Restaurant opening; please 
see Item 11. 

 
7/ Please see Item 12 for details about these expenses, which must be paid in lump sums 

as incurred. Golden Corral estimates that you will employ between 20 to 24 A-Team 
members for on-site assistance. A-Team members are employees who have 
completed a 3-phase Crew Trainer/A-Team Certification program through Golden 
Corral’s eLearning Center and have met certain performance requirements. The 
estimate in the table includes the costs of employing these individuals and the 
transportation, food, lodging, and other expenses associated with their status as your 
employees, as described in Item 11. If this is your first Restaurant, your General 
Manager and associate manager-kitchen may be required to also attend Practice 
Management training, in which event your initial training costs could increase by as 
much as $34,000. Please refer to Item 11, “Training,” for details about the Practice 
Management training program. For Restaurants that qualify for our New 
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Development Incentive Program, you may be eligible for reimbursement of certain 
training costs. 

 
8/ Inventory includes food items such as fresh meats, produce, sauces and condiments, 

and other supplies, such as paper goods and cleaning supplies. The variation in the 
estimate is due, in part, to the requirements of each individual franchisee based on 
the franchisee’s estimate of projected sales, as affected by both customer seating 
capacity and variations in relative cost of certain menu items. You will need to arrange 
the method of payment with the vendors. 

 
9/ The estimates are your costs for the minimum insurance required by the Franchise 

Agreement for a three-month period. The estimates for insurance will vary depending 
on rates and practices applicable to a particular locality. Payments to insurance 
agents and insurers are as arranged. 

 
10/ Franchisees will need additional funds to support on-going expenses, such as payroll, 

supplies, rent, utilities, and business licenses, to the extent that these costs are not 
covered by Gross Sales. The estimate does not include the cost of obtaining an 
alcoholic beverage license, if necessary. You must pay these expenses as arranged 
with vendors, creditors, and government agencies as they are incurred. Additional 
fund needs will vary widely among businesses. A new business may, initially, result 
in a negative cash flow. The amount shown is the minimum recommended at the 
opening of the Restaurant in order to cover on-going expenses in excess of Gross Sales 
for the first 3 months of Restaurant operations. There is no assurance that you will 
not need additional funds. We have relied on the previous experience of our existing 
franchises in estimating your additional fund needs. 

 
 
B. Area Developers 
 

 
 
Type of Expenditure 

 
 
Amount 

 
Method of 
Payment 

 
 
When Due 

To Whom 
Payment 
is to be 
made 

Development Fee 1/ $20,000 for each 
restaurant to be 
developed 

Lump sum When the Area 
Development 
Agreement is 
signed 

Us 

Site Selection $100 to $15,000 As incurred As agreed Varies 

Professional Fees 2/ $0 to $1,000 As agreed  Various 

TOTAL  3/ $20,100 to $36,000    
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Notes: 
 
(1) See Item 5.  
 
(2) You may incur additional legal, accounting and other fees for reviewing the 

Development Agreement.  
 
(3) For each Restaurant you develop under the Development Agreement, you will also 

incur the expenses in the first table in this Item 7. 
 

*        *        * 

All payments to us in this Item are nonrefundable. Refundability of your payments to 
others will depend on the arrangements you make with them. 
 
 We do not provide financing to franchisees in connection with their initial investment. 
The availability and terms of financing from third parties will depend upon such factors as 
your creditworthiness, collateral that you make available, and the policies of local lending 
institutions.  
 

ITEM 8 
RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES 

We do not require you to purchase any goods or services from Golden Corral or from 
suppliers designated by Golden Corral, except for (1) one or more independent foodservice 
distributors we designate as the primary distributor of food and supplies to Golden Corral 
restaurants; and (2) processing of Golden Corral Gift Card transactions, for which you must 
use RBS WorldPay. In general, you must purchase goods and services as well as fixtures, 
furnishings, signs, supplies, and equipment (collectively, “Items”) from suppliers who have 
been approved by Golden Corral and/or from among items which conform to Golden Corral’s 
specifications. We do not provide material benefits to any franchisee based on a franchisee’s 
use of approved suppliers. Except as described below, neither we nor our affiliates receive 
any payments or other benefits from suppliers we approve. 

You must purchase all Items used in the operation of the Restaurant solely from 
suppliers (such as distributors, manufacturers, wholesalers, or brokers) who demonstrate, 
to the continuing reasonable satisfaction of Golden Corral, the ability to meet Golden Corral’s 
then-current standards and specifications for such items; who possess adequate quality 
controls and capacities to supply and service your needs promptly, reliably, and at 
competitive prices; and who we have approved in writing and not later disapproved.  Golden 
Corral will designate or approve suppliers after testing their products and evaluating their 
quality control and service systems. Suppliers of computer hardware and/or software also 
must be able to demonstrate to our satisfaction that their products are compatible with our 
current computer system. Please refer to Item 11 under the heading “Computer System” for 
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further details about our computer system and its current hardware and software 
requirements.   

All approval criteria are available to franchisees. Approval for new or alternative 
products takes approximately 3 to 4 months; approval for new suppliers generally takes 
from 2 weeks to 4 months. Products which involve a significant deviation from the System 
will take longer to approve. Approval of products or suppliers may be revoked if the product 
or suppliers fail to meet Golden Corral’s standards of quality, specifications, or service; if 
Golden Corral no longer promotes the product; or if the supplier no longer meets Golden 
Corral’s minimum criteria for approval. If you desire to purchase an Item from an 
unapproved source, you must submit to Golden Corral a written request for approval, or 
must request the supplier itself to do so. Golden Corral will have the right to require that its 
representatives be permitted to inspect the supplier’s facilities and that samples be 
delivered either to Golden Corral or to an independent laboratory designated by Golden 
Corral for testing. You or the supplier must pay a charge not to exceed the reasonable cost of 
the inspection and the actual cost of the test. If your request involves a new menu offering, 
then you also must reimburse us for our costs in obtaining detailed nutritional information 
about the menu offering.  

We may, in our sole discretion, establish one or more strategic alliances or preferred 
vendor programs with one or more suppliers who are willing to supply all or some 
Restaurants with some or all of the products and/or services that Restaurants are authorized 
to offer to customers. Any programs that we might establish may limit and/or require you to 
use suppliers other than those that you would otherwise use, and/or limit the number of 
approved suppliers with whom you may do business. As of the date of this disclosure 
document, we have not established any such programs. 

We have approved one source of the hardware and software required for each 
Restaurant (see Item 11 under “Electronic Point-of-Sale Equipment”). If you would like to 
use a non-approved vendor for the required hardware and/or software, the software must 
meet all our specifications, and the vendor must be able to install the equipment and train 
GCC and your personnel in its operation. The vendor also must be able to support the 
hardware and software on an on-going basis, and must have at least 3 recent consecutive 
years of success in servicing restaurant clients. You must submit a request for approval of 
the vendor at least 120 days before intended installation, along with a check for $4,000.  The 
total cost of the approval process is estimated to run between $4,000 and $10,000, 
depending upon the length of time needed to complete our testing and evaluation.  You are 
responsible for paying testing costs. You must obtain Golden Corral’s approval for any 
hardware or software at least 90 days before the date on which you need to install the 
equipment. The proposed vendor must send a complete test system to us, or our designee, 
for testing and evaluation. 

Golden Corral is not an approved supplier for any Item. Our parent, GCC, is an 
approved supplier for a variety of restaurant equipment, fixtures, furnishings, signs, and 
computer hardware and software services. For those Items you are purchasing from GCC’s 
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Coastal division, we expect that you will sign Coastal’s Equipment Purchase and Sale 
Agreement (Exhibit H) during the construction phase of your Restaurant. 

In fiscal year ending December 28, 2022, franchisees purchased $7,739,298 of 
Restaurant equipment and other Items from GCC (including Coastal), which sum represents 
6.2% of GCC’s total revenues of $125,458,406 for the 2022 fiscal year, based on GCC’s 
consolidated financial statements and internal accounting records. GCC also is an approved 
supplier of ancillary services pertaining to computer hardware and software, and received 
revenues of $1,141,035, or 0.9% of its total revenues, from franchisee payments for these 
services in the fiscal year ending December 28, 2022. Finally, GCC is the lessor or sub-lessor 
of certain franchised Restaurant premises. In the fiscal year ending December 28, 2022, GCC 
received $3,141,969 in rent payments by franchisees; these payments are not included in 
revenue on GCC’s income statement because they are recognized as a reduction of costs for 
accounting purposes.   

We also have approved suppliers that are not affiliated with us for various goods and 
services. None of our officers owns an interest in any unaffiliated companies that are vendors 
or suppliers to the Golden Corral System.  

Golden Corral negotiates numerous product purchase arrangements with suppliers, 
including shipping and delivery fees, for the benefit of franchisees and GCC-owned 
restaurants. These purchase arrangements offer savings from the price charged in the 
absence of any special arrangement. The types of products or services for which Golden 
Corral negotiates arrangements are food, soft drinks, smallwares, janitorial supplies, paper 
supplies and uniforms. Golden Corral also has negotiated an arrangement with a company 
to purchase, warehouse and deliver products to franchisees. 

Currently, franchisees participating in our New Development Incentive Program can 
earn rebates on their purchases from our designated foodservice distributors (such as 
McLane Foodservice) for new Restaurants developed under the program. Specifically, each 
qualifying Restaurant will earn credits on such Restaurant’s designated foodservice 
distributor account in the amounts as follows:  (i) 3% of each such Restaurant’s Gross Sales 
in year 1, (ii) 2% of each such Restaurant’s Gross Sales in year 2, and (iii) 1% of each such 
Restaurant’s Gross Sales in year 3 (“year 1” is the one-year period from the date of the 
Restaurant opening). The credits will be calculated from the distributor’s invoices to the 
Restaurant and paid no less frequently than quarterly in arrears directly to the distributor. 
You will be asked to submit invoices to us or consent to your distributor’s sharing of that 
information. We have the right to change the timing and method of calculation and payment. 
You may also qualify for other benefits described in Item 11.  

All items you purchase for the establishment of the Restaurant as well as in the 
Restaurant’s ongoing operations must conform to Golden Corral’s specifications and must be 
purchased from approved suppliers unless otherwise approved by Golden Corral. We 
estimate that your purchases from approved suppliers will represent approximately 100% 
of your total purchases and leases in both establishing your Restaurant and in the continuing 
operation of your Restaurant. 
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GCC may derive revenue from certain approved suppliers. For example, some 
companies contribute to the cost of point-of-sale advertising materials bearing the 
company’s name which are used by franchisees and affiliate-owned Restaurants, as well as 
to GCC for the national advertising fund and marketing programs designed to increase the 
sale of products supplied by the companies. In addition, we and our affiliates have the right 
to collect and retain any and all allowances, rebates, credits, or benefits (collectively, 
“Allowances”) offered by manufacturers, suppliers, and distributors to us or our affiliates 
based upon franchisees’ purchases of products and services from them. We and our affiliates 
are authorized to collect and retain Allowances without restriction unless otherwise 
instructed by the manufacturer, supplier, or distributor. 

All advertising and promotion you use must be in the media and of the type and 
format that we may approve, must be conducted in a dignified manner, and must conform to 
standards and requirements we may specify. Please see Item 11 under the heading 
“Advertising” for information about the procedure to obtain our approval of advertising and 
promotional materials you prepare. 

You must, at your own expense, construct all improvements to the Restaurant 
premises to conform to the generic plans and specifications furnished by us. You must 
employ a qualified architect or engineer to prepare final plans and specifications for 
constructing the improvements based upon the plans and specifications furnished by us, and 
you must submit final site-adapted plans and specifications to us and not proceed with any 
construction until you have obtained our prior written approval.  You must not deviate from 
any approved plans or specifications without our prior written approval. 

If you operate the Restaurant premises under a lease, you must, before executing the 
lease, submit it to us for our written approval. Our approval, which may be conditioned upon 
the inclusion of one or more of the terms and conditions for your lease which are required 
by the Franchise Agreement, should not be deemed to be an endorsement by us of the legal 
or business terms of the lease. 

You must obtain insurance for the Restaurant which conforms to our minimum 
standards for coverage and amount that appear in the Manual or otherwise in writing. The 
insurance must be provided by insurers we approve. Your insurance must provide primary 
and non-contributory coverage to us and GCC, and we and GCC must be named as additional 
insureds. Any insurance which we or GCC might obtain which covers all or a portion of the 
same risk will be excess coverage for Golden Corral’s and GCC’s benefit only. 

Golden Corral does not have any purchasing or distribution cooperatives.   

Golden Corral considers a variety of factors when determining whether to renew or 
grant additional franchises. Among the factors considered is compliance with the 
requirements described above. 
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ITEM 9 
FRANCHISEE’S OBLIGATIONS 

This table lists your principal obligations under the Franchise Agreement and 
Development Agreement. It will help you find more detailed information about your 
obligations in these agreements and in other items of this disclosure document. 

Obligation Section in Agreement Disclosure Document 
Item 

a. Site selection and 
acquisition/lease 

§ 5 of the Franchise Agreement; 
Site Selection Addendum; § 3 of 
Development Agreement 

Items 6, 8, and 11 

b. Pre-opening 
purchases/leases 

§§ 5 and 6 of the Franchise 
Agreement; § 3 of the 
Development Agreement 

Items 5, 7, and 8 

c. Site development and other 
pre-opening requirements 

§§ 5, 6, 11, 12 of the Franchise 
Agreement; none in the 
Development Agreement 

Items 7, 8, and 11 

d. Initial and ongoing training § 6 of the Franchise Agreement; § 
3 of the Development Agreement 

Items 6, 7, and 11 

e. Opening §§ 5, 6, and 11 of the Franchise 
Agreement; none in the 
Development Agreement 

Items 6, 7, and 11 

f. Fees §§ 2, 4, 5, 10, 11, and 13 of the 
Franchise Agreement; § 2 of the 
Development Agreement 

Items 5 and 6, 8 

g. Compliance with standards 
and policies/Operating 
Manual 

§§ 6, 7, and 9 of the Franchise 
Agreement; none in the 
Development Agreement 

Items 8, 14, and 16 

h. Trademarks and proprietary 
information 

§§ 7, 8, and 9 of the Franchise 
Agreement; none in the 
Development Agreement 

Items 13 and 14 

i. Restrictions on products/ 
services offered 

§ 6 of the Franchise Agreement; 
none in the Development 
Agreement 

Item 8, 16 

j. Warranty and customer 
service requirements 

Not applicable Not applicable 
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Obligation Section in Agreement Disclosure Document 
Item 

k. Territorial development and 
sales quotas 

§ 1 of the Franchise Agreement; § 
1 of the Development Agreement 

Item 12 

l. Ongoing product/service 
purchases 

§ 6 of the Franchise Agreement Item 8 

m. Maintenance, appearance 
and remodeling 
requirements 

§§ 2, 5, and 6 of the Franchise 
Agreement; none in the 
Development Agreement 

Item 8 

n. Insurance § 12 0f the Franchise Agreement; 
none in the Development 
Agreement 

Item 7 

o. Advertising §§ 4 and 11 of the Franchise 
Agreement; none in the 
Development Agreement 

Items 6, 7, and 11 

p. Indemnification § 19 of the Franchise Agreement; 
§ 10 of the Development 
Agreement 

Item 6 

q. Owner’s participation/ 
management/staffing 

§§ 6 and 16 of the Franchise 
Agreement; §§ 7 and 8 of the 
Development Agreement 

Item 15 

r. Records and reports §§ 4 and 10 of the Franchise 
Agreement; none in the 
Development Agreement 

Item 6 

s. Inspections and audits §§ 5 and 10 of the Franchise 
Agreement; none in the 
Development Agreement 

Items 6 and 11 

t. Transfer § 13 of the Franchise Agreement; 
§ 7 of the Development 
Agreement 

Item 17 

u. Renewal § 2 of the Franchise Agreement; 
None in the Development 
Agreement 

Item 17 

v. Post-termination obligations § 15 of the Franchise Agreement; 
§ 6 of the Development 
Agreement 

Item 17 
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Obligation Section in Agreement Disclosure Document 
Item 

w. Non-competition covenants § 16 of the Franchise Agreement; 
§ 8 of the Development 
Agreement 

Item 17 

x. Dispute resolution § 23 of the Franchise Agreement; 
§ 13 of the Development 
Agreement 

Item 17 

y. Compliance with enhanced 
operational standards of 
current Restaurants as a 
prerequisite to opening new 
Restaurants 

§ 3 of the Development 
Agreement  

Item 11 

z.  Individuals’ Personal 
Guarantees 

§ 17 of the Franchise Agreement   
§ 5 of the Development 
Agreement 

Not applicable 

aa.  Individuals’ covenants re: 
confidentiality and non-
competition 

§ 16 of the Franchise Agreement   
§ 8 of the Development 
Agreement 

Item 14 

bb.   Liquidated damages for lost 
future royalties 

§ 15 of the Franchise Agreement Item 17 

 
 

ITEM 10 
FINANCING 

We do not offer direct or indirect financing. We do not guarantee your note, lease or 
other obligations. 

ITEM 11 
FRANCHISOR’S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING, COMPUTER SYSTEMS AND TRAINING 

Except as listed below, Golden Corral is not required to provide you with any 
assistance. 

Pre-Opening Obligations 

Before the opening of the Restaurant, Golden Corral will: 

1. Provide site selection guidelines and consultation as Golden Corral may deem 
advisable (Development Agreement, Section 5.1; Site Selection Addendum, Paragraph 4.a).  
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2. Provide on-site evaluation as Golden Corral may deem advisable in response 
to your requests for site approval (Development Agreement, Section 5.1; Site Selection 
Addendum, Paragraph 4.b). 

3. Make available to you, at no charge, generic plans and specifications for the 
construction of a Restaurant designed for use in Raleigh, North Carolina, including the 
Restaurant’s exterior and interior design and layout, fixtures, furnishings, and signs 
(Franchise Agreement, Section 3.1). Our generic plans are not intended as, and may not be 
used as, your construction drawings. You must have your own site-specific plans prepared 
by a licensed architect. 

4. Provide you with specifications for equipment, supplies, and inventory 
necessary to establish the Restaurant (Franchise Agreement, Section 3.2).   

5. Provide a pre-opening training program (Franchise Agreement, Section 3.3). 

6. Upon your request, and subject (as to timing) to the availability of personnel, 
provide you, at Golden Corral’s expense, an aggregate of 15 to 45 man-days of on-site 
management assistance when you open your Restaurant (Franchise Agreement, Section 3.4). 

7. Immediately before, upon and after opening of your first and second 
Restaurants, make available to you an “A-Team” comprised of certain personnel of Golden 
Corral and/or authorized franchisees of other Golden Corral Restaurants for temporary 
employment by you, at the Restaurant, for the length of time Golden Corral, in its sole 
discretion, deems necessary to assist in training and preparing your non-managerial 
employees for opening and operating the Restaurant. Typically, the A-Team is comprised of 
from 20 to 24 individuals for on-site assistance, depending on Restaurant size. During the 
time these personnel are performing on-site assistance for you, you must bear all the costs 
and expenses (they will be considered to be your employees), such as transportation, 
including air travel to and from the Restaurant, food, lodging, and wages for such employees 
during the period such on-site assistance is being provided. The estimate of these costs is 
included in Item 7.  (Franchise Agreement, Section 3.5) 

8. Provide you, on loan, one copy of the Manual, which may be in electronic form 
(Franchise Agreement, Section 3.8). 

9. Provide you, in the Manual or otherwise in writing, with initial sets of 
accounting forms for use in the Restaurant (Franchise Agreement, Section 3.9). 

Continuing Obligations 

After the opening of the Restaurant, Golden Corral will provide: 

1. Specifications for equipment, supplies, and inventory necessary to operate the 
Restaurant (Franchise Agreement, Section 3.2). 
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2. Additional training programs as Golden Corral deems appropriate (Franchise 
Agreement, Section 3.3). 

3. Periodic and continuing advisory assistance in the operation and promotion 
of the Restaurant, and advice and written materials about new developments concerning 
restaurant equipment, food products, packaging, and preparation. There is no additional fee 
for the advisory assistance we provide in this manner (Franchise Agreement, Section 3.6). 

4. Advertising and promotional plans and materials, at your expense, for local 
advertising and promotion as we deem advisable (Franchise Agreement, Section 3.7). 

* * * 

Golden Corral has the right to delegate the pre-opening and continuing 
responsibilities and duties, as described above, to any designee, except those concerning 
advertising approvals. 

Site Selection 

If your Restaurant is not developed under a Development Agreement, you must sign 
a Site Selection Addendum, unless Golden Corral already has approved a site for your 
Restaurant at the time you sign the Franchise Agreement. The Site Selection Addendum will 
describe a geographic area within which you must lease or purchase an approved location 
within 180 days after execution of the Franchise Agreement. Time is of the essence in your 
obtaining a site for the Restaurant. Your failure, within 180 days, to obtain a location 
approved by us will constitute a default under the Franchise Agreement and Site Selection 
Addendum. 

When you identify a proposed site for the Restaurant (which must occur within 90 
days after you sign the Site Selection Addendum but before you lease or purchase the 
Restaurant premises), you must submit a completed Feasibility Study, a description of the 
proposed site, such other information and materials as Golden Corral may reasonably 
require, and a letter of intent or other evidence satisfactory to Golden Corral which confirms 
your favorable prospects for obtaining the proposed site. Golden Corral will have up to 60 
days to approve or disapprove, in its sole discretion, the proposed site as a location for the 
Restaurant. Golden Corral considers, among others, the following factors in approving 
Restaurant sites: location, competitors, neighborhood, customer traffic patterns and count, 
parking availability, building size, condition and previous use of the existing land and/or 
building, availability of utilities, the anticipated cost of development and general 
demographics. Golden Corral’s approval is not a guarantee or assurance from us that your 
Restaurant will be profitable.  

Area Developers who currently operate Restaurants (either themselves or through 
affiliated companies) and seek our approval to open another Restaurant (“Development 
Approval”) must first satisfy conditions applicable to all of their currently open Restaurants 
before we either will approve a site or issue a Franchise Agreement for a new Restaurant.  
More specifically, as a pre-condition to our granting Development Approval, all of the 
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currently operating Restaurants must (a) meet our minimum standards for cleanliness, 
service and quality, which standards may, in our sole discretion, be higher and more 
demanding than the minimum standards that would constitute a default under any 
applicable Franchise Agreement provision; and (b) employ, on a full-time basis, no fewer 
than the minimum number of certified managers we require for Restaurants of comparable 
size and sales. 

If you are going to lease the premises for the Restaurant, Golden Corral reserves the 
right to review and approve the lease before its execution. Golden Corral’s approval may be 
conditioned upon the inclusion in the lease of certain provisions which Golden Corral may 
reasonably require. Our review is not intended as an evaluation of the reasonableness of the 
terms of the lease (Franchise Agreement, Section 5.2). 

We estimate that the time from signing the Franchise Agreement to the opening of 
the Restaurant will be approximately 6 to 10 months if a site has been approved before 
execution of the Franchise Agreement, or 7 to 12 months if a site must be found and/or 
approved. The actual time will vary depending on the time necessary to obtain the site, to 
construct or adapt the premises, to obtain the necessary permits and licenses for operation 
of the Restaurant, and to train employees (Franchise Agreement, Section 5.4). Developers 
must acquire a location approved by Golden Corral no fewer than 6 months prior to the date 
each respective Restaurant is required to be opened under the development schedule. 

Training Program 

Before opening the Restaurant, your Restaurant managers must complete our initial 
training program for managers. No person may serve as a Restaurant manager without 
having first fully completed the training program. The initial training program for managers 
requires approximately 8 weeks to complete and must be attended by each of your managers 
(general manager, associate manager-kitchen and associate manager-service). In addition, 
within four months before your Restaurant’s proposed opening, your general manager must 
work in the grand opening of another Golden Corral system Restaurant for a minimum of 
one full week.  If there is no other grand opening occurring within such 4-month timeframe, 
the Division President will determine the operating restaurant where your general manager 
will work in lieu of grand opening training. We may also require the general manager to 
attend a General Manager (GM) class at the Golden Corral Training Center.   

In addition to the regular manager training for each Restaurant, before opening your 
first Restaurant, your General Manager and associate manager-kitchen must successfully 
complete an additional level of initial training, identified below as “Practice Management.” 
This training lasts approximately six weeks and is designed to provide a more thorough 
understanding of, and more experience in, managing the Restaurant’s operations. We may 
waive the Practice Management training requirement if (a) you are currently employed as a 
certified manager of an operating Golden Corral Restaurant; or (b) you currently are the 
owner and operator of an operating Golden Corral franchised Restaurant. 
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Our initial training program consists of two components: Tier 1 and Tier 2. Tiers 1 
and 2 are conducted in a certified training restaurant. For new entities, additional Practice 
Management is required. I Managers are assigned to a restaurant where they can complete 
the six-week Practice Management component. If required by Golden Corral, the manager 
will attend a one week of classroom training held in Raleigh, North Carolina. Instructional 
materials include computer-based training (CBT), manuals (Operations, Administrative 
Guide, a Tier 1 and 2 Training Guide, and Applied Food Service Sanitation course), recipes, 
laptop computers, and miscellaneous training videos on Golden Corral management tools 
and reports. 

All training must be completed per established standards to our satisfaction.  

We do charge a fee for training additional managers (see Item 6). As of the date of this 
disclosure document, the training fee is the cost of training materials, which is currently 
$205. You also must pay all expenses incurred by your attendees while attending franchise 
orientation and our training programs, including the costs of transportation, lodging, meals 
and any wages. 

Golden Corral does not maintain a formal training staff. Various employees of Golden 
Corral or its affiliates will provide training. These employees’ experience in the subjects 
about which they will be training ranges from 1 year to over 20 years.  For Tier 1 and 2 (as 
described below), on-the-job training will be supervised by a certified Training Manager who 
has completed a specialized course in training managerial candidates, and who has been a 
Restaurant General Manager for at least 6 months at a Golden Corral Training Restaurant. 
The Practice Management on-the-job training (as described below) will be supervised by an 
experienced certified Restaurant Manager. Your managers also must attend, at your expense, 
such refresher courses, additional training programs, and seminars as Golden Corral may 
designate from time to time.  

The following charts summarize our initial training program: 

TRAINING PROGRAM 

TIER 1 
IN-STORE TRAINING 

 
Subject 

Hours of 
Classroom 
Training 

Hours of 
On-the-Job 

Training 
Location 

Orientation and Introduction 0 16 An existing Golden Corral 
Restaurant.  See Note. 

Food Safety 0 4 An existing Golden Corral 
Restaurant.  See Note. 

Prep/Cold Choice 0 20 An existing Golden Corral 
Restaurant.  See Note 
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Subject 

Hours of 
Classroom 
Training 

Hours of 
On-the-Job 

Training 
Location 

Meat Cutting/Prep 0 20 An existing Golden Corral 
Restaurant.  See Note 

Hot Cook/Hot Bar 0 40 An existing Golden Corral 
Restaurant.  See Note 

Carving/Display Cook 0 20 An existing Golden Corral 
Restaurant.  See Note 

Bakery 0 20 An existing Golden Corral 
Restaurant.  See Note 

Line 0 2 An existing Golden Corral 
Restaurant.  See Note 

Server 0 10 An existing Golden Corral 
Restaurant.  See Note 

Utility 0 10 An existing Golden Corral 
Restaurant.  See Note 

Breakfast 0 10 An existing Golden Corral 
Restaurant.  See Note 

Review Questions 0 10 An existing Golden Corral 
Restaurant.  See Note 

Department Audit 0 9 An existing Golden Corral 
Restaurant.  See Note 

Module Quizzes and Tests 0 8 An existing Golden Corral 
Restaurant.  See Note 

Module Assignments 0 30 An existing Golden Corral 
Restaurant. See Note 

Module Evaluations 0 4 An existing Golden Corral 
Restaurant.  See Note 

Tier 1 Training Evaluation 
(Online) 

0 2 An existing Golden Corral 
Restaurant.  See Note 

Tier 1 Candidate 
Assessments 

0 3 An existing Golden Corral 
Restaurant.  See Note 

Tier 1 Shift Assessment 0 4 An existing Golden Corral 
Restaurant.  See Note 

TOTALS 0 250  
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TIER 2 
IN-STORE TRAINING 

 
Subject 

Hours of 
Classroom 
Training 

Hours of 
On-the-Job 

Training 
Location 

Introduction and Orientation 0 4 An existing Golden Corral 
Restaurant.  See Note 

Management Routines - 
Opening/Running/Closing 
the Restaurant  

0 80 An existing Golden Corral 
Restaurant.  See Note 

Managing Food  0 20 An existing Golden Corral 
Restaurant.  See Note 

Managing Labor 0 20 An existing Golden Corral 
Restaurant.  See Note 

Inventory & Receiving 0 20 An existing Golden Corral 
Restaurant.  See Note 

Hiring/Scheduling 0 20 An existing Golden Corral 
Restaurant.  See Note 

Guest Service 0 20 An existing Golden Corral 
Restaurant.  See Note 

ROIP/Ecosure Audits 0 10 An existing Golden Corral 
Restaurant.  See Note 

Management Skills eLearning 
Course 

0 10 An existing Golden Corral 
Restaurant.  See Note 

Virtual Classes:   5 Killers of 
Productivity; 
Guest Service Bar Diagrams 
Part 1 and 2; Leadership 
Coaching; Employee 
Relations;  
 

4.5  15 An existing Golden Corral 
Restaurant.  Classes taught 
by instructors from the 
Training Center  

Tier 2 Final Evaluation 
(Opening, Running, Closing 
Assessment) 

0 10 An existing Golden Corral 
Restaurant.  See Note 

Tier 2 Training Evaluation 
(Online) 

0 2 An existing Golden Corral 
Restaurant.  See Note 

Tier 2 Candidate 
Assessments  

0 4 An existing Golden Corral 
Restaurant.  See Note 

Food School  4  An existing Golden Corral 
Restaurant.  See Note 

TOTALS 4.5 239  
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Note: Tier 1 (4 weeks) and Tier 2 (4 weeks) are mandatory programs held at Golden Corral 
Certified Training Restaurants located throughout the country. The Manager in Training 
program runs continuously.   

General Manager Workshop: This four-day workshop held at the Golden Corral Training 
Center in Raleigh, North Carolina is currently not required, but may be required in the future 
and may include courses on leadership, coaching, and advanced management skills. 
 

In addition to the training programs described above, there are two other 
components to our pre-opening training, as follows: 

1. Approximately 8 to 16 of the Restaurant’s employees who are paid on an 
hourly-wage basis, such as meat cutters, bakers, cooks and servers, must participate in an 
on-the-job training program. This training program will involve approximately 20 to 60 
hours, depending on the trainee’s job classification, at an operating Restaurant. Your 
employees will work together with the employees of the training Restaurant in learning the 
skills for the job(s) they will perform at your Restaurant. Instructional material used includes 
position training guides, videos and recipes. While we will try to select a training Restaurant 
in the same geographic area as your proposed Restaurant premises so that your employees 
will be able to commute to training each day, it is not always possible to do so.  You must pay 
any and all expenses incurred by your employees for this on-the-job training program, 
including the costs of transportation, lodging, meals, and any wages. 

2. Immediately before, during, and after the opening of your first and second 
Restaurants, we will make available to you an “A-Team” comprised of certain personnel of 
Golden Corral and/or authorized franchisees of other Golden Corral Restaurants for 
temporary employment by you for such length of time as we, in our sole discretion, deem 
necessary to assist in training and preparing your non-managerial employees for opening 
and operating the Restaurant. In the typical instance, we will make available from 20 to 24 
individuals for such on-site assistance, depending on Restaurant size. For your third 
Restaurant, we provide a New Restaurant Opening Specialist (NROS), and the A-Team will 
consist of some established A-Team members as well as members from both of your other 
restaurants. For your fourth and any additional Restaurants, you will supply your own A-
Team members from your other restaurants as well as your own NROS.  You are required to 
follow Golden Corral’s established new restaurant opening plan. 

During the time these personnel are performing on-site assistance for you, they will 
be your employees, and you must bear all the costs and expenses such as transportation, 
(including air travel), food, lodging, wages, and other expenses associated with their status 
as your employees during the period such on-site assistance is being provided. The cost of 
this pre-opening/opening program appears in our on-site assistance cost estimate in Item 7 
of this disclosure document. 

If you participate in our New Development Incentive Program and you open a new 
Restaurant within the program deadline, we will reimburse up to $15,000 of your training 
costs for up to 3 managers (up to $45,000 in total) for the new Restaurant. You will be 
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required to submit verification of your out-of-pocket costs for the managers to attend 
training.  

There is no specific time frame between the signing of the Franchise Agreement and 
the opening of the Restaurant within which required training must be completed. However, 
as previously discussed, no Restaurant may open before each of your managers has 
completed the initial training program and been certified. 

Advertising and Marketing 

Golden Corral has established both a system-wide fund (“National Fund”) and two 
regional advertising funds for specifically-designated market areas or geographical areas 
(“Regional Fund”). 

You must contribute and/or expend an amount which ranges from 2% to 6% of Gross 
Sales on advertising. Golden Corral will determine, in its sole discretion, both the amount of 
your contribution as well as its allocation among the funds or, in certain circumstances 
where no Regional Fund covers your Restaurant location, the allocation between the 
National Fund and local advertising. We may change the amount of your contribution as well 
as its allocation at any time, including allocating all contributions to only one recipient, such 
as the National Fund. Each GCC-owned Restaurant will contribute on the same basis as 
franchisees. Advertising contributions are payable weekly by electronic funds transfer. The 
amount of the required contribution/expenditure and its allocation will appear in our 
Manual or as otherwise specified by us in writing. 

Neither the National Fund nor any Regional Fund is a trust fund, and Golden Corral 
will have no fiduciary responsibility to any franchisee in connection with the collection or 
use of any National Fund or Regional Fund monies or any other aspect of the funds’ 
operations (Franchise Agreement, Section 11).   

As of the date of this disclosure document, franchisees’ required advertising 
contribution to Golden Corral is 2.4% of their Restaurant’s Gross Sales, and these 
contributions are all allocated to the National Fund. We expect that the same percentage 
amount and allocation will continue through at least 2022. 

Golden Corral has sole discretion over the concepts, materials, media, type, nature, 
scope, frequency, place, form, copy, layout, and content of all advertising supported by the 
National Fund and Regional Funds, as well as any local advertising.   

The funds will be maintained and administered by Golden Corral or its designee, as 
follows: 

National Fund 

The National Fund is intended to maximize general public recognition and acceptance 
of the Proprietary Marks for the benefit of all Restaurants within the System.  The National 
Fund is not obligated to make expenditures for you which are equivalent or proportionate 
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to your contribution or to ensure that any particular franchisee benefits directly or pro rata 
from the placement of advertising. (Franchise Agreement, Section 11.2.1.) 

1. The National Fund will be used exclusively to meet costs of maintaining, 
administering, researching, directing, creating, and preparing advertising and/or 
promotional activities and all other activities which Golden Corral believes will increase 
System revenues and/or enhance the image of the System and/or Proprietary Marks, 
including the costs of preparing, creating and conducting promotional programs involving 
use of stored value gift cards and other forms of non-cash payment systems; customer loyalty 
programs and similar types of programs; advertising campaigns in various media and the 
Internet; direct mail and outdoor billboard advertising; marketing surveys and other public 
relations activities, customer feedback and similar activities; employing advertising and/or 
public relations agencies; product development; and providing promotional, point of 
purchase/in-restaurant materials and other marketing materials for franchisees and 
company-owned Restaurants in the System. (Franchise Agreement, Section 11.2.2.) 

2. GCC will, for each of its company-owned Restaurants, contribute to the 
National Fund on the same basis as franchisees (Franchise Agreement, Section 11.2.3). 

3. Golden Corral will maintain National Fund contributions in an account or 
accounts separate from the other monies of Golden Corral.  Golden Corral will not use such 
sums to defray any of Golden Corral’s expenses, except for reasonable administrative costs 
and overhead, if any, Golden Corral may incur in activities reasonably related to the 
administration or direction of the National Fund or advertising programs for Franchisees 
and the System, including the costs of enforcing contributions to the National Fund required 
under the Franchise Agreement and the costs of preparing the statement of operations which 
includes contributions and expenditures and the cost of personnel for creating and 
implementing the Fund’s activities. The National Fund and its earnings will not otherwise 
benefit Golden Corral.  Golden Corral will maintain separate bookkeeping accounts for the 
National Fund (Franchise Agreement, Section 11.2.4). 

4. Golden Corral anticipates that all contributions to and earnings of the National 
Fund will be expended for advertising and/or promotional purposes during the taxable year 
within which the contributions are made. If, however, excess amounts remain in the National 
Fund at the end of the taxable year, Golden Corral will expend in the following taxable year(s) 
monies first out of accumulated earnings from previous years, next out of earnings in the 
current year, and finally from contributions. Any deficits will be paid from future 
contributions (Franchise Agreement, Section 11.2.5). 

5. The National Fund is not and will not be an asset of Golden Corral. An 
independent certified public accountant selected by Golden Corral will review the statement 
of operations of the National Fund maintained by Golden Corral annually, which statement 
will be made available to you, upon reasonable notice (Franchise Agreement, Section 11.2.6). 

6. Although Golden Corral intends the National Fund to be of perpetual duration, 
Golden Corral maintains the right to terminate the National Fund.  The National Fund may 
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not be terminated, however, until all monies in the National Fund have been expended for 
advertising and/or promotional purposes or returned to contributors on the basis of their 
respective contributions (Franchise Agreement, Section 11.2.7). 

During the fiscal year ending December 28, 2022, we estimate that 87.7% of the 
National Fund’s expenditures were for media advertising; 9.6% for creative and production 
expenses for television commercials and promotional materials; 1.95% for agency retainers 
and fees; 0.8% for national charitable events/sponsorship(s) (Military Appreciation 
Monday) and Convention expenses; and 0% for administrative fees. 

During our fiscal year ending December 28, 2022, neither Golden Corral nor any of 
our affiliates received any payment for providing goods or services to the National Fund. 

No National Fund fees, or any other advertising funds, were used for soliciting the 
sales of franchises during the fiscal year ending December 28, 2022.  

Golden Corral has the right to delegate and re-delegate its responsibilities and duties 
for advertising under the Franchise Agreement to any designees of its choosing, but Golden 
Corral retains the right of final approval of all advertising programs (Franchise Agreement, 
Section 11.6). 

Regional Fund 

There currently are 2 Regional Funds in existence. Golden Corral has the power to 
require that Regional Funds be formed, changed, dissolved, or merged.  

We may increase the number of Regional Funds to include new market areas in which 
aggregate projected contributions based on an established percentage of Gross Sales are 
expected to exceed the cost of buying a set minimum number of targeted rating points in 
broadcast television advertising within the market. If a Regional Fund for your region is 
established at any time during the term of the Franchise Agreement, you must become a 
member no later than the later of 90 days after you open your Restaurant or the date on 
which the Regional Fund commences operation. (Franchise Agreement, Section 11.3)   

Golden Corral’s contribution allocation may vary among franchisees, depending on 
whether a Regional Fund is required for the market area in which the franchised Restaurant 
operates. For example, and assuming a required franchisee advertising contribution of 2.6%, 
Golden Corral has the right to allocate the contribution 2.4% to the National Fund and 0.2% 
to either the Regional Fund, if it exists for the franchisee’s Restaurant, or to local advertising. 
In addition, Golden Corral permits the formation within a market area of a separate entity 
among Golden Corral and the franchisees operating Restaurants within such market area 
that will serve as the Regional Fund for that market area and be in lieu of a Golden Corral-
established Regional Fund, subject to certain criteria established by Golden Corral. If an 
entity is established to serve as the Regional Fund, the members may agree to give that 
Regional Fund entity the power to assess supplemental advertising contributions on its 
members, and any such supplemental assessment will be in addition to the amount required 
by Golden Corral and allocated to the Regional Fund.  Golden Corral will not require you to 



 35  
Golden Corral 2023 FDD 

pay any supplemental contribution that your Regional Fund entity may impose but, if you do 
not make the supplemental contribution, you may not be permitted to vote in the voluntary 
Regional Fund’s deliberations if the organizational documents for that entity do not so 
provide. 

Golden Corral must approve in writing the organization and governance of each entity 
formed among franchisees to serve as a Regional Fund, as well as the date upon which it may 
commence operation. Regardless of whether a Regional Fund is established by Golden Corral 
or is permitted to be established among franchisees and Golden Corral by formation of a 
separate entity for a given market area, the Regional Fund is not obligated to make 
expenditures for you which are equivalent or proportionate to your contribution or to 
ensure that any particular franchisee benefits directly or pro-rata from the placement of 
advertising (Franchise Agreement, Section 11.3.1). These organizational and governance 
documents must specify the manner in which contributions are made and provide a 
mechanism for Regional Fund participants to obtain an accounting of expenditures. 

Golden Corral, in its sole discretion, may grant you an exemption for any length of 
time from the requirement of membership in a Regional Fund, upon your written request 
stating the reasons supporting the exemption. Golden Corral may require as a condition of 
granting the exemption that you expend on local advertising the amount that you would have 
contributed to a Regional Fund. Golden Corral’s decision concerning a request for exemption 
will be final (Franchise Agreement, Section 11.3.2). 

GCC must, for each of its company-owned stores (if any) located in a region in which 
a Regional Fund is established, make contributions to the Regional Fund comparable to those 
required of franchisees (Franchise Agreement, Section 11.3.3). GCC units’ voting rights on all 
issues are calculated in the same manner as franchised units. 

Each Regional Fund will have organizational documents governing the Regional 
Fund’s operations, subject to Golden Corral’s written approval (Franchise Agreement, 
Section 11.3.1). These documents will be expected to state whether and, if so, how an 
accounting of the Regional Fund’s operations will be made available to you. 

Additional Advertising 

1. Grand Opening Advertising 

In addition to the advertising described above, you must conduct a pre- and post-
opening advertising campaign in the manner we require. You do not have to spend more 
than $10,000 for this pre-opening advertising campaign or more than $5,000 for the post-
opening campaign. The post-opening campaign will cover the first 90 days after the opening. 
(Franchise Agreement, Section 11.4) 

If you participate in our New Development Incentive Program and you open a new 
Restaurant within the program deadline, we will reimburse up to $5,000 of your costs for 
marketing relating to the opening of the new Restaurant. To qualify, the marketing expenses 
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must be incurred within 120 days of opening and you must submit verification of the 
expenses.  

2. Directory Advertising 

In addition to the advertising described above, you must obtain listings and place 
advertisements in any directories and other media that we specify, at your expense. You 
must maintain an adequate supply of brochures or other materials in the Restaurant, 
displayed as we direct from time to time (Franchise Agreement, Section 11.5). 

3. Franchisee-Initiated Local Advertising 

You may conduct additional advertising at your own expense. We consider 
advertising to include various forms of electronic and print media, (i.e. television, radio, 
cable, billboards, newspapers and magazines), as well as in-Restaurant point-of-sale 
materials, but not the costs of discounted or promotional meals. Your advertising must 
conform to our standards and specifications. We must approve samples of advertising 
materials before you use them.  If you do not receive written disapproval from us within 15 
days after we receive the samples, you may assume that we have approved the samples, and 
can use the advertising unless and until we advise you to stop (Franchise Agreement, Section 
11.7). 

4. Electronic Media 

Unless approved in writing by Golden Corral, you may not register, maintain, or 
sponsor any website, URL, social media page or account, blog, feed, email account, user name, 
text address, messaging address, mobile application, or other electronic, mobile or online 
medium that uses or displays any of the Proprietary Marks (or any derivative thereof) or 
otherwise promotes or identifies the Restaurant.  If Golden Corral approves the use of an 
electronic medium, the approval will be conditioned on your compliance with any standards 
and procedures that we issue with respect to that type of electronic medium, including the 
use of any format, disclaimers, warnings, and other statements that we may prescribe. We 
can require you to establish your website as part of a System website that we choose to 
establish. All telephone answering messages, email auto-signatures, and other identifiers of 
the Restaurant must be in the form that Golden Corral prescribes. Upon termination or 
expiration of the Franchise Agreement, you must surrender and transfer to Golden Corral all 
domain names, websites, email accounts, and other identifiers of the Restaurant in any 
electronic medium, whether or not we approved the use of the electronic medium.  

The use of any electronic medium constitutes advertising and promotion subject to 
our approval as described above. You may not transmit advertisements or solicitations by 
telephone, e-mail, text message, instant message, social networking website, VoIP, streaming 
media, or any other electronic medium without first obtaining our written consent as to: (a) 
the content of the advertisements or solicitations; and (b) the type of media that will be used.   
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5. Franchisee Advisory Council 

Golden Corral has established a franchise advisory council comprised solely of 14 
franchisee members.  Twelve of the advisory council’s members are selected by Golden 
Corral franchisees, one is selected by the council’s Chairman and one is selected by Golden 
Corral’s President and CEO.  The franchise advisory council is currently organized into three 
committees that meet three times per year with Golden Corral management to review plans 
and discuss concerns and opportunities. One committee, known as the “Great Place to Eat 
and Marketing Committee,” reviews all key marketing research studies and implications in 
order to participate in setting the long range goals for the development of strong competitive 
programs that provide a leadership position in our target market. This Committee consists 
of 6 franchisee members selected from the franchise advisory council. The advisory council 
and the Great Place to Eat and Marketing Committee serve in an advisory capacity only, and 
Golden Corral has reserved the right to change or dissolve the advisory council. 

6. Required Participation in System Marketing and Monitoring Effects 

At our request and your expense , you must participate in the System’s marketing and 
Restaurant monitoring programs, such as, for example, various e-mail programs (such as e-
mail list building), messaging, newsletters, customer retention and acquisition programs, 
surveys, campaign tracking, and mystery shopper programs. 

Computer System 

 Electronic Point-of-Sale Equipment 

At our request, and at your expense, you must purchase or lease, and maintain, the 
computer hardware and software, required dedicated telephone and power lines, modem(s), 
printer(s), and other computer-related accessories or peripheral equipment that we specify. 
This equipment will be used for, among other functions, recording sales and other 
recordkeeping and central functions. You must provide all necessary assistance to connect 
your computer system with our computer system. We will have independent access to your 
computer system and the right to retrieve the data and information that we deem necessary. 
You must pay all electronic retrieval costs. There is no contractual limitation on our right to 
retrieve or use information from your computer system. 

Because our respective computer systems will be connected, our systems must be 
compatible, and you must strictly comply with our standards and specifications for all 
item(s) associated with your computer system. Also, to ensure full operational efficiency and 
optimum communication capability between and among computer systems installed by you, 
us, and other franchisees, you must, at your expense, keep your computer system in good 
maintenance and repair, and, at your expense, promptly install such additions, changes, 
modifications, substitutions and/or replacements to your computer hardware, software, 
telephone and power lines, and other computer-related facilities as we direct.  (Franchise 
Agreement, Section 10.9) 
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Software 

The hardware system we currently require, described below, comes with software 
preloaded. This software is capable of generating all reports currently required under the 
Franchise Agreement. This software is proprietary to Golden Corral and the software’s 
respective vendor. We may modify and upgrade our specifications for the software from time 
to time, and you must modify and upgrade your software accordingly. There is no contractual 
limitation on the frequency and cost of this upgrade obligation. Any upgrades in software 
made by Restaurant Data Concepts (Positouch) will be provided by them.   

As of the date of this disclosure document, Golden Corral is testing a new, cloud-based 
software as a service (SaaS) electronic point of sale (EPS) solution, which testing may result 
in Golden Corral requiring the replacement of the current Positouch system with a new SaaS 
EPS solution at your sole cost and expense.  

You must continuously utilize Microsoft Office 365 for electronic mail communication 
under GCC’s Office 365 enterprise license, and Golden Corral will charge you quarterly $60 
(which amount is subject to increase over time) plus all applicable taxes.   

You must continuously utilize such anti-malware and/or other computer security 
package(s) as designated by Golden Corral from time to time.   As of the date of this disclosure 
document, Golden Corral requires you to utilize CheckPoint’s email security package under 
GCC’s CheckPoint enterprise license, and Golden Corral will charge you quarterly $15 (which 
amount is subject to increase over time) plus all applicable taxes. 

Also, you must continuously utilize the electronic recipe viewer system as designated 
by Golden Corral from time to time.  As of the date of this disclosure document, Golden Corral 
requires you to utilize the CBS Northstar recipe viewer system under GCC’s enterprise 
license, and Golden Corral will charge you each calendar quarter $35 (which amount is 
subject to increase over time) plus all applicable taxes. 

Hardware 

We have approved one hardware system for use in the Restaurant: the IBM/Toshiba 
Touchscreen POS. We have been using the IBM/Toshiba hardware continuously since August 
1994. The IBM/Toshiba system, which comes pre-loaded with Restaurant Data Concepts’ 
system, is provided by Restaurant Data Concepts, 491 Kilvert Street, Suite 100, Warwick, 
Rhode Island 02886, telephone (401) 732-5700. You also may purchase the hardware 
system from our affiliate, Coastal Equipment Company. 

As described above under “Software,” as of the date of this disclosure document, 
Golden Corral is testing a SaaS EPS solution together with certain hardware associated with 
the SaaS EPS solution. The testing may result in Golden Corral requiring replacement of the 
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IBM/Toshiba system by a new hardware system compatible with a new SaaS solution, at 
your sole cost and expense.   

IBM/Toshiba has certain warranty obligations to provide maintenance on its 
hardware. You are responsible for any non-warranty maintenance. As of the date of this 
disclosure document, the annual cost for non-warranty maintenance is $450 per year for 
each register. Our affiliate also offers the maintenance services described below. 

You must purchase and maintain the online Computer Based Training (“CBT”) 
system. This system will be used for in-store training of management and co-workers, and 
must be connected to the Internet at all times for training access. As of the date of this 
disclosure document, the purchase price is approximately $1,500 for a desktop or a laptop 
(requires independent wireless connection), plus tax. You will also be charged a monthly 
maintenance fee, which is $120 as of the date of this disclosure document (can be billed 
quarterly or annually). The maintenance fee covers new content, new downloading of files, 
back-up and web-based reporting features. Upon request our Training Department can 
provide you with the computer hardware minimum system requirements relative to the CBT 
system. You can purchase the required computer hardware from any merchant that you 
desire. 

POS/Backoffice Support 

In addition to the hardware and software discussed above, you may, but are not 
required to, enter into a Golden Corral Corporation Store Back Office Software License 
Agreement, a Personal Computer Backoffice Installation and Training Support Agreement, a 
Personal Computer Backoffice Software and Hardware Support Agreement for the use of the 
Golden Corral POS/Backoffice Support system, and a Help Desk Support Agreement. The 
current forms of these Agreements are found in Exhibits E, F, G and I to this disclosure 
document.  

GCC’s Store Back Office Software License Agreement permits you to maintain 
inventory, daily sales, and other records related to Restaurant operations. Under this 
Agreement, there are training and installation charges of $50 per hour and a minimum 
charge of $500 per day plus expenses, including those for motor vehicle/airline travel, 
lodging, rental car and food. The Personal Computer Backoffice Installation and Training 
Support Agreement provides for the installation of the hardware and software purchased 
from GCC for the backoffice only and also for the training of personnel designated by you in 
the operation of the backoffice system. Charges for this installation/training are $50 per hour 
and a minimum charge of $500 per day plus expenses, including those for motor 
vehicle/airline travel, lodging, rental car and food. The Personal Computer Backoffice 
Software and Hardware Support Agreement allows for continuing support of the software 
and hardware acquired from Golden Corral or its subsidiary.  Whether or not the hardware 
or software is serviced under this agreement, the annual charge under this Agreement is 
currently $800 per year per covered location in addition to charges for any service or 
maintenance required.  
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GCC’s Help Desk Support Agreement provides certain help desk and call center 
support services for computer software and systems specified for use in the operation of 
Restaurants. As of the date of this disclosure document, the annual fee is $1,850 per 
Restaurant location. 

In summary, we estimate that the cost of purchasing or leasing the currently required 
hardware and software described above will range from $20,000 to $25,000 per Restaurant; 
in addition, we estimate that the cost of purchasing or leasing all of the optional hardware 
and software described above will range from $500 to $6,000 per Restaurant.   

We estimate that the annual cost of optional or required maintenance, updating, 
upgrading or support services will range from $2,850 to $4,000 per Restaurant. 

With regard to your acceptance of payment by credit and/or debit cards, you must 
comply with the Payment Card Industry Data Security Standards (PCI/DSS), as updated and 
revised by the PCI Security Standards Council, LLC (see www.pcisecuritystandards.org).  
Among other things, you must implement the security requirements that the PCI Security 
Standards Council (or its successor) requires of a merchant that accepts payment by credit 
and/or debit cards, and you must have an independent third party conduct a PCI/DSS audit 
as and when required by the standards. Compliance with PCI/DSS is a minimum requirement 
and does not guarantee that no security breach will occur. Any losses or expenses that we 
incur as a result of a security breach of your system will be subject to indemnification as 
provided in the Franchise Agreement. 

You must accept and process card-present direction payment via an encrypting card 
swipe terminal at the time of order placement. Golden Corral does not store cardholder data. 
The back-end middleware (T+) and the point of sale software, POSiTouch, only have access 
to the encrypted data and not to the original account number. 

All Restaurants are required to have a standardized and identical architecture in 
terms of the point of sale and P2P encryption device and using Vantiv as the credit processor. 
This isolates store systems involved in credit card processing from corporate systems that 
serve operational purposes. Outbound Internet traffic from Restaurants is limited by 
perimeter firewalls at each Restaurant location. Inbound Internet traffic is prohibited at the 
Restaurant locations. 

Except as described above, neither we nor any of our affiliates nor any third party has 
an obligation to provide ongoing maintenance, repairs, upgrades or updates of your 
computer hardware or software. 

Manual 

The Table of Contents of the Operations Manual is attached as Exhibit J to this 
disclosure document. The Manual consists of 361 pages, including the index. 
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ITEM 12 
TERRITORY 

Development Agreement 

Developers are granted a geographic area (“Development Area”) within which to 
develop Restaurants. We typically define Development Areas in terms of one or more 
Designated Market Areas (as defined by Nielsen Media Research) or portions of DMAs. Your 
Development Area will be defined in an exhibit to your Development Agreement, and may 
be further defined by sub-markets established by mutually approved segmentation map(s). 
You do not receive any right to redefine or relocate the Development Area. 

The Development Agreement will specify the number and design of Restaurants to be 
developed. The timeframes in which they must be developed will be described in a 
development schedule (“Development Schedule”).   

Golden Corral will not establish and operate, or license anyone else other than the 
developer to establish and operate, a Restaurant under the System and the Proprietary 
Marks in the Development Area during the term of your Development Agreement, except in 
the circumstances described below. Your Development Area is not exclusive, because we 
retain rights to Non-Traditional Sites as described below. Because your Development Area 
is not exclusive, we are required to include the following statement: “You will not receive an 
exclusive territory. You may face competition from other franchisees, from outlets that we 
own, or from other channels of distribution or competitive brands that we control.”   

 Golden Corral retains the rights:    

 to establish and operate, and to license others to establish and operate, 
Restaurants utilizing the Proprietary Marks and/or the System at or from Non-
Traditional Sites. “Non-Traditional Sites” means educational institutions 
(such as colleges and universities), hospitals, airports, food courts, 
manufacturing, industrial or research facilities, office buildings, convention 
centers, supermarkets, gasoline stations, department stores, contract food 
services, theaters, convenience stores, vending machines, fixed/mobile 
modular units, any casino or other gambling facility, hotels, kiosks, any sports 
facility, public transportation facility, or public entertainment facility, or any 
facility owned by, operated by, or under contract with, any military or other 
government entity. 

 to own, acquire, establish and/or operate, and franchise others to establish 
and operate, other restaurant concepts now or subsequently offered by 
Golden Corral, as well as businesses under proprietary marks other than the 
Proprietary Marks or other systems, whether such restaurant concepts or 
businesses are similar to or different from the Restaurant, at any location 
within or outside the Development Area.   
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 to sell and distribute any products under any proprietary marks, including the 
Proprietary Marks, at retail or wholesale, directly or indirectly, or to license 
others to sell or distribute them.   

We can undertake these activities both within and outside of the Development Area, 
regardless of the proximity to or the financial impact on the Development Area and/or any 
Restaurant you establish or plan to establish under the Development Agreement, and 
without offering you any rights to participate. 

If we define a Development Area that encompasses one or more existing Restaurants, 
the Development Area will exclude any location within 3 miles of the existing Restaurant(s), 
regardless of design. In metropolitan areas that we consider to be “high density,” we may 
reduce the excluded territory to less than 3 miles. Golden Corral retains the right to establish 
and operate, and to license others to establish and operate, a Restaurant at the location of 
the existing Restaurant facility or any other location within the excluded territory, regardless 
of the proximity to or financial impact on the Development Area and/or any restaurant 
established or to be established under the Development Agreement. However, we will not 
approve a site within the Protected Territory of a Franchise Agreement that you have signed 
under the Development Agreement. 

  
Golden Corral also retains the right to conduct research, negotiations and related 

work as we deem appropriate regarding any potential site within the Development Area, 
including: (a) identifying and entering into contracts or agreements related to a potential 
purchase, lease or other acquisition of a site; (b) negotiating terms of a potential transaction 
for property located within the Development Area; and (c) applying for and/or procuring 
surveys, engineering and environmental studies, architectural and engineering plans, and 
building and construction permits. If we secure a site within the Development Area that 
meets our then-current standards and site requirements for development of a Golden Corral 
Restaurant, we will notify you and provide information about the site on a confidential basis 
(but not any information or analysis about projected revenues or earnings with respect to 
the operation of a Restaurant at the site). We will also furnish a summary of all fees, costs 
and expenses we have incurred in connection with our activities. Provided that the landlord 
or seller under a Land Contract is willing to allow assignment of the site contracts to you and 
to provide a complete release of Golden Corral and its affiliates, you will have 14 days to 
examine the information we have provided and decide whether to accept an assignment and 
assumption of the agreements.  

 
If you give us notice in writing within the 14-day period of your intention to accept 

an assignment and assumption of the agreements for the site, your written notice will also 
be deemed your agreement to reimburse Golden Corral and its affiliates for all site 
development costs and any and all subsequently incurred similar expenses in connection 
with the identification and development of the site. You must sign the assignment documents 
and pay the initial franchise fee and site development costs within 21 days after you receive 
the assignment documents. If you do not return the signed documents and pay the fee and 
costs within the 21-day period, you will lose all rights to the site. In addition, we may, in our 
absolute discretion, terminate the Development Agreement immediately and without 
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providing you any opportunity to cure, and we will have no further obligation to you with 
respect to the site, the Development Agreement or the Development Area.   

 
If you do not affirmatively notify us in writing within the 14-day notice period of your 

desire to accept an assignment and assumption of the site contracts, the Development 
Agreement will be deemed automatically terminated as of the 15th day following the day we 
gave you the site information and cost summary. You will have no further rights to develop 
or operate a Golden Corral Restaurant within the Development Area. 

 
Upon the execution of a Franchise Agreement for an approved site in a specific 

submarket identified by a segmentation map or otherwise within the Development Area, any 
rights the developer may have to territorial protection for future additional development in 
that submarket will cease. The territorial protection for the submarket, if any, will be 
determined by the applicable Franchise Agreement for the approved location.   

Except as described above, there are no circumstances that permit us to modify your 
territorial protection for the Development Area while the Development Agreement is in 
effect.  After the term of your Development Agreement expires, Golden Corral may establish, 
or license someone other than you to establish, additional Restaurants in the former 
Development Area, subject to the territorial protection granted to your Restaurants under 
their Franchise Agreements. 

In addition to the events described above, a developer’s territorial protection 
depends on meeting the requirements of the Development Schedule. If you fail to meet your 
Development Schedule, the Development Agreement will terminate and you will have no 
further rights to develop additional Golden Corral Restaurants within the Development Area. 

Franchise Agreement 

If you sign a Site Selection Addendum, it will designate a site selection territory within 
which you must locate your Restaurant subject to Golden Corral’s approval. The site 
selection territory does not provide you with any territorial protection. 

You may not relocate the Restaurant without our prior written consent. We will use 
the same site selection criteria for relocation sites as we use for initial site approval.  
Approval of sites will be at our sole discretion, and subject to any territorial protections 
granted to other Restaurants. We will not consider for relocation a site which is outside of 
your Restaurant’s market area. If we approve your relocation, the Franchise Agreement for 
your Restaurant at your current location will be amended or terminated, and you will sign 
and/or, at our request, cause all interested parties to sign, for the new Restaurant location, 
the standard form franchise agreement then being offered to new System franchisees and 
other ancillary agreements. We also may require you to pay the then-current initial franchise 
fee for the relocated Restaurant. We will make the decision about whether to charge a new 
initial franchise fee on a case-by-case basis; if we do charge the fee, you will receive a pro 
rata credit for the unamortized amount of the initial franchise fee you paid under the 
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Franchise Agreement for your then-current location, and this credit will be applied toward 
the initial franchise fee payable under the Franchise Agreement for the new location. 

During the term of the Franchise Agreement, Golden Corral will not establish and 
operate, nor license anyone else to establish and operate, a Restaurant under the Proprietary 
Marks and the System within a radius of 3 miles from the front door of the Restaurant (the 
“Protected Territory”), as described in the Franchise Agreement, except in the types of 
facilities excluded from the Protected Territory described below. Your Protected Territory 
is not exclusive, because we retain rights to Non-Traditional Sites as described below. 
Because your Protected Territory is not exclusive, we are required to include the following 
statement: “You will not receive an exclusive territory. You may face competition from other 
franchisees, from outlets that we own, or from other channels of distribution or competitive 
brands that we control.”   

The factors affecting the size of the Protected Territory will be demographic factors, 
concentration of other businesses in the vicinity, existing and potential restaurant 
competition, projections of growth in the area, and the economic environment. Except for 
unique facilities like an airport terminal, military base, etc., all franchisees will receive a 
Protected Territory. The Protected Territory usually will be described as a radius from the 
Restaurant that will vary from 1/20th of a mile to 5 miles in large metropolitan locations, 
and from 1 to 5 miles in other localities.   

Golden Corral reserves the right to use alternative distribution channels, including 
the Internet, within your Protected Territory using the Proprietary Marks or other 
trademarks.  More specifically, Golden Corral retains the rights:    

 to own, acquire, establish and operate, and to franchise others to establish and 
operate, Restaurants utilizing the Proprietary Marks and/or the System at 
Non-Traditional Sites;  

 to sell and distribute any products under any proprietary marks, including the 
Proprietary Marks, at retail or wholesale, directly or indirectly, or license 
others to sell or distribute them; and 

 to own, acquire, establish and/or operate, and franchise others to establish 
and operate, other restaurant concepts now or subsequently offered by 
Golden Corral, as well as businesses under proprietary marks other than the 
Proprietary Marks or other systems, whether the restaurant concepts or 
businesses are similar to or different from the Restaurant, at any location 
within or outside the Protected Territory.   

We can undertake these activities both within and outside the Protected Territory, 
regardless of proximity to your Approved Location or the financial impact to the Restaurant, 
and without offering you any rights. 

Golden Corral also retains the right outside the Protected Territory to establish and 
operate and to franchise others to establish and operate, Restaurants utilizing the 
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Proprietary Marks and/or the System, at or from any location, regardless of its proximity to 
the Approved Location or the financial impact to your Restaurant. 

We are not restricted from soliciting or accepting orders from, or selling products or 
services using any trademarks to, consumers located within your Protected Territory, 
including orders, products or services offered from other distribution channels, such as the 
Internet, catalogues, telemarketing or other direct marketing sales. If we do so, we will not 
pay any compensation to you. 

You must operate your Restaurant business solely at the Restaurant’s premises.  You 
are not permitted to sell products or services at, from or to any other location, but you may 
deliver products sold at your Restaurant to off-site locations and, for special events, sell 
products from a location that you neither own nor control. You may solicit and accept orders 
through other distribution channels, such as the Internet, catalogues, telemarketing or other 
direct marketing sales. 

The Franchise Agreement does not grant you any option, right of first refusal, or 
similar rights to additional franchises. 

As of the date of this disclosure document, neither Golden Corral nor any affiliate of 
Golden Corral has established, nor do they presently intend to establish, other franchises or 
company-owned outlets selling or leasing similar products or services under a different 
trade name or trademark, but Golden Corral and its affiliates retain the right to do so. If 
Golden Corral franchises other restaurant concepts in the future, we will have the right to 
locate these other restaurants within your Protected Territory, provided they do not use the 
concept licensed to you. 

If you become a franchisee and if you have a conflict with another Golden Corral 
Restaurant concerning customers, territory, the degree of our support, or any other subject, 
you should contact your Division President. If you are not satisfied with the decision of your 
Division President, you may contact Lance Trenary (please see Item 2), who will undertake 
a separate review. Conflict issues will be addressed on a case by case basis, but you should 
be aware that Golden Corral does not have any right to restrict its affiliates’ development or 
operation of restaurants or the products or services sold in these restaurants. 

 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank] 
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ITEM 13 
TRADEMARKS 

Development Agreement 

The Development Agreement does not grant you any right to use or license others to 
use the Proprietary Marks. 

Franchise Agreement 

You receive a license to use the Proprietary Marks solely for the operation of the 
Restaurant in conformance with the Franchise Agreement. You may not use the Proprietary 
Marks as part of your corporate name. GCC has registered the following principal marks on 
the Principal Register of the United States Patent and Trademark Office: 

Mark      Registration No.  Registration Date 
 
MAKING PLEASURABLE DINING  1,384,854   February 2, 1986 
AFFORDABLE 

THE BRASS BELL BAKERY  1,698,228   June 30, 1992 

CORRAL CLUB  1,834,131   May 3, 1994 

GOLDEN CHOICE BUFFET  1,913,962   August 22, 1995 

CIN-A-GOLD  1,948,971   January 16, 1996 

GOLDEN CORRAL  2,059,338   May 6, 1997 

GOLDEN TO GO  2,807,972   January 27, 2004 

EVERYONE DESERVES A GOOD MEAL  2,900,842   November 2, 2004 

HELP YOURSELF TO HAPPINESS  3,738,120   January 10, 2010 

CHOCOLATE WONDERFALL  4,130,915   April 24, 2012 

GOLDEN CORRAL BUFFET & GRILL  4,784,596   August 4, 2015 

GOLDEN CORRAL  5,867,921   September 24, 2019 

THE ONLY ONE FOR EVERYONE  5,922,831   November 26, 2019 

THE ONLY ONE FOR EVERYONE  6,228,775   December 22, 2020 

All required affidavits for these marks have been filed. 

Golden Corral has the right to use, and to license others to use, the Proprietary Marks 
under a non-exclusive Trademark License Agreement (“License Agreement”) entered into 
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between Golden Corral and GCC. The License Agreement grants Golden Corral the right to 
use and to permit others to use the Proprietary Marks during the term of the license (which 
is indefinite) for Restaurant services. However, either party may terminate the License 
Agreement with or without cause on 30 days prior written notice to the other party. If the 
License Agreement is terminated, GCC will assume all of Golden Corral’s rights and 
obligations under any franchise agreements then in effect. The License Agreement may also 
be terminated by GCC if Golden Corral transfers or attempts to transfer the License 
Agreement. 

Except as described above, there are no agreements currently in effect which 
significantly limit the right of Golden Corral to use or license the use of such Proprietary 
Marks which are material to the Restaurant. 

There are no currently effective material determinations of the Patent and Trademark 
Office, the Trademark Trial and Appeal Board, the trademark administrator of this state, or 
any court, nor any pending infringement, opposition, or cancellation proceeding, nor any 
pending material litigation involving the Proprietary Marks which may be relevant to their 
use in this state or otherwise. 

There are no infringing uses actually known to Golden Corral that could materially 
affect your use of the Proprietary Marks in this state or elsewhere. Golden Corral is not 
obligated by the Franchise Agreement, or otherwise, to protect any rights granted to you to 
use the Proprietary Marks; however, we will defend you against claims of infringement or 
unfair competition about the Proprietary Marks which are asserted against you by third 
parties. 

If litigation involving the Proprietary Marks is instituted or threatened against you, 
you must promptly notify Golden Corral and must cooperate fully in defending or settling 
such litigation. Golden Corral will undertake the defense of any such litigation and, except as 
noted below, bear the costs. The Franchise Agreement requires you to execute all documents 
requested by Golden Corral or its counsel that are necessary to obtain protection for the 
Proprietary Marks or to maintain their continued validity and enforceability. If you have 
used the Proprietary Marks according to the terms of the Franchise Agreement, we will 
defend you at our expense and reimburse you for your out-of-pocket costs in cooperating 
with the defense. If you have not used the Proprietary Marks in accordance with the 
Franchise Agreement, we will defend you at your expense and will not reimburse you any 
out-of-pocket expenses related to the defense or any judgments entered or settlements 
made. 

You also must comply with our instructions in filing and maintaining any requisite 
trade name or fictitious name registrations. 

The Franchise Agreement provides that any use of the Proprietary Marks not 
authorized by its terms will be deemed an infringement. You are prohibited from using the 
Proprietary Marks as part of your corporate or other legal name. 
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Golden Corral reserves the right to substitute different Proprietary Marks for use in 
identifying the System and the businesses that use these Proprietary Marks if Golden Corral 
can no longer use or license the use of the Proprietary Marks or if Golden Corral, in its sole 
discretion, determines that substitution of different Proprietary Marks will be beneficial to 
the System. 

If we require you to substitute different Proprietary Marks for any reason, including 
as a result of a proceeding or settlement, you must bear the costs of such substitution. 

ITEM 14 
PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS, AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION 

Patents and Copyrights 

Golden Corral does not own any patents that are material to the franchise. We and 
our affiliates claim copyright protection for our advertising materials, the Manual, training 
materials, our website, and any other written, photographic, audio or other materials.  
Neither we nor our affiliates have registered the copyrights in any of these materials. You 
can use the materials only for the purpose of developing and operating your Restaurants.  

Proprietary Information 

Golden Corral will supply you with proprietary information related to operating the 
Restaurant. This includes the information in the Manual, building plans and specifications, 
all training materials, “Product Recipes,” the “Administrative Guide,” the “Menu Manager,” 
“Marketing Manual,” and any other information that Golden Corral may designate as 
confidential. 

You must keep the Manual and any other confidential information secret and 
confidential. You must not copy, duplicate, record, or otherwise reproduce confidential 
materials or make them available to any unauthorized person. 

The Manual is the Golden Corral’s property. Golden Corral may revise the contents of 
the Manual or other confidential information and you must comply with each new or 
changed standard or procedure. You must keep the Manual in a secure place on the 
Restaurant premises. You also must ensure that your copy of the Manual is kept up to date.  
If there is any dispute concerning the contents of the Manual, the terms of the master copy 
of the Manual maintained at Golden Corral’s principal office will be controlling. 

You and your directors, officers, general partners, and Restaurant management 
employees must, at the time of their becoming associated with you, execute agreements to 
maintain the confidentiality of information they receive during employment at the 
Restaurant. 
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ITEM 15 
OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE 

IN THE ACTUAL OPERATION OF THE FRANCHISE BUSINESS 

You (or if you are a corporation, limited liability company, partnership, or other 
entity, an individual principal who has been approved by us as your Operations Principal) 
must devote substantial time, energy, and best efforts to the management, supervision and 
operation of the Restaurant or, in the case of a developer, to the management, supervision 
and operation of the business. The Restaurant and business must be under the direct 
supervision of you or your Operations Principal. The Operations Principal must, if so 
required by Golden Corral, own at least a 10% equity interest in the developer and/or 
franchisee for which he or she serves as the Operations Principal; must attend and complete 
Golden Corral’s training program as described in Items 6, 9 and 11, above; and must be a 
person who, in Golden Corral’s sole judgment, possesses restaurant operations experience 
at a level appropriate to manage the number and type(s) of Restaurants to be developed by 
the developer or franchisee.   

A manager who has successfully completed our training program must be present in 
each Restaurant at all times during the Restaurant’s operation. This manager must satisfy 
our criteria for qualified managers. You are not obligated to offer any equity interest to the 
manager, but the manager’s compensation package must be no less than any minimum 
standards we establish. 

If your approved Operations Principal has not attended and completed Golden 
Corral’s manager training program (as described in Items 6, 9 and 11) before you sign the 
Development Agreement, you must employ throughout the term of the Development 
Agreement and any Franchise Agreement signed under the Development Agreement (and 
regardless of whether your Operations Principal subsequently attends and completes the 
manager training program) one additional manager in excess of the number otherwise 
required in each Restaurant, and you must also employ a multi-unit supervisor. The multi-
unit supervisor must successfully complete Golden Corral’s manager training program for 
certified managers before you may open your fifth Restaurant.  If the Operations Principal 
dies, is incapacitated or no longer is associated with you, or ceases to devote substantial time, 
energy and best efforts to management of the franchised business, you must name a new 
Operations Principal, and if the new Operations Principal has not attended and completed 
Golden Corral’s manager training program and does not work as a full-time certified 
manager in the Restaurant, you must retain and/or continue to retain an additional manager 
in each Restaurant within three months.  

Unless your business is organized as a sole proprietorship, you must designate an 
individual to act as your spokesperson who will have full authority to speak on your behalf 
and bind and commit you with respect to all of your rights, obligations, and performance 
under your Franchise Agreement or Area Development Agreement. The Operations Principal 
may also serve as your spokesperson if you so desire. Once you select your spokesperson, 
he/she cannot be changed without our prior written consent. 
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If the franchisee or developer is a business entity, at our request, any holder of an 
interest in the franchisee or developer must sign a guarantee of the franchisee’s or 
developer’s obligations to us under the Franchise Agreement or Development Agreement. In 
addition, at our request, you must provide us with executed agreements required by the 
Franchise Agreement or Development Agreement (including agreements applicable upon 
the termination of the person’s relationship with you) from your managers, officers, 
directors, and owners. Your managers must sign confidentiality and in-term and post-term 
non-compete agreements. You may not permit an individual to have access to any 
confidential aspect of the System or any Restaurant before signing a confidentiality and non-
compete agreement. All such agreements must be in forms satisfactory to us, including 
specific identification of Golden Corral as a third-party beneficiary with the independent 
right to enforce the agreement. 

ITEM 16 
RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE 

FRANCHISEE MAY SELL 

You must sell or offer for sale only products, food, beverages, and other menu items 
which meet Golden Corral’s standards of quality and quantity, which have been expressly 
approved for sale in writing by Golden Corral, and which have been prepared in accordance 
with Golden Corral’s methods, techniques, and specifications. You must sell or offer for sale 
all approved items; must not deviate from Golden Corral’s standards and specifications for 
serving or selling such items without Golden Corral’s prior written consent; and must 
discontinue selling and offering for sale any items which Golden Corral may disapprove in 
writing. We currently permit, but do not require, serving alcohol in your Restaurant.  

Golden Corral reserves the right to vary menu items among franchisees to conform to 
regional variations in cooking and taste, as well as to conduct product promotional tests and 
programs. Golden Corral also has the unlimited right to change the types of authorized goods 
and services that you may sell. You are free to set prices for your menu items, products and 
services, but Golden Corral may, where allowed by applicable law, establish maximum prices 
to facilitate advertising and competitive strategies. 

You must use the Restaurant premises solely for the operation of the Restaurant; 
must keep the Restaurant open and in normal operation for such minimum hours and days 
as Golden Corral may specify; and must not permit the use of the premises for any other 
purpose or activity without first obtaining our written consent. The Restaurant premises 
may not have any signs, telephone booths, newspaper racks, video games, pinball machines, 
jukeboxes, cigarette vending machines, or any other types of amusement or vending 
machines, except as permitted in the Manual or otherwise approved by Golden Corral in 
writing. 

Golden Corral does not impose any other restrictions in the Franchise Agreement or 
otherwise concerning the goods or services which you may offer or as to the customers to 
whom you may sell. 
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ITEM 17 

RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
 

THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP 
 
The following table lists certain important provisions of the Franchise Agreement, 
Area Development Agreement, and Coastal Equipment Purchase and Sale Agreement.  
You should read these provisions in the agreements attached to this disclosure 
document as Exhibits C, D and H.   

Provision 
Section in 
Agreements Summary 

a. Length of the franchise 
term 

§ 2.1 of Franchise Agreement.  
§ 4 of Area Development 
Agreement. Not applicable to 
Coastal Agreement. 

For the Franchise Agreement, 
from date of Agreement 
execution through the 15th 
anniversary date of the 
Restaurant’s opening.  For the 
Area Development Agreement, 
depends upon Development 
Schedule (may be 2-5 years).  

For new openings in sites 
vacated by competitors (see 
Items 1 and 5), the term of the 
Franchise Agreement will not 
exceed 10 years. 

b. Renewal or extension of 
the term 

§ 2.2 of Franchise Agreement.  
Not applicable to other 
agreements. 

Two renewal terms of 5 years 
each, subject to contractual 
prerequisites described in c. 
below; however, we will not 
be obligated to renew your 
Agreement if we have 
determined in good faith to 
cease offering new and 
renewal franchises within the 
state where your Restaurant is 
located, subject to certain pre-
conditions described in 
Section 2.3.  

For new openings in sites 
vacated by competitors (see 
Items 1 and 5), there are no 
renewal provisions. 
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Provision 
Section in 
Agreements Summary 

c. Requirements for you to 
renew or extend 

§ 2 of Franchise Agreement.  
Not applicable to other 
agreements. 

Conditions include:  Notice, 
renovation of the Restaurant, 
no default, satisfaction of 
monetary obligations, sign a 
release, and other conditions.  
You must sign our then-
current form of franchise 
agreement, and this new 
agreement will likely contain 
materially different terms and 
conditions than the original 
contract. 

d. Termination by you Not applicable to any 
agreement. 

Not applicable 

e. Termination by us without 
cause 

Not applicable to any 
agreement. 

Not applicable 

f. Termination by us with 
cause 

§ 14 of Franchise Agreement.  
§ 1.6 and § 6 of Area 
Development Agreement. Not 
applicable to Coastal 
Agreement. 

Breach of Agreement and 
other grounds. 

g. “Cause” defined – curable 
defaults 

§ 14 of Franchise Agreement.  
§ 6 of Area Development 
Agreement. Not applicable to 
Coastal Agreement. 

Failure to pay monies owed to 
us, failure to obtain our 
consent as required, failure to 
maintain standards and 
procedures, and other 
reasons. 
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Provision 
Section in 
Agreements Summary 

h. “Cause” defined – non-
curable defaults 

§ 14 of Franchise Agreement.  
§ 1.6 and § 6 of Area 
Development Agreement. Not 
applicable to Coastal 
Agreement. 

Bankruptcy (this provision 
may not be enforceable under 
the U.S. Bankruptcy Code 11 
U.S.C. § 101 et seq.), voluntary 
abandonment, if you or a 
principal is convicted or 
enters a plea with 
adjudication of guilt withheld 
or suspended of a felony or a 
crime involving moral 
turpitude or engages in 
conduct which is reasonably 
likely to adversely affect key 
components of our business, 
improper transfer, violation of 
non-compete obligations, and 
other reasons. 

Under Area Development 
Agreement, in addition to the 
above reasons, your failure to 
comply with the Development 
Schedule or your failure to 
assume the contracts and 
reimburse our development 
costs for a site we have offered 
to you. 

i. Your obligations on 
termination or non-
renewal 

§ 15 of Franchise Agreement.  
§ 6 of Area Development 
Agreement. Not applicable to 
Coastal Agreement. 

Obligations include:  
Discontinue development or 
operations; pay amounts due 
(including, for an early 
termination caused by your 
default, liquidated damages 
for the royalty fees and 
advertising fees that would 
have been paid in the 
remainder of the term); give 
us all domain names and 
websites associated with the 
Restaurant; and others. 

j. Assignment of contract by 
us 

§ 13 of Franchise Agreement.  
§ 7 of Area Development 
Agreement. Not applicable to 
Coastal Agreement. 

No restriction on our right to 
transfer. 
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Provision 
Section in 
Agreements Summary 

k. “Transfer” by you  
- defined 

§ 13 of Franchise Agreement.  
§ 7 of Area Development 
Agreement. Not applicable to 
Coastal Agreement. 

Covers transfer of interest in 
either Agreement, the 
Restaurant, the assets of your 
business, and others.  Area 
developers may not make any 
partial assignments. 

l. Our approval of transfer by 
you 

§ 13 of Franchise Agreement.  
§ 7 of Area Development 
Agreement. Not applicable to 
Coastal Agreement. 

We have the right to approve 
transfers. 

m. Conditions for our 
approval of transfer 

§ 13 of Franchise Agreement.  
§ 7 of Area Development 
Agreement. Not applicable to 
Coastal Agreement. 

Conditions include:  Payment 
of amounts due; non-default; 
general release; transferee 
qualifications; presence of 
approved Operations 
Principal, if required by us; 
continuing liability; others. 

n. Our right of first refusal to 
acquire your business 

§ 13 of Franchise Agreement.  
§ 7 of Area Development 
Agreement. Not applicable to 
Coastal Agreement. 

We can match any offer. 

o. Our option to purchase 
your business 

§ 15 of Franchise Agreement.  
Not applicable in Area 
Development Agreement. Not 
applicable to Coastal 
Agreement. 

We may purchase the 
Restaurant upon expiration or 
termination of the franchise. 

p. Your death or disability § 13 of Franchise Agreement.  
§ 7 of Area Development 
Agreement. Not applicable to 
Coastal Agreement. 

Agreement must be assigned 
to approved transferee within 
6 months. 

q. Non-competition 
covenants during the term 
of the franchise 

§ 16 of Franchise Agreement.  
§ 8 of Area Development 
Agreement. Not applicable to 
Coastal Agreement. 

You are prohibited from 
owning, operating, or having 
any direct or indirect 
association with other 
restaurants without Golden 
Corral’s consent. 
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Provision 
Section in 
Agreements Summary 

r. Non-competition 
covenants after the 
franchise is terminated or 
expires 

§ 16 of Franchise Agreement.  
§ 8 of Area Development 
Agreement. Not applicable to 
Coastal Agreement. 

Includes a 2 year prohibition 
for restaurants whose food 
offerings are similar to those 
served by a Restaurant or 
which are cafeteria-style or 
buffet restaurants, and which 
are located at or within 10 
miles of your former 
Restaurant or any other 
Golden Corral Restaurant 
located in the same 
Designated Market Area for 
which we have formed an 
advertising cooperative; and a 
1 year prohibition for the 
above-described competing 
restaurants located within 10 
miles of any other Golden 
Corral restaurant in the 
United States. 

s. Modification of the 
agreement 

§ 22 of Franchise Agreement 
§ 12 of Area Development 
Agreement. § 10(f) of Coastal 
Agreement. 

Must be in writing and signed 
by both parties. 

t. Integration/merger clause § 22 of Franchise Agreement 
§ 12 of Area Development 
Agreement. § 10(f) of Coastal 
Agreement. 

Only the terms of the 
Franchise Agreement and 
Development Agreement are 
binding (subject to state law).  
Any other promises may not 
be enforceable.  However, this 
clause will not be treated as a 
disclaimer of our 
representations in this 
disclosure document. 

u. Dispute resolution by 
arbitration or mediation 

Not applicable in any 
agreement. 

Not applicable 

v. Choice of forum § 23.2 of Franchise 
Agreement.  § 13.2 of Area 
Development Agreement. 
§ 10(d) of Coastal Agreement. 

Where we have our principal 
place of business at the time 
the litigation begins. 
Currently, North Carolina 
(subject to state law).  See 
Notes 1 and 2. 
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Provision 
Section in 
Agreements Summary 

w. Choice of law § 23.1 of Franchise 
Agreement.  § 13.1 of Area 
Development Agreement. 
§ 10(d) of Coastal Agreement. 

North Carolina (subject to 
state law).  See Notes 1 and 2. 

 
Notes: 
 
1. In addition to the provisions noted in the preceding table, the Franchise Agreement 
and Area Development Agreement contain a number of provisions that may affect your and 
our legal rights in any dispute between us, such as a mutual waiver of a jury trial, a mutual 
waiver of punitive or exemplary damages, and a reduced time frame within which either of 
us may initiate proceedings against the other. See Franchise Agreement Section 23 and Area 
Development Agreement Section 13. One or more of the three above-described provisions 
may not be enforceable under the laws of your state. We recommend that you carefully 
review all of these provisions, and the entire agreements, with your attorney. Please also 
refer to the State-Specific Disclosures and Agreement Amendments in Exhibit M for further 
details. 

2. Some states have laws that will supersede the choice of forum and/or choice of law 
provisions of these agreements. Please refer to the State-Specific Disclosures and Agreement 
Amendments in Exhibit M for further details. You also may wish to consult with your 
attorney. 

ITEM 18 
PUBLIC FIGURES 

Golden Corral does not use any public figures to promote Golden Corral Restaurant 
franchises. 

ITEM 19 
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS 

The FTC’s Franchise Rule permits a franchisor to provide information about the 
actual or potential financial performance of its franchised and/or franchisor-owned outlets, 
if there is a reasonable basis for the information, and if the information is included in the 
disclosure document.  Financial performance information that differs from that included in 
Item 19 may be given only if:  (1) a franchisor provides the actual records of an existing outlet 
you are considering buying; or (2) a franchisor supplements the information provided in this 
Item 19, for example, by providing information about possible performance at a particular 
location or under particular circumstances. 
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The following Tables present certain historical financial information for franchised 
Golden Corral Restaurants. The explanatory notes accompanying the Tables are an 
important part of the information presented.  

A. STATEMENT OF 2022 AVERAGE GROSS SALES, SELECTED EXPENSES, AND 
OPERATING INCOME OF FRANCHISED RESTAURANTS 

Table A-1 provides the average gross sales for the period December 30, 2021 through 
December 28, 2022, by building design, for 228 franchised Restaurants utilizing the GC-11S 
or GC-11M building design. Table A-1 excludes all franchised Restaurants using a building 
design other than the GC-11S and GC-11M, because only those two designs are available to 
new franchisees as of the date of this disclosure document (see Item 1). Table A-1 also 
excludes 6 GC-11M franchised Restaurants that had been in operation for less than 6 months 
as of December 28, 2022. Including Restaurants with other building designs, we had 358 
franchised Restaurants at the end of our fiscal year on December 28, 2022. 

 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank] 
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TABLE A-1 

FRANCHISED GC-11M & GC-11S RESTAURANTS 

 GC-11M GC-11S 

 Dollars Percent of 
Average Gross 

Sales 

Dollars Percent of 
Average Gross 

Sales 
     
2022 Average Gross Sales 
(Note 1) 

$3,820,456 100% $3,023,588 100% 

     
2022 Average Operating 
Costs and Expenses (Note 
2): 

    

Average Food Cost $1,465,337 38.36% $1,187,585 39.28% 
Average Labor Related 
Expenses (Note 3) 

 
$1,139,575 

 
29.83% 

 
$892,719 

 
29.53% 

Average Controllable 
Expenses (Note 4) 

 
$466,812 

 
12.22% 

 
$380,612 

 
12.59% 

     
2022 Total of Average 
Operating Costs and 
Expenses $3,071,724 80.40% $2,460,916 81.39% 
     
2022 Average Operating 

Income (Note 5) 
 

 
$748,732 

 
 

19.60% 

 
 

$562,672 

 
 

18.61% 
     
Medians:     
2022 Median Gross Sales $3,681,632 100% $2,999,819 100% 
Median Expenses:     
    Median Food Cost $1,398,720 37.99% $1,170,709 39.03% 
    Median Labor Related 
    Expenses                               

 
$1,062,134 

 
28.85% 

 
$891,501 

 
29.72% 

    Median Controllable 
    Expenses 

 
$459,775 

 
12.49% 

 
$385,792 

 
12.86% 

     
2022 Total of Median 
Operating Costs and 
Expenses 

 
 

$2,920,629 

 
 

79.33% 

 
 

$2,448,002 

 
 

81.60% 
     
2022 Median Operating 
Income 

 
$761,003 

 
20.67% 

 
$551,817 

 
18.40% 

     
Number of Restaurants 192  36  
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Number and Percent 
Above 2022 Average 
Gross Sales  

91 (47.4%)  17 (47.2%)  

     
Number and Percent 
Above 2022 Average 
Operating Costs and 
Expenses 

 
 

 
84 (43.8%) 

  
 

 
18 (50.0%) 

 

     
Number and Percent 
Above 2022 Average 
Operating Income 

 
 

88 (45.8%) 

  
 

16 (44.4%) 

 

 
Six of the franchised GC-11M Restaurants in Table A-1 had been open for more than 

six months but fewer than 12 months as of the end of the fiscal year. The data of those six 
Restaurants have been annualized to conform to the presentation in Table A-1. The 
annualized data did not have a material impact on the results shown in Table A-1. 

 
 
 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank] 
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Table A-2 is based on the same data as Table A-1, but shows only the top 20% and 
bottom 20% of GC-11M Restaurants by sales: 

 
TABLE A-2 

TOP/BOTTOM 20% OF FRANCHISED GC-11M RESTAURANTS 

 Average for Top 20% Average for Bottom 20% 

 Dollars Percent of 
Average Gross 

Sales 

Dollars Percent of 
Average Gross 

Sales 
     
2022 Average Gross Sales 
(Note 1) 

 
$5,626,265 

 
100% 

 
$2,394,737 

 
100% 

     
2022 Average Operating 
Costs and Expenses (Note 
2): 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Average Food Cost $2,115,118 37.59% $941,330 39.31% 
Average Labor Related 
Expenses (Note 3) 

 
$1,652,899 

 
29.38% 

 
$779,189 

 
32.54% 

Average Controllable 
Expenses (Note 4) 

 
$594,375 

 
10.56% 

 
$328,759 

 
13.73% 

     
2022 Total of Average 
Operating Costs and 
Expenses $4,362,391 77.54% $2,049,279 85.57% 
     
     
2022 Average Operating 

Income (Note 5) 
 

 
$1,263,874 

 
 

22.46% 

 
 

$345,459 

 
 

14.43% 
     
Medians:     
2022 Median Gross Sales $5,493,786 100% $2,493,803 100% 
Median Expenses:     
    Median Food Cost $2,014,811 36.67% $953,781 38.25% 
    Median Labor Related 
    Expenses 

 
$1,635,534    

 
29.77% 

 
$783,460 

 
31.42% 

    Median Controllable 
    Expenses 

 
$614,835 

 
11.19% 

 
$325,228 

 
13.04% 

     
2022 Total of Median 
Operating Costs and 
Expenses 

 
 

$4,265,180 

 
 

77.64% 

 
 

$2,062,469 

 
 

82.70% 
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2022 Median Operating 
Income  

 
$1,228,605 

 
22.36% 

 
$431,334 

 
17.30% 

     
Number of Restaurants in 
Group 

 
38 

  
38 

 

     
Number and Percent 
Above 2022 Average 
Gross Sales for Group 

 
 

15 (39.5%) 

 
 
 

 
 

23 (60.53%) 

 

     
Number and Percent 
Above 2022 Average 
Operating Costs and 
Expenses for Group 

 
 

 
16 (42.1%) 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
19 (50.00%) 

 

     
Number and Percent 
Above 2022 Average 
Operating Income for 
Group 

 
 

 
16 (42.1%) 

  
 

 
20 (52.63%) 

 

 

Four of the GC-11M Restaurants in Table A-2 had been open for more than six months 
but fewer than 12 months as of the end of the fiscal year. Those Restaurants’ operating 
results have been annualized to conform to the presentation in Table A-2. The annualized 
data did not have a material impact on the results shown in Table A-2. 

 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank] 
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Table A-3 is based on the same data as Table A-1, but shows only the top 20% and 
bottom 20% of GC-11S Restaurants by sales: 

TABLE A-3 
TOP/BOTTOM 20% OF FRANCHISED GC-11S RESTAURANTS 

 

 Average for Top 20% Average for Bottom 20% 

 Dollars Percent of 
Average Gross 

Sales 

Dollars Percent of 
Average Gross 

Sales 
     
2022 Average Gross Sales 
(Note 1) 

 
$4,236,371 

 
100% 

 
$1,909,493 

 
100% 

     
2022 Average Operating 
Costs and Expenses (Note 
2): 

    

Average Food Cost $1,648,948 38.92% $751,876 39.38% 
Average Labor Related 
Expenses (Note 3) 

 
$1,223,223 

 
28.87% 

 
$628,370 

 
32.91% 

Average Controllable 
Expenses (Note 4) 

 
$486,964 

 
11.49% 

 
$223,073 

 
11.68% 

     
2022 Total of Average 
Operating Costs and 
Expenses $3,359,135 79.29% $1,603,319 83.97% 
     
2022 Average Operating 

Income (Note 5) 
 

 
$877,236 

 
 

20.71% 

 
 

$306,174 

 
 

16.03% 
     
Medians:     
2022 Median Gross Sales $4,164,680 100% $2,010,399 100% 
Median Expenses:     
    Median Food Cost $1,512,478 36.32% $788,567 39.22% 
    Median Labor Related 
    Expenses 

 
$1,218,067 

 
29.25% 

 
$663,300 

 
32.99% 

   Median Controllable  
   Expenses 

 
$459,988 

 
11.19% 

 
$256,092 

 
12.74% 

     
2022 Total of Median 
Operating Costs and 
Expenses 

 
 

$3,190,533 

 
 

76.61% 

 
 

$1,707,959 

 
 

84.96% 
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2022 Median Operating 
Income 

 
$974,147 

 
23.39% 

 
$302,440 

 
15.04% 

     
Number of Restaurants in 
Group 

 
7 

  
7 

 

     
Number and Percent 
Above 2022 Average 
Gross Sales for Group 

 
 

3 (42.86%) 

  
 

5 (71.43%) 

 

     
Number and Percent 
Above 2022 Average 
Operating Costs and 
Expenses for Group 

 
 

 
3 (42.86%) 

  
 

 
5 (71.43%) 

 

     
Number and Percent 
Above 2022 Average 
Operating Income for 
Group 

 
 

 
2 (28.57%) 

  
 

 
3 (42.86%) 
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Table A-4 is based on the same data as Table A-1, but includes only the GC-11M and 
GC-11S Restaurants that have opened since 2013: 

 
TABLE A-4 

FRANCHISED GC-11M & GC-11S RESTAURANTS OPENED AFTER 
DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND OPEN FOR ENTIRE 2022 YEAR  

 GC-11M GC-11S 

 Dollars Percent of 
Average Gross 

Sales 

Dollars Percent of 
Average Gross 

Sales 
     
2022 Average Gross Sales 
(Note 1) 

$4,140,636 100% $2,613,691 100% 

     
2022 Average Operating 
Costs and Expenses (Note 
2): 

    

Average Food Cost $1,565,780 37.81% $1,003,604 38.40% 
Average Labor Related 
Expenses (Note 3) 

 
$1,348,931 

 
32.58% 

 
$764,498 

 
29.25% 

Average Controllable 
Expenses (Note 4) 

 
$471,854 

 
11.40% 

 
$331,659 

 
12.69% 

     
2022 Total of Average 
Operating Costs and 
Expenses $3,386,565 81.79% $2,099,761 80.34% 
     
2022 Average Operating 

Income (Note 5) 
 

 
$754,070 

 
 

18.21% 

 
 

$513,930 

 
 

19.66% 
     
Medians:     
2022 Median Gross Sales $4,039,974 100% $2,581,604 100% 
Median Expenses:     
    Median Food Cost $1,480,195 36.64% $1,010,772 39.15% 
    Median Labor Related 
    Expenses                               

 
$1,279,036 

 
31.66% 

 
$893,019 

 
34.59% 

   Median Controllable 
   Expenses 

 
$421,200 

 
10.43% 

 
$366,425 

 
14.19% 

     
2022 Total of Median 
Operating Costs and 
Expenses 

 
 

$3,180,430 

 
 

78.72% 

 
 

$2,270,217 

 
 

87.94% 
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2022 Median Operating 
Income 

 
$859,544 

 
21.28% 

 
$311,387 

 
12.06% 

     
Number of Restaurants 37  7  
     

Number and Percent 
Above 2022 Average 
Gross Sales  

 
 

17 (46.0%) 

  
 

3 (42.9%) 

 

     
Number and Percent 
Above 2022 Average 
Operating Costs and 
Expenses 

 
 

 
15 (40.5%) 

  
 

 
4 (57.1%) 

 

     
Number and Percent 
Above 2022 Average 
Operating Income 

 
 

14 (37.8%) 

  
 

3 (42.9%) 

 

 

The following Notes form an integral part of Tables A-1, A-2, A-3 and A-4. 

EXPLANATORY NOTES TO TABLES A-1, A-2, A-3 and A-4: 

Note 1: “Gross Sales” is defined in Item 6, Note 2. Upon information and belief, but 
without the benefit of any investigation or inquiry by us, the sales reported to us by our 
franchisees and titled “Gross Sales” reflect sales for the Restaurants included in each Table. 
Gross Sales reflect the total 2022 sales for the Restaurants included in each Table, and do not 
include sales taxes. Variations among Restaurants may be caused by a variety of factors, such 
as location, varying degrees of accuracy in the financial information that franchisees report 
to us, demographics, general economic conditions, weather conditions, menu mix, 
competition and other seasonal factors, as well as the efforts of the individual Restaurant 
management team.   

Note 2: Upon information and belief, but without the benefit of any investigation or 
inquiry by us, the costs and expenses reported to us by our franchisees and titled “Operating 
Costs and Expenses” reflect operating costs and expenses for the Restaurants included in 
each Table. The Tables reflect only operating expenses, and do not include capital expenses 
or fixed expenses such as (but not limited to) land, building and/or equipment rent, debt 
service, depreciation, advertising, administrative expenses such as accounting or legal 
expenses, taxes, licenses, or insurance. To our knowledge, the reported expenses also do not 
include (i) a 4% royalty on Gross Sales which is payable by a franchisee; (ii) the cost of any 
additional supervisory personnel; or (iii) any expenses for transportation, room and board 
for attending training refresher courses. 

Note 3: Upon information and belief, but without the benefit of any investigation or 
inquiry by us, the labor related expenses reported to us by our franchisees and titled “Labor 
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related expenses” include (i) the salary and bonuses paid by franchisees to the management 
for each Restaurant; (ii) the average expense for employees’ wages; and (iii) amounts paid 
or accrued by franchisees for employee payroll taxes, group insurance and workers’ 
compensation. 

Upon information and belief, but without the benefit of any investigation or inquiry 
by us, local market conditions and state and federal minimum wage requirements may have 
affected the reported wages and labor related expenses. 

Note 4: Upon information and belief, but without the benefit of any investigation or 
inquiry by us, the expenses reported to us by our franchisees and titled “Controllable 
Expenses” include expenses for utilities, maintenance, and sanitation supplies.   

Note 5: Upon information and belief, but without the benefit of any investigation or 
inquiry by us, average operating income is calculated as Average Gross Sales minus average 
food cost, average labor-related expenses, and average controllable expenses. To our 
knowledge, operating income is before deduction of the expenses described in Note 1. The 
amount of some of your fixed expenses, such as rent or debt service related to land, building 
and/or equipment, will depend, in part, on your total initial investment. See Item 7 for an 
estimate of your initial investment. 
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B. STATEMENT OF SAME-PERIOD AVERAGE GROSS SALES, SELECTED EXPENSES, 
AND OPERATING INCOME – 2022 VERSUS 2021 MEASUREMENT PERIODS 

Tables B-1 through B-4 present certain historical financial information for franchised Golden 
Corral Restaurants for the 24-week period from July 15, 2021 to December 29, 2021 (the 
“2021 Measurement Period”) and for the 24-week period from July 14, 2022 to December 
28, 2022 (the “2022 Measurement Period”). Each Measurement Period covers the last six 
accounting periods in our accounting calendar (periods 8 through 13) for the relevant fiscal 
year. Each accounting period is 4 weeks, so each Measurement Period is 24 weeks. We 
selected the 2021 Measurement Period based on our assessment that mid-July 2021 was 
when our franchised Restaurants began returning to normal operations from Covid-19 
pandemic restrictions. For example, we returned to TV advertising on July 19, 2021 after 
being off air for approximately 16 months. We selected the 2022 Measurement Period to 
match the period from 2021.  
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Table B-1 compares the 2022 Measurement Period to the same period in 2021 for GC-
11M Restaurants: 

TABLE B-1 
FRANCHISED GC-11M RESTAURANTS 

 2022 Measurement Period 2021 Measurement Period 

 Dollars Percent of 
Average Gross 

Sales 

Dollars Percent of 
Average Gross 

Sales 
Average Gross Sales 
(Note 1) $1,803,947 100% $1,647,994 100% 

Average Operating Costs 
and Expenses (Note 2)     

Average Food Cost 703,178 38.98% 612,603 37.17% 
Average Labor Related 
Expenses (Note 3) 536,855 29.76% 492,897 29.91% 

Average Controllable 
Expenses (Note 4) 220,623 12.23% 204,545 12.41% 

     
Total of Average 
Operating Costs and 
Expenses 

$1,460,656 80.97% $1,310,045 79.49% 

     
Average Operating 

Income (Note 5) $343,291 19.03% $337,949 20.51% 

     
Medians:     
Median Gross Sales $1,723,119 100% $1,583,202 100% 
Expenses (Note 2)     
    Median Food Cost $670,283 38.90% $573,412 36.22% 
    Median Labor Related 
    Expenses (Note 3) 502,610 29.17% 462,981 29.24% 

    Median Controllable  
    Expenses (Note 4) 212,075 12.31% 195,365 12.34% 

     
Total of Median 
Operating Costs and 
Expenses 

$1,384,967 80.38% $1,231,757 77.80% 

     
Operating Income (Note 
5) $338,152 19.62% $351,446 22.20% 

     
Number of Restaurants 192  156  
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Number and Percent 
Above Average Gross 
Sales  

86 (44.79%)     66 (42.31%)  

     
Number and Percent 
Above Average 
Operating Costs and 
Expenses 

82 (42.71%)  68 (43.59%)  

     
Number and Percent 
Above Average 
Operating Income 

88 (45.83%)  65 (41.67%)  
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Table B-2 compares the 2022 Measurement Period to the same period in 2021 for GC-
11S Restaurants: 

TABLE B-2 
FRANCHISED GC-11S RESTAURANTS 

 2022 Measurement Period 2021 Measurement Period 

 Dollars Percent of 
Average Gross 

Sales 

Dollars Percent of 
Average Gross 

Sales 
Average Gross Sales 
(Note 1) $1,445,470 100% $1,293,781 100% 

Average Operating Costs 
and Expenses (Note 2)     

Average Food Cost 571,539 39.54% 494,879 38.25% 
Average Labor Related 
Expenses (Note 3) 422,655 29.24% 409,676 31.66% 

Average Controllable 
Expenses (Note 4) 185,598 12.84% 184,533 14.26% 

     
Total of Average 
Operating Costs and 
Expenses 

$1,179,792 81.62% $1,089,088 84.18% 

     
Average Operating 

Income (Note 5) $265,677 18.38% $204,693 15.82% 

     
Medians:     
Median Gross Sales $1,423,994 100% $1,233,213 100% 
Expenses (Note 2)     
    Median Food Cost $556,912 39.11% $486,609 39.46% 
    Median Labor Related 
    Expenses (Note 3) 424,594 29.82% 374,293 30.35% 

    Median Controllable  
    Expenses (Note 4) 187,052 13.14% 181,056 14.68% 

     
Total of Median 
Operating Costs and 
Expenses 

$1,168,557 82.06% $1,041,957 84.49% 

     
Operating Income (Note 
5) $255,437 17.94% $191,256 15.51% 

     
Number of Restaurants 36  32  
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Number and Percent 
Above Average Gross 
Sales  

17 (47.22%)  13 (40.63%)  

     
Number and Percent 
Above Average 
Operating Costs and 
Expenses 

17 (47.22%)  14 (43.75%)  

     
Number and Percent 
Above Average 
Operating Income 

16 (44.44%)  13 (40.63%)  
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Table B-3 is based on the same data for the 2022 Measurement Period as in Table B-
1, but shows only the top 20% and bottom 20% of GC-11M Restaurants by sales: 

TABLE B-3 
TOP/BOTTOM 20% OF FRANCHISED GC-11M RESTAURANTS  

FOR 2022 MEASUREMENT PERIOD 

 Top 20% Bottom 20% 

 Dollars Percent of 
Average Gross 

Sales 

Dollars Percent of 
Average Gross 

Sales 
Average Gross Sales 
(Note 1) $2,653,706 100% $1,131,222 100% 

Average Operating Costs 
and Expenses (Note 2)     

Average Food Cost $1,014,061 38.21% $457,392 40.43% 
Average Labor Related 
Expenses (Note 3) 769,282 28.99% 359,415 31.77% 

Average Controllable 
Expenses (Note 4) 286,078 10.78% 156,257 13.81% 

     
Total of Average 
Operating Costs and 
Expenses 

$2,069,421 77.98% $973,064 86.02% 

     
Average Operating 

Income (Note 5) $584,285 22.02% $158,157 13.98% 

     
Medians:     
Median Gross Sales $2,563,042 100% $1,177,060 100% 
Expenses (Note 2)     
    Median Food Cost $972,635 37.95% $469,470 39.88% 
    Median Labor Related 
    Expenses (Note 3) 730,487 28.50% 370,643 31.49% 

    Median Controllable  
    Expenses (Note 4) 301,950 11.78% 151,836 12.90% 

     
Total of Median 
Operating Costs and 
Expenses 

$2,005,072 78.23% $991,949 84.27% 

     
Operating Income (Note 
5) $557,970 21.77% $185,111 15.73% 
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Number of Restaurants 38  38  
     

Number and Percent 
Above Average Gross 
Sales  

16 (42.11%) 
 
 
 

24 (63.16%)  

     
Number and Percent 
Above Average 
Operating Costs and 
Expenses 

20 (52.63%) 

 
 
 
 

22 (57.89%)  

     
Number and Percent 
Above Average 
Operating Income 

18 (47.37%)  22 (57.89%)  
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Table B-4 is based on the same data for the 2022 Measurement Period as in Table B-
2, but shows only the top 20% and bottom 20% of GC-11S Restaurants by sales: 

TABLE B-4 
TOP/BOTTOM 20% OF FRANCHISED GC-11S RESTAURANTS  

FOR 2022 MEASUREMENT PERIOD 

 Top 20% Bottom 20% 

 Dollars Percent of 
Average Gross 

Sales 

Dollars Percent of 
Average Gross 

Sales 
Average Gross Sales 
(Note 1) $2,023,486 100% $928,771 100% 

Average Operating Costs 
and Expenses (Note 2)     

Average Food Cost $787,777 38.93% $361,362 38.91% 
Average Labor Related 
Expenses (Note 3) 579,990 28.66% 292,105 31.45% 

Average Controllable 
Expenses (Note 4) 235,129 11.62% 120,562 12.98% 

     
Total of Average 
Operating Costs and 
Expenses 

$1,602,896 79.21% $774,029 83.34% 

     
Average Operating 

Income (Note 5) $420,590 20.79% $154,741 16.66% 

     
Medians:     
Median Gross Sales $2,008,093 100% $959,852 100% 
Expenses (Note 2)     
    Median Food Cost $738,064 36.75% $368,814 38.42% 
    Median Labor Related 
    Expenses (Note 3) 574,649 28.62% 317,134 33.04% 

    Median Controllable  
    Expenses (Note 4) 211,908 10.55% 125,624 13.09% 

     
Total of Median 
Operating Costs and 
Expenses 

$1,524,621 75.92% $811,572 84.55% 

     
Operating Income (Note 
5) $483,472 24.08% $148,280 15.45% 
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Number of Restaurants 7  7  
     

Number and Percent 
Above Average Gross 
Sales  

3 (42.86%) 
 
 
 

5 (71.43%)  

     
Number and Percent 
Above Average 
Operating Costs and 
Expenses 

3 (42.86%) 

 
 
 
 

4 (57.14%)  

     
Number and Percent 
Above Average 
Operating Income 

2 (28.57%)  2 (28.57%)  

The following Notes form an integral part of Tables B-1 through B-4. 

EXPLANATORY NOTES TO TABLES B-1, B-2, B-3 and B-4: 

Note 1: “Gross Sales” is defined in Item 6, Note 2. Upon information and belief, but 
without the benefit of any investigation or inquiry by us, the sales reported to us by our 
franchisees and titled “Gross Sales” reflect sales for the Restaurants included in each Table 
for the 2022 Measurement Period and the 2021 Measurement Period, and do not include 
sales taxes. Variations among Restaurants may be caused by a variety of factors, such as 
location, varying degrees of accuracy in the financial information that franchisees report to 
us, demographics, general economic conditions, weather conditions, menu mix, competition 
and other seasonal factors, as well as the efforts of the individual Restaurant management 
team.   

Note 2: Upon information and belief, but without the benefit of any investigation or 
inquiry by us, the costs and expenses reported to us by our franchisees and titled “Operating 
Costs and Expenses” reflect operating costs and expenses for the Restaurants included in 
each Table for the 2022 Measurement Period and the 2021 Measurement Period. The Tables 
reflect only operating expenses, and do not include capital expenses or fixed expenses such 
as (but not limited to) land, building and/or equipment rent, debt service, depreciation, 
advertising, administrative expenses such as accounting or legal expenses, taxes, licenses, or 
insurance. To our knowledge, the reported expenses also do not include (i) a 4% royalty on 
Gross Sales which is payable by a franchisee; (ii) the cost of any additional supervisory 
personnel; or (iii) any expenses for transportation, room and board for attending training 
refresher courses. 

Note 3: Upon information and belief, but without the benefit of any investigation or 
inquiry by us, the labor related expenses reported to us by our franchisees and titled “Labor 
related expenses” include (i) the salary and bonuses paid by franchisees to the management 
for each Restaurant; (ii) the average expense for employees’ wages; and (iii) amounts paid 
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or accrued by franchisees for employee payroll taxes, group insurance and workers’ 
compensation. 

Upon information and belief, but without the benefit of any investigation or inquiry 
by us, local market conditions and state and federal minimum wage requirements may have 
affected the reported wages and labor related expenses. 

Note 4: Upon information and belief, but without the benefit of any investigation or 
inquiry by us, the expenses reported to us by our franchisees and titled “Controllable 
Expenses” include expenses for utilities, maintenance, and sanitation supplies.   

Note 5: Upon information and belief, but without the benefit of any investigation or 
inquiry by us, average operating income is calculated as Average Gross Sales minus average 
food cost, average labor-related expenses, and average controllable expenses. To our 
knowledge, operating income is before deduction of the expenses described in Note 1. The 
amount of some of your fixed expenses, such as rent or debt service related to land, building 
and/or equipment, will depend, in part, on your total initial investment. See Item 7 for an 
estimate of your initial investment. 

* * * 

The financial performance representations appearing in the Tables are historic 
information.  

Some outlets have sold this amount. Your individual results may differ. There 
is no assurance that you will sell as much. 

Written substantiation for these financial performance representations will be made 
available to prospective franchisees upon reasonable request.  

We recommend that you make your own independent investigation to determine 
whether or not the franchise may be profitable, and consult with an attorney and other 
advisors before signing the Area Development Agreement or Franchise Agreement. 

Other than the preceding financial performance representations, Golden Corral does 
not make any financial performance representations. We also do not authorize our 
employees or representatives to make any such representations either orally or in writing.  
If you are purchasing an existing outlet, however, we may provide you with the actual 
records of that outlet. If you receive any other financial performance information or 
projections of your future income, you should report it to the franchisor’s management by 
contacting R. Chappell Phillips, in writing at Golden Corral Franchising Systems, Inc., P.O. Box 
29502, Raleigh, North Carolina 27626, the Federal Trade Commission, and the appropriate 
state regulatory agencies. 
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ITEM 20 
OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION 

Table No. 1 

Systemwide Outlet Summary 
For fiscal years 2020 – 2022 

Outlet Type Year Outlets at the 
Start of the Year 

Outlets at the End 
of the Year 

Net Change 

Franchised 2020 448 412 -36 

2021 412 355 -57 

2022 355 358 3 

Company-Owned 2020 35 8 -27 

2021 8 4 -4 

2022 4 4 0 

Total Outlets 2020 483 420 -63 

2021 420 359 -61 

2022 359 362 3 
 
 
 

Table No. 2 
 

Transfers of Outlets from Franchisees to New Owners (other than the Franchisor) 
For fiscal years 2020 to 2022 

 

State Year Number of Transfers 

Alabama 2020 1 

2021 0 

2022 0 

Arizona 2020 1 

2021 0 

2022 0 

Arkansas 2020 4 

2021 0 

2022 1 
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State Year Number of Transfers 

California 2020 4 

2021 0 

2022 1 

Florida 2020 1 

2021 0 

2022 1 

Georgia 2020 1 

2021 1 

2022 0 

Idaho 2020 0 

2021 0 

2022 2 

Illinois 2020 0 

2021 2 

2022 0 

Indiana 2020 2 

2021 0 

2022 1 

Iowa 2020 0 

2021 0 

2022 2 

Kentucky 2020 1 

2021 1 

2022 0 

Louisiana 2020 0 

2021 1 

2022 0 

Michigan 2020 0 

2021 0 

2022 1 

Mississippi 2020 1 
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State Year Number of Transfers 

2021 0 

2022 0 

Missouri 2020 2 

2021 0 

2022 0 

Nebraska 2020 0 

2021 0 

2022 1 

North Carolina 2020 0 

2021 1 

2022 0 

Ohio 2020 1 

2021 1 

2022 1 

Oklahoma 2020 0 

2021 1 

2022 3 

Tennessee 2020 1 

2021 0 

2022 0 

Texas 2020 2 

2021 1 

2022 0 

Wisconsin 2020 0 

2021 0 

2022 1 

Total 2020 18 

2021 10 

2022 15 
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Table No. 3 
Status of Franchised Outlets 

For fiscal years 2020 to 2022 
 

State Year 

 

Outlets at 
Start of 

Year 

Outlets 
Opened 

Termi-
nations 

Non-
Renewals 

Reacquired 
by 

Franchisor 

Ceased 
Operations 

Other 
Reasons 

Outlets 
at End of 
the Year 

Alabama 

  

  

2020 7 2 3 0 0 0 6 

2021 6 1 0 0 0 0 7 

2022 7 0 0 0 0 0 7 

Alaska 

  

  

2020 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2021 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

Arizona 

  

  

2020 13 1 0 0 0 0 14 

2021 14 0 4 1 0 0 9 

2022 9 0 0 0 0 0 9 

Arkansas 

  

  

2020 6 0 0 0 0 0 6 

2021 6 0 0 0 0 0 6 

2022 6 0 0 0 0 0 6 

California 

  

  

2020 19 1 0 0 0 0 20 

2021 20 1 1 0 0 0 20 

2022 20 0 0 0 0 0 20 

Colorado 

  

  

2020 9 0 0 0 0 0 9 

2021 9 0 1 0 0 0 8 

2022 8 0 1 0 0 0 7 

Florida 

  

  

2020 51 2 2 3 0 0 48 

2021 48 2 13 1 0 0 36 

2022 36 0 4 0 0 0 32 

Georgia 

  

  

2020 27 0 6 1 0 0 20 

2021 20 0 2 0 0 0 18 

2022 18 0 0 0 0 0 18 
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State Year 

 

Outlets at 
Start of 

Year 

Outlets 
Opened 

Termi-
nations 

Non-
Renewals 

Reacquired 
by 

Franchisor 

Ceased 
Operations 

Other 
Reasons 

Outlets 
at End of 
the Year 

Idaho 

  

  

2020 5 0 1 0 0 0 4 

2021 4 0 0 1 0 0 3 

2022 3 0 0 0 0 0 3 

Illinois 

  

  

2020 17 0 0 0 0 0 17 

2021 17 2 3 0 0 1 15 

2022 15 1 0 0 0 0 16 

Indiana 

  

  

2020 15 1 4 0 0 0 12 

2021 12 1 1 0 0 1 11 

2022 11 2 0 0 0 0 13 

Iowa 

  

  

2020 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 

2021 2 2 1 0 0 0 3 

2022 3 0 1 0 0 0 2 

Kansas 

  

  

2020 5 0 0 0 0 0 5 

2021 5 0 1 0 0 0 4 

2022 4 0 0 0 0 0 4 

Kentucky 

  

  

2020 13 0 6 0 0 0 7 

2021 7 1 2 0 0 0 6 

2022 6 3 0 0 0 0 9 

Louisiana 

  

  

2020 3 1 0 0 0 0 4 

2021 4 2 0 0 0 0 6 

2022 6 1 0 0 0 0 7 

Maryland 

  

  

2020 10 0 0 0 0 0 10 

2021 10 0 1 1 0 1 7 

2022 7 1 0 0 0 0 8 

Massachusetts 

  

  

2020 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2021 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

Michigan 

  

  

2020 7 1 1 0 0 0 7 

2021 7 0 1 0 0 0 6 

2022 6 0 1 0 0 0 5 
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State Year 

 

Outlets at 
Start of 

Year 

Outlets 
Opened 

Termi-
nations 

Non-
Renewals 

Reacquired 
by 

Franchisor 

Ceased 
Operations 

Other 
Reasons 

Outlets 
at End of 
the Year 

Minnesota 

  

  

2020 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 

2021 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 

2022 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 

Mississippi 

  

  

2020 5 0 1 0 0 0 4 

2021 4 1 0 0 0 0 5 

2022 5 0 0 0 0 0 5 

Missouri 

  

  

2020 15 0 0 1 0 0 14 

2021 14 0 1 0 0 0 13 

2022 13 0 1 0 0 0 12 

Montana 

  

  

2020 2 0 1 1 0 0 0 

2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Nebraska 

  

  

2020 3 0 0 0 0 0 3 

2021 3 0 1 0 0 0 2 

2022 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 

Nevada 

  

  

2020 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 

2021 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 

2022 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 

New 
Hampshire 

 

 

2020 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 

2021 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

New Jersey 

  

  

2020 3 0 0 0 0 0 3 

2021 3 0 2 0 0 0 1 

2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

New Mexico 2020 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 
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State Year 

 

Outlets at 
Start of 

Year 

Outlets 
Opened 

Termi-
nations 

Non-
Renewals 

Reacquired 
by 

Franchisor 

Ceased 
Operations 

Other 
Reasons 

Outlets 
at End of 
the Year 

  

  

2021 1 3 0 0 0 0 4 

2022 4 1 0 0 0 0 5 

New York 

  

  

2020 7 1 0 0 0 0 8 

2021 8 0 1 1 0 0 6 

2022 6 0 0 0 0 0 6 

North Carolina 

  

  

2020 32 2 3 1 0 0 30 

2021 30 0 4 0 0 1 25 

2022 25 1 0 0 0 0 26 

Ohio 

  

  

2020 24 0 8 2 0 0 14 

2021 14 2 3 0 0 0 13 

2022 13 0 0 0 0 0 13 

Oklahoma 

  

  

2020 7 1 0 1 0 0 7 

2021 7 0 0 0 0 0 7 

2022 7 0 0 0 0 0 7 

Pennsylvania 

  

  

2020 8 0 0 0 0 0 8 

2021 8 0 1 0 0 0 7 

2022 7 0 0 1 0 0 6 

Puerto Rico 

  

  

2020 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 

2021 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

South Carolina 

  

  

2020 14 1 1 2 0 0 12 

2021 12 0 3 0 0 0 9 

2022 9 0 0 0 0 0 9 

South Dakota 2020 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2021 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

Tennessee 

  

2020 11 0 3 0 0 0 8 

2021 8 0 0 0 0 0 8 
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State Year 

 

Outlets at 
Start of 

Year 

Outlets 
Opened 

Termi-
nations 

Non-
Renewals 

Reacquired 
by 

Franchisor 

Ceased 
Operations 

Other 
Reasons 

Outlets 
at End of 
the Year 

  2022 8 0 0 0 0 0 8 

Texas 

  

  

2020 59 1 1 0 0 0 59 

2021 59 0 7 2 0 1 49 

2022 49 2 0 0 0 0 51 

Utah 

  

  

2020 7 1 0 1 0 0 7 

2021 7 0 0 1 0 0 6 

2022 6 0 0 0 0 0 6 

Virginia 

  

  

2020 20 0 0 1 0 0 19 

2021 19 0 4 0 0 0 15 

2022 15 0 0 0 0 0 15 

Washington 

  

  

2020 3 0 0 0 0 0 3 

2021 3 0 0 0 0 0 3 

2022 3 0 0 0 0 0 3 

West Virginia 

  

  

2020 5 0 0 0 0 0 5 

2021 5 1 4 0 0 0 2 

2022 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 

Wisconsin 

  

  

2020 6 1 0 0 0 0 7 

2021 7 0 1 0 0 0 6 

2022 6 1 1 0 0 0 6 

Totals 

  

  

2020 448 18 41 14 0 0 412 

2021 411 19 63 8 0 5 355 

2022 355 13 9 1 0 0 358 
 

 
 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank] 
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Table No. 4 

 
Status of Company-Owned Outlets 

For fiscal years 2020 to 2022 
 

State Year 

 

Outlets 
at Start 
of the 
Year 

Outlets 
Opened 

Outlets 
Reacquired 

From 
Franchisee 

Outlets 
Closed 

Outlets 
Sold to 

Franchisee 

Outlets at 
End of the 

Year 

Alabama 2020 4 0 0 2 1 1 
2021 1 0 0 0 1 0 
2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Arizona 2020 1 0 0 0 1 0 
2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 
2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Florida 2020 2 0 0 0 1 1 
2021 1 0 0 0 0 1 
2022 1 0 0 0 0 1 

Indiana 2020 1 0 0 0 1 0 
2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 
2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Kentucky 2020 1 0 0 1 0 0 
2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 
2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Louisiana 2020 5 1 0 1 1 4 
2021 4 0 0 0 2 2 
2022 2 0 0 0 0 2 

Michigan 2020 1 0 0 0 1 0 
2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 
2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 

New Mexico 2020 5 0 0 2 1 2 
2021 2 0 0 0 2 0 
2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 

North 
Carolina 

2020 6 0 0 4 2 0 
2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 
2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Ohio 2020 1 0 0 1 0 0 
2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 
2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Oklahoma 2020 4 0 0 3 1 0 
2021 0 1 0 0 0 1 
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State Year 

 

Outlets 
at Start 
of the 
Year 

Outlets 
Opened 

Outlets 
Reacquired 

From 
Franchisee 

Outlets 
Closed 

Outlets 
Sold to 

Franchisee 

Outlets at 
End of the 

Year 

2022 1 0 0 0 0 1 

Pennsylvania 2020 1 0 0 1 0 0 
2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 
2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Texas 2020 2 0 0 0 2 0 
2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 
2023 0 0 0 0 0 0 

West Virginia 2020 1 0 0 1 0 0 
2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 
2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Totals 2020 35 1 0 16 12 8 
2021 8 1 0 0 5 4 
2022 4 0 0 0 0 4 

 
 
 

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank] 
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Table No. 5 
 

Projected Openings During the Period January 1- December 31, 2023 

State Franchise 
Agreement Signed 

But Outlet Not 
Opened as of 
12/31/2022 

Projected New 
Franchised Outlets 

In The Next Year 

Projected New 
Company-Owned 

Outlet In The Next 
Year 

California 1 0 0 

Connecticut 1 0 0 
Delaware 0 0 0 
Kentucky 0 0 0 

Illinois 0 0 0 

Indiana 0 0 0 

Louisiana 0 0 0 

Oregon 0 0 0 

Texas 0 1 0 

Total 2 1 0 
 

In the tables appearing in this Item 20: 

-- All numbers are as of the close of business on the last day of the respective 
fiscal year, except for the Table of Projected Openings, which estimates 
openings during the 2023 calendar year. 

-- Any state not listed in a table had no activity during the entire period covered 
by the table.   

Exhibit K lists the names of all franchisees as of December 28, 2022 and the address 
and telephone number of their Restaurant(s). Franchisees marked with an * in Exhibit K have 
locations which were not yet open for business as of December 28, 2022; the address shown 
is either their business address or the future Restaurant’s address, if known. 

Exhibit L contains: 

1. The name, last known home and/or business address, and telephone number 
of every franchisee who had a Franchise Agreement transferred, terminated, 
cancelled, or not renewed, or who otherwise voluntarily or involuntarily 
ceased to do business under a Franchise Agreement during our fiscal year 
ending December 28, 2022, or who has not communicated within Golden 
Corral within ten weeks of the date of this disclosure document. 
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2. The name, last known business and/or home address, and telephone number 
of every area developer whose Area Development Agreement was terminated, 
cancelled, or not renewed during our fiscal year ending December 28, 2022, or 
who has not communicated with Golden Corral within ten weeks of the date of 
this disclosure document.  Many of these developers also are current or former 
franchisees.  

If you buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers 
when you leave the franchise system.   

We have not signed any agreements with current or former franchisees in the last 3 
years that contain confidentiality clauses that would restrict the franchisee’s ability to speak 
openly about their experience as a franchisee in our franchise system. 

We have not created or sponsored any trademark-specific franchisee organizations 
associated with the franchise system. No independent franchisee organizations have asked 
to be included in this disclosure document. 

ITEM 21 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Exhibit P contains the audited financial statements of Golden Corral Franchising 
Systems, Inc., which comprise the balance sheets as of December 28, 2022 and December 29, 
2021 and the related statements of earnings, retained earnings, and cash flows for the years 
ended December 28, 2022, December 29, 2021, and December 30, 2020. 

 
ITEM 22 

CONTRACTS 

The following agreements are attached as Exhibits to this disclosure document: 

Exhibit C. Area Development Agreement and Guaranty 
Exhibit D. Franchise Agreement and Guaranty 
Exhibit E. Golden Corral Corporation Store Back Office Software License Agreement 
Exhibit F. Personal Computer Backoffice Installation and Training Support Agreement 
Exhibit G. Personal Computer Backoffice Software and Hardware Support Agreement 
Exhibit H. Coastal Equipment Company’s Equipment Purchase and Sale Agreement 
Exhibit I. Golden Corral Restaurants Help Desk Support Agreement 
Exhibit O. Form of General Release to be signed when you renew or transfer the franchise 
 

Except in certain states, we also require that you complete a Certification form before 
signing an agreement with us. The Certification form is in Exhibit N. 
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ITEM 23  
RECEIPTS 

Two copies of a Receipt appear at the end of this disclosure document. Unless you request a 
paper copy, you will receive the disclosure document in an electronic format and sign the Receipts 
electronically.  
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EXHIBIT A 
LIST OF STATE ADMINISTRATORS 

 
We intend to register this disclosure document as a “franchise” in some or all of 

the following states, if required by the applicable state laws.  If and when we pursue 
franchise registration (or otherwise comply with the franchise investment laws) in these 
states, the following are the state administrators responsible for the review, registration, 
and oversight of franchises in these states: 
CALIFORNIA 
Commissioner of Financial Protection and 
Innovation 
Department of Financial Protection and 
Innovation 
320 West Fourth Street, Suite 750 
Los Angeles, California 90013-2344 
(213) 576-7500 
Toll Free: (866) 275-2677 
 

NEW YORK 
New York State Department of Law 
Investor Protection Bureau 
28 Liberty Street, 21st Floor 
New York, New York 10005 
(212) 416-8236 

HAWAII 
Commissioner of Securities 
Department of Commerce & Consumer 
Affairs 
Business Registration Division 
Securities Compliance Branch 
335 Merchant Street, Room 205 
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813 
(808) 586-2722 
 

NORTH DAKOTA 
North Dakota Securities Department 
State Capitol 
Department 414 
600 East Boulevard Avenue, Fifth Floor 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58505-0510  
(701) 328-4712 

ILLINOIS 
Illinois Office of the Attorney General 
Franchise Bureau 
500 South Second Street 
Springfield, Illinois 62706 
(217) 782-4465 
 

RHODE ISLAND 
Department of Business Regulation 
Securities Division, Building 69, First Floor 
John O. Pastore Center 
1511 Pontiac Avenue 
Cranston, Rhode Island 02920 
(401) 462-9527 

INDIANA 
Secretary of State 
Franchise Section 
302 West Washington, Room E-111 
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204 
(317) 232-6681 
 

SOUTH DAKOTA 
Division of Insurance 
Securities Regulation 
124 South Euclid Avenue, Suite 104 
Pierre, South Dakota 57501 
(605) 773-3563 
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MARYLAND 
Office of the Attorney General 
Securities Division 
200 St. Paul Place 
Baltimore, Maryland 21202-2020 
(410) 576-6360 

VIRGINIA 
State Corporation Commission 
Division of Securities and Retail 
Franchising 
1300 East Main Street, 9th Floor 
Richmond, Virginia 23219 
(804) 371-9051 

MICHIGAN 
Michigan Attorney General’s Office 
Corporate Oversight Division, Franchise 
Section 
525 West Ottawa Street 
G. Mennen Williams Building, 1st Floor 
Lansing, Michigan 48913 
(517) 335-7567 

WASHINGTON 
Department of Financial Institutions 
Securities Division – 3rd Floor 
150 Israel Road, Southwest 
Tumwater, Washington 98501 
(360) 902-8760 

MINNESOTA 
Minnesota Department of Commerce 
85 7th Place East, Suite 280 
St. Paul, Minnesota 55101 
(651) 539-1600 

WISCONSIN 
Division of Securities 
4822 Madison Yards Way, North Tower 
Madison, Wisconsin 53705 
(608) 266-2139 
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EXHIBIT B 
AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS 

 
We intend to register this disclosure document as a “franchise” in some or all of 

the following states, if required by the applicable state law.  If and when we pursue 
franchise registration (or otherwise comply with the franchise investment laws) in these 
states, we will designate the following state offices or officials as our agents for service of 
process in these states: 
CALIFORNIA 
Commissioner of Financial Protection and 
Innovation 
Department of Financial Protection and 
Innovation 
320 West Fourth Street, Suite 750 
Los Angeles, California 90013-2344 
(213) 576-7500 
Toll Free: (866) 275-2677 

NEW YORK 
New York Secretary of State 
New York Department of State 
One Commerce Plaza, 
99 Washington Avenue, 6th Floor 
Albany, New York 12231-0001 
(518) 473-2492 

HAWAII 
Commissioner of Securities of the State of 
Hawaii 
Department of Commerce & Consumer 
Affairs 
Business Registration Division 
Securities Compliance Branch 
335 Merchant Street, Room 205 
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813 
(808) 586-2722 

NORTH DAKOTA 
North Dakota Securities Commissioner 
State Capitol 
600 East Boulevard Avenue, Fifth Floor 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58505-0510  
(701) 328-4712 

ILLINOIS 
Illinois Attorney General 
500 South Second Street 
Springfield, Illinois 62706 
(217) 782-4465 

RHODE ISLAND 
Director of Department of Business 
Regulation 
Department of Business Regulation 
Securities Division, Building 69, First Floor 
John O. Pastore Center 
1511 Pontiac Avenue 
Cranston, Rhode Island 02920 
(401) 462-9527 

INDIANA 
Secretary of State 
Franchise Section 
302 West Washington, Room E-111 
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204 
(317) 232-6681 

SOUTH DAKOTA 
Division of Insurance 
Director of the Securities Regulation 
124 South Euclid Avenue, Suite 104 
Pierre, South Dakota 57501 
(605) 773-3563 
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MARYLAND 
Maryland Securities Commissioner 
200 St. Paul Place 
Baltimore, Maryland 21202-2020 
(410) 576-6360 

VIRGINIA 
Clerk of the State Corporation Commission 
1300 East Main Street, 1st Floor 
Richmond, Virginia 23219 
(804) 371-9733 

MICHIGAN 
Michigan Attorney General’s Office 
Corporate Oversight Division, Franchise 
Section 
525 West Ottawa Street 
G. Mennen Williams Building, 1st Floor 
Lansing, Michigan 48913 
(517) 335-7567 

WASHINGTON 
Director of Department of Financial 
Institutions 
Securities Division – 3rd Floor 
150 Israel Road, Southwest 
Tumwater, Washington 98501 
(360) 902-8760 

MINNESOTA 
Commissioner of Commerce 
Minnesota Department of Commerce 
85 7th Place East, Suite 280 
St. Paul, Minnesota 55101 
(651) 539-1600 

WISCONSIN 
Division of Securities 
4822 Madison Yards Way, North Tower 
Madison, Wisconsin 53705 
(608) 266-2139 
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EXHIBIT C 

AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT AND GUARANTY  

  



GOLDEN CORRAL FRANCHISING SYSTEMS, INC.
AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT



GOLDEN CORRAL FRANCHISING SYSTEMS, INC.
AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

TABLE OF CONTENTS





GOLDEN CORRAL FRANCHISING SYSTEMS, INC.
AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

Development Agreement

Franchisor
Area Developer

WITNESSETH:

System

Proprietary
Marks



1. GRANT

Restaurants
franchised businesses

Franchise Agreements

Development Schedule
Development Area



Franchisor’s Development Right



Land Contract

Site Information

Excluded
Information

Site Development Costs

Availability Date

Notice Period

Related Agreements



Acceptance
Notice

Assignment Documents

Execution Period



2. DEVELOPMENT FEE

3. DEVELOPMENT OBLIGATIONS





Development Approval

Existing Restaurant

4. TERM

5. DUTIES OF THE PARTIES







6. DEFAULT



7. TRANSFERS









8. COVENANTS

“Operations Principal”



__________________________________________







9. NOTICES

10. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AND INDEMNIFICATION



“Indemnitees”

“Event” ,

“losses and expenses”

11. APPROVALS ANDWAIVERS



12. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

13. APPLICABLE LAW



FRANCHISOR AND AREA
DEVELOPER IRREVOCABLY WAIVE TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING, OR
COUNTERCLAIMWHETHER AT LAWOR IN EQUITY, BROUGHT BY THEMAGAINST THE
OTHER. ANY AND ALL CLAIMS AND ACTIONS ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THE
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT, THE RELATIONSHIP OF FRANCHISOR AND AREA
DEVELOPER, OR AREA DEVELOPER’S OPERATION OF ITS BUSINESS SHALL BE
COMMENCEDWITHIN TWO (2) YEARS FROMTHEOCCURRENCE OF THE FACTS GIVING
RISE TO SUCH CLAIM OR ACTION, OR SUCH CLAIM OR ACTION SHALL BE BARRED.
FRANCHISOR AND AREA DEVELOPER HEREBY WAIVE TO THE FULLEST EXTENT
PERMITTED BY LAW ANY RIGHT TO OR CLAIM OF ANY PUNITIVE OR EXEMPLARY
DAMAGES AGAINST THE OTHERS AND AGREE THAT IN THE EVENT OF A DISPUTE
BETWEEN THEM EACH SHALL BE LIMITED TO THE RECOVERY OF ANY ACTUAL
DAMAGES SUSTAINED BY THEM.



14. ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS



15. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

FDD



Signature page follows





GOLDEN CORRAL FRANCHISING SYSTEMS, INC.
AREA DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

EXHIBIT A



GOLDEN CORRAL FRANCHISING SYSTEMS, INC.
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

EXHIBIT B

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT



Guarantors
Development Agreement

Franchisee Development Area

Franchise Agreements





EXHIBIT D

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT AND GUARANTY



GOLDEN CORRAL FRANCHISING SYSTEMS, INC.

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

____________________________________

_________________________________________________



GOLDEN CORRAL FRANCHISING SYSTEMS, INC.
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

TABLE OF CONTENTS











GOLDEN CORRAL FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

“Franchisor”
“Franchisee”

WITNESSETH:

“System”

“Proprietary
Marks”

“Restaurant” “franchised business”



1. GRANT

“Approved Location”

“Site Selection Addendum”



“Protected Territory”

2. TERM AND RENEWAL



“premises”



3. DUTIES OF FRANCHISOR

“general manager”
“associatemanager kitchen”

“associate manager service”
“managers”



“Manuals”

4. FEES





Gross sales

5. FRANCHISEE’S ACQUISITION OF AND CONSTRUCTION AND REIMAGING
OF PREMISES







6. OPERATIONAL DUTIES OF FRANCHISEE









“Allowances”

“Claims”



“Owners”

7. PROPRIETARYMARKS AND COPYRIGHTS









8. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

9. CONFIDENTIAL OPERATIONS MANUALS



10. ACCOUNTING AND RECORDS





11. ADVERTISING

(“Funds”

“National Fund”





“Regional Fund”





12. INSURANCE







13. TRANSFER OF INTEREST











14. DEFAULT AND TERMINATION





15. OBLIGATIONS UPON TERMINATION







16. COVENANTS

“Operations Principal”



“DMA”





17. CORPORATE, PARTNERSHIP OR LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY FRANCHISEE



18. TAXES, PERMITS, AND INDEBTEDNESS

19. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AND INDEMNIFICATION



“Indemnitees”

Event

losses and expenses

20. APPROVALS ANDWAIVERS



21. NOTICES



22. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

23. APPLICABLE LAW



FRANCHISOR AND FRANCHISEE
IRREVOCABLY WAIVE TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING, OR
COUNTERCLAIMWHETHER AT LAWOR IN EQUITY, BROUGHT BY THEMAGAINST THE
OTHER. ANY AND ALL CLAIMS AND ACTIONS ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THE
AGREEMENT, THE RELATIONSHIP OF FRANCHISOR AND FRANCHISEE, OR
FRANCHISEE’S OPERATION OF THE FRANCHISED BUSINESS SHALL BE COMMENCED
WITHIN TWO YEARS FROM THE OCCURRENCE OF THE FACTS GIVING RISE TO SUCH
CLAIMOR ACTION, OR SUCH CLAIMOR ACTION SHALL BE BARRED. FRANCHISOR AND
FRANCHISEE HEREBY WAIVE TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW ANY
RIGHT TO OR CLAIM OF ANY PUNITIVE OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES AGAINST THE
OTHER AND AGREE THAT IN THE EVENT OF A DISPUTE BETWEEN THEM EACH SHALL
BE LIMITED TO THE RECOVERY OF ANY ACTUAL DAMAGES SUSTAINED BY IT.

24. ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS





25. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

“FDD”

Signature page follows





Guarantors

Franchisee





EXHIBIT E

GOLDEN CORRAL CORPORATION STORE BACK OFFICE
SOFTWARE LICENSE AGREEMENT



GOLDEN CORRAL CORPORATION
Store Back Office

SOFTWARE LICENSE AGREEMENT







Signature page follows
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SCHEDULE A

Description of the GC Back Office Software System

SCHEDULE B

Equipment/Location Descriptions

Store # Location

SCHEDULE C

Fees and Payment Terms

SCHEDULE D

Training and Installation Fees



EXHIBIT F

PERSONAL COMPUTER BACKOFFICE INSTALLATION
AND TRAINING SUPPORT AGREEMENT







EXHIBIT G

PERSONAL COMPUTER BACKOFFICE SOFTWARE
AND HARDWARE SUPPORT AGREEMENT



GOLDEN CORRAL CORPORATION
Management Information Systems/POS

PERSONAL COMPUTER BACKOFFICE
SOFTWARE AND HARDWARE SUPPORT AGREEMENT

FOR
GOLDEN CORRAL® RESTAURANT FRANCHISE LOCATIONS

1. Definitions.

2. GCC Support.



GOLDEN CORRAL CORPORATION
Management Information Systems/POS

3. Duties of User.



GOLDEN CORRAL CORPORATION
Management Information Systems/POS

4. Fees and Taxes.

5. Term, Renewal and Termination



GOLDEN CORRAL CORPORATION
Management Information Systems/POS

6. Negation ofWarranty; Limitation of Liability.

7. Miscellaneous.



GOLDEN CORRAL CORPORATION
Management Information Systems/POS

e|v{tÜw `ÉÜÜ|á



ANNUAL BACKOFFICE SUPPORT AGREEMENT

SCHEDULE "A"
COVERED LOCATIONS

Store # Location Cost



SCHEDULE B
Fees

ANNUAL SERVICE FEE: $800.00 per covered location

2. ON SITE SUPPORT:
$50.00 Per hour, MINIMUM $500.00 PER DAY ON SITE
Motor vehicle/airline travel, lodging, rental car and food at cost

REPAIR CHARGES: At Cost



EXHIBIT H

COASTAL EQUIPMENT COMPANY’S EQUIPMENT PURCHASE
AND SALE AGREEMENT



$XXXXXXX

Payment terms are certified check, company check, or wire transfer

Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.
ABA # 121000248
1525WT Harris Blvd., Charlotte, NC 28288 0001
For the Jacksonville, N.C. Office
Credit the account of Coastal Equipment Company, account # 2041820054073



1

EQUIPMENT PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT

Purchase Price:

Purchase Price FOB Point of Origin, Freight Prepaid and Add:

Terms of Payment:



2

Late Payments:



3

Preparation of Improvements.

Access to Facility and Storage.

Disposal of Scrap.

Utility Connections.



4



5

Assignment of Manufacturers' Warranties:

Limitation of Damages:



6

Risk of Loss.

Assignment and Delegation.

Joint and Several Liability.

Governing Law, Jurisdiction.

Severability.



7

Integration.

Insolvency of Buyer.

Force Majeure.

Counterparts and Electronic Signatures.

[Signature page follows]



8



9

Exhibit “A”



EXHIBIT I

GOLDEN CORRAL RESTAURANTS HELP DESK SUPPORT AGREEMENT



GOLDEN CORRAL® RESTAURANTS
HELP DESK SUPPORT AGREEMENT
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Schedule A Covered Locations for Help Desk Support Addendum

Store # Location Cost
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SCHEDULE B

Fees

1. ANNUAL USER FEE*: $1,850.00 per covered Location

Annual User Fee per Restaurant has been determined by GCC based on certain assumptions regarding the
volume of usage for all Golden Corral® restaurants receiving help desk support from GCC under agreements
similar to that of Customer. GCC will advise Customer prior to the end of the Term regarding the actual usage,
and any anticipated adjustment in the annual User Fee, which may be charged for any renewal of this Agreement.
There is no assurance that such adjustment will remain unchanged or that the amount of such adjustment will be
within any prescribed limits, it being understood that such adjustments will be to a significant degree related to
the actual costs to GCC of providing the Service herein.



EXHIBIT J

TABLE OF CONTENTS TO THE MANUAL





EXHIBIT K

LIST OF FRANCHISEES AS OF DECEMBER 28, 2022
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EXHIBIT M

STATE SPECIFIC DISCLOSURES AND AGREEMENT AMENDMENTS
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California Disclosure Addendum 

In recognition of the requirements of the California Franchise Investment Law, Cal. Corp. 
Code §§ 31000-31516, and the California Franchise Relations Act, Cal. Bus. & Prof. Code §§ 20000-
20043, the Franchise Disclosure Document of Golden Corral Franchising Systems, Inc. is amended as 
follows for use in the State of California: 

 
1. Our website, http://www.goldencorral.net, has not been reviewed or approved by 

the California Department of Financial Protection and Innovation. Any complaints concerning the 
content of the website may be directed to the California Department of Financial Protection and 
Innovation at www.dfpi.ca.gov. 

 
2. Item 3, “Litigation,” is amended to add the following: 
 

Pursuant to California law, this Item does not include any information regarding the 
arrest of any person(s) that did not result in a conviction or plea of nolo contendere. 

 
Neither we, nor any person identified in Item 2 above, is subject to any currently 

effective order of any national securities association or national securities exchange (as 
defined in the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, 15 U.S.C. § 78a, et seq.) suspending or 
expelling such person from membership in such association or exchange. 

 
3. Item 17, “Renewal, Termination, Transfer and Dispute Resolution,” is amended to add 

the following: 
 

The following notices are required by the State of California to be included in this 
disclosure document whenever an applicable provision is included in a Franchise Agreement.  
We reserve the right to attempt to enforce all of the provisions listed below in which we 
indicate that “this provision may not be enforceable under California law.” 

 
California Business and Professions Code Sections 20000 through 20043 provide 

rights to the franchisee concerning termination, transfer or non-renewal of a franchise. If the 
Franchise Agreement contains a provision that is inconsistent with the law, the law will 
control. 

 
The Franchise Agreement and Area Development Agreement provide for termination 

upon bankruptcy. This provision may not be enforceable under federal bankruptcy law (11 
U.S.C. § 101, et seq.). 

 
The Franchise Agreement and Area Development Agreement contain a covenant not 

to compete which extends beyond the termination of the agreement. This provision may not 
be enforceable under California law. 

 
The Franchise Agreement contains a liquidated damages clause. Under California 

Civil Code § 1671, certain liquidated damages clauses are unenforceable. 
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You must sign a general release if you renew or transfer your franchise. These 
provisions may not be enforceable under California law. California Corporations Code § 
31512 voids a waiver of your rights under the California Franchise Investment Law 
(California Corporations Code §§ 31000-31516). Business and Professions Code § 20010 
voids a waiver of your rights under the Franchise Relations Act (Business and Professions 
Code §§ 20000-20043). 

 
The Franchise Agreement and Area Development Agreement require application of 

the laws of North Carolina. This provision may not be enforceable under California law. 
 
The Franchise Agreement and Area Development Agreement contain a venue 

provision for litigation. This provision may not be enforceable under California law. 
 

Section 31125 of the California Corporations Code requires a franchisor to give a 
franchisee a disclosure document, in a form and containing such information as the 
Commissioner may by rule or order require, prior to a solicitation of a proposed material 
modification of an existing franchise. 

 
Exhibit N to the Franchise Disclosure Document (Certification) is not applicable in 

California. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a 
franchisee in connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the 
effect of (i) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in 
the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, 
franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes 
any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.  

 
The registration of this franchise offering by the California Department of Financial 

Protection and Innovation does not constitute approval, recommendation, or endorsement 
by the commissioner. 

 
THE CALIFORNIA FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW REQUIRES THAT A COPY OF ALL 

PROPOSED AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE SALE OF THE FRANCHISE BE DELIVERED 
TOGETHER WITH THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT. 
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California Amendment to the Franchise Agreement 

This Addendum relates to franchises sold in California and is intended to comply with 
California statutes and regulations.  In consideration of the execution of the Franchise Agreement, 
Golden Corral Franchising Systems, Inc. and Franchisee agree to amend the Franchise Agreement as 
follows: 
 

1. Entire Agreement: Section 22 is amended to read as follows:  
 
This Agreement, the documents referred to herein, and the Attachments hereto, if any, 
constitute the entire, full, and complete Agreement between Franchisor and Franchisee 
concerning the subject matter hereof, and supersede any and all prior agreements, no 
other representations having induced Franchisee to execute this Agreement. No 
amendment, change, or variance from this Agreement shall be binding on either party 
unless mutually agreed to by the parties and executed in writing.  Nothing in this Section 
22 is intended as, nor shall it be interpreted as, a disclaimer by Franchisor of any 
representation made in its Franchise Disclosure Document, including any exhibits or 
amendments thereof.  

 
2. Acknowledgments.  Sections 25.1, 25.2 and 25.3 are deleted in their entirety. No 

statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in 
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of 
(i) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the 
inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, 
franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision 
supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise. 
 

3. Each provision of this Amendment shall be effective only to the extent, with respect to 
such provision, that the jurisdictional requirements of the California Franchise 
Investment Law are met independently without reference to this Amendment. 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed, sealed, and delivered this 
California Amendment to the Franchise Agreement on the same date as the Franchise Agreement was 
executed. 

 
  GOLDEN CORRAL FRANCHISING SYSTEMS, INC. 
   
   
  By:  
  R. Chappell Phillips, Executive Vice President  
                  Email:  chappell.phillips@goldencorral.net  
   
   
   
   
   
  FRANCHISEE 

 
 
By:  _________________________________________________ 
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California Amendment to the Area Development Agreement 

This Addendum relates to franchises sold in California and is intended to comply with 
California statutes and regulations. In consideration of the execution of the Area Development 
Agreement, Golden Corral Franchising Systems, Inc. and Developer agree to amend the Area 
Development Agreement as follows: 
 

1. Entire Agreement: Section 12 is amended to read as follows:  
 
This Development Agreement and the documents, exhibits and attachments referred to 
herein, if any, constitute the entire, full, and complete agreement between Franchisor and 
Area Developer concerning the subject matter hereof and supersede any and all prior 
agreements, no other representations having induced Area Developer to execute this 
Development Agreement. No amendment, change, or variance from this Development 
Agreement shall be binding on either party unless executed in writing. Nothing in this 
Section 12 is intended as, nor shall it be interpreted as, a disclaimer by Franchisor of any 
representation made in its Franchise Disclosure Document, including any exhibits or 
amendments thereof. 

 
2. Acknowledgments.  Sections 15.1, 15.2 and 15.3 are deleted in their entirety. No 

statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in 
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of 
(i) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the 
inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, 
franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision 
supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise. 
 

3. Each provision of this Amendment shall be effective only to the extent, with respect to 
such provision, that the jurisdictional requirements of the California Franchise 
Investment Law are met independently without reference to this Amendment. 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed, sealed, and delivered this 
California Amendment to the Area Development Agreement on the same date as the Area 
Development Agreement was executed. 

 
  GOLDEN CORRAL FRANCHISING SYSTEMS, INC. 
   
   
  By:  
  R. Chappell Phillips, Executive Vice President  
                  Email:  chappell.phillips@goldencorral.net  
   
   
   
   
   
  AREA DEVELOPER 

 
 
By:  _________________________________________________ 
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Illinois Disclosure Addendum 

In recognition of the requirements of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act of 1987, Ill. Comp. 
Stat. §§ 705/1 to 705/44, the Franchise Disclosure Document of Golden Corral Franchising Systems, 
Inc. is amended as follows for use in the State of Illinois: 

Item 17, Additional Disclosures. 

The conditions under which the Franchise Agreement or Area Development Agreement can 
be terminated and your rights upon non-renewal may be affected by Sections 19 and 20 of the Illinois 
Franchise Disclosure Act. 

Pursuant to Section 4 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act, any provision in the Franchise 
Agreement or Area Development Agreement that designates jurisdiction or venue for litigation in a 
forum outside of Illinois is void.   

The Illinois Franchise Regulations, Section 200.608, require that Illinois law govern franchise 
agreements entered into in Illinois. 

Section 41 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act provides that any condition, stipulation, or 
provision purporting to bind any person acquiring any franchise to waive compliance the Illinois 
Franchise Disclosure Act or any other law of Illinois is void. 

Exhibit N to the Franchise Disclosure Document (Certification) is not applicable in Illinois. No 
statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with 
the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under 
any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on 
any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the 
franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with 
the franchise.  
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Illinois Amendment to the Franchise Agreement 

In recognition of the requirements of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act of 1987, Ill. Comp. 
Stat. §§ 705/1 to 705/44, the parties to the attached Golden Corral Franchising Systems, Inc. 
Franchise Agreement (the “Agreement”) agree as follows: 

1. Section 22 of the Agreement, under the heading “Entire Agreement,” is amended to read 
as follows:  
 

This Agreement, the documents referred to herein, and the Attachments hereto, if any, 
constitute the entire, full, and complete Agreement between Franchisor and Franchisee 
concerning the subject matter hereof, and supersede any and all prior agreements, no 
other representations having induced Franchisee to execute this Agreement. No 
amendment, change, or variance from this Agreement shall be binding on either party 
unless mutually agreed to by the parties and executed in writing.  Nothing in this Section 
22 is intended as, nor shall it be interpreted as, a disclaimer by Franchisor of any 
representation made in its Franchise Disclosure Document, including any exhibits or 
amendments thereof.  

 
2. Section 23 of the Agreement, under the heading “Applicable Law,” is amended by 

deleting subsections 23.1 and 23.2 and substituting the following new subsection 23.1: 
 

23.1 This Agreement takes effect upon its acceptance and execution by Franchisor 
in North Carolina, and North Carolina law shall apply to any claim or controversy regarding 
the making, entering into, performance or interpretation of this Agreement.  In the event of 
any conflict of law, the laws of North Carolina shall prevail, except with respect to claims 
arising under the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act of 1987, without regard for the application 
of North Carolina conflict of law rules; provided, however, that if any of the provisions of this 
Agreement would not be enforceable under the laws of North Carolina, but would be 
enforceable under the laws of the state in which the restaurant is located, then such 
provisions shall be interpreted and construed under the laws of the state in which the 
restaurant is located.  Nothing in this Section 23 is intended by the parties to subject this 
Agreement to any franchise or similar law, rule, or regulation of the State of North Carolina 
to which it would not otherwise be subject. 

3. Section 23 of the Agreement, under the heading “Applicable Law,” is further amended 
by adding the following new subsections 23.7 and 23.8: 
 

23.7 If any of the provisions of this Agreement concerning renewal or termination 
are inconsistent with Section 19 or 20 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act of 1987, the 
provisions of the Act shall apply.  If Franchisor refuses to renew this Agreement, Franchisor 
shall compensate Franchisee if (and to the extent) such compensation is required under 
Section 20 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act of 1987. 

23.8 Any condition, stipulation, or provision purporting to bind any person 
acquiring any franchise to waive compliance with any provision of the Illinois Franchise 
Disclosure Act or any other law of the State of Illinois is void. 

4. Sections 25.1, 25.2 and 25.3 of the Agreement, under the heading “Acknowledgments,” 
are deleted in their entirety.  No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or 
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agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the commencement of the franchise 
relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any applicable state 
franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any 
statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of 
the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in 
connection with the franchise. 
 

5. Each provision of this Amendment shall be effective only to the extent, with respect to 
such provision, that the jurisdictional requirements of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure 
Act of 1987 are met independently without reference to this Amendment. 

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed, sealed, and delivered this 
Illinois Amendment to the Franchise Agreement on the same date as the Franchise Agreement was 
executed. 

 
  GOLDEN CORRAL FRANCHISING SYSTEMS, INC. 
   
   
  By:  
  R. Chappell Phillips, Executive Vice President  
                  Email:  chappell.phillips@goldencorral.net  
   
   
   
   
   
  FRANCHISEE 

 
 
By:  _________________________________________________ 
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Illinois Amendment to the Area Development Agreement 
 

In recognition of the requirements of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act of 1987, Ill. Comp. 
Stat. §§ 705/1 to 705/44, the parties to the attached Golden Corral Franchising Systems, Inc. Area 
Development Agreement (the “Agreement”) agree as follows: 

1. Section 6 of the Agreement, under the heading “Default,” is amended to add the 
following new subsection 6.6: 

6.6 If any of the provisions of this Section 6 concerning termination are 
inconsistent with Section 19 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act of 1987, the Illinois law 
shall apply. 

2. Section 12 of the Agreement, under the heading “Entire Agreement,” is amended to 
read as follows:  

 
This Development Agreement and the documents, exhibits and attachments referred to 
herein, if any, constitute the entire, full, and complete agreement between Franchisor and 
Area Developer concerning the subject matter hereof and supersede any and all prior 
agreements, no other representations having induced Area Developer to execute this 
Development Agreement. No amendment, change, or variance from this Development 
Agreement shall be binding on either party unless executed in writing. Nothing in this 
Section 12 is intended as, nor shall it be interpreted as, a disclaimer by Franchisor of any 
representation made in its Franchise Disclosure Document, including any exhibits or 
amendments thereof. 
 

3. Sections 13.1 and 13.2 of the Agreement, under the heading “Applicable Law,” are 
deleted in their entirety and replaced with the following new Section 13.1: 

13.1 This Agreement takes effect upon its acceptance and execution by Franchisor 
in North Carolina, and North Carolina law shall apply to any claim or controversy regarding 
the making, entering into, performance or interpretation of this Agreement.  In the event of 
any conflict of law, the laws of North Carolina shall prevail, except with respect to claims 
arising under the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act of 1987, without regard for the application 
of North Carolina conflict of law rules; provided, however, that if any of the provisions of this 
Agreement would not be enforceable under the laws of North Carolina, but would be 
enforceable under the laws of the state in which the principal office of Area Developer is 
located, then such provisions shall be interpreted and construed under the laws of the state 
in which the principal office of Area Developer is located.  Nothing in this Section XIV is 
intended by the parties to subject this Agreement to any franchise or similar law, rule, or 
regulation of the State of North Carolina to which it would not otherwise be subject. 

4. Section 13 of the Agreement, under the heading “Applicable Law,” is amended to add 
new subsection 13.7, as set forth below: 

 
13.7 Any condition, stipulation, or provision purporting to bind any person 

acquiring any franchise to waive compliance with any provision of the Illinois Franchise 
Disclosure Act or any other law of the State of Illinois is void. 
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 5. Sections 15.1, 15.2 and 15.3 of the Agreement, under the heading 
“Acknowledgments,” are deleted in their entirety.  No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment 
signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the commencement of the franchise 
relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, 
including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any 
franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision 
supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise. 

6. Each provision of this Amendment shall be effective only to the extent, with respect 
to such provision, that the jurisdictional requirements of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act of 1987 
are met independently without reference to this Amendment. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed, sealed, and delivered this 
Illinois Amendment to the Area Development Agreement on the same date as the Area Development 
Agreement was executed. 

  GOLDEN CORRAL FRANCHISING SYSTEMS, INC. 
   
   
  By:  
           R. Chappell Phillips, Executive Vice President 

          Email:  chappell.phillips@goldencorral.net  
   
   
   
    
   
   
   
   
  AREA DEVELOPER 
   
   
  By: (Seal) 
  (Name) 

Email: ________________________ 
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Illinois Amendment to the Coastal Equipment Company Equipment Purchase and Sale 
Agreement 

 
In recognition of the requirements of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act of 1987, Ill. Comp. 

Stat. §§ 705/1 to 705/44, the parties to the attached Coastal Equipment Company Equipment 
Purchase and Sale Agreement (the “Agreement”) agree as follows: 

1. Section 10.(d) of the Agreement is deleted and replaced with the following new 
Section 10.(d): 

(d) Governing Law.  Buyer represents that the Equipment being purchased 
hereunder is purchased for business purposes only, and under no circumstances shall this 
Agreement be construed as a consumer contract. This Agreement shall be construed to be 
between merchants and governed by the laws of the state of North Carolina, U.S.A., including 
the Uniform Commercial Code in effect on the date hereof, which shall prevail in the event of 
any conflict of law. In the event of any action to enforce this Agreement, the prevailing party 
shall be entitled to recover all costs and expenses thereof, including reasonable attorneys’ 
fees. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed, and delivered this Illinois 
Amendment to the Coastal Equipment Company Equipment Purchase and Sale Agreement on the 
same date as the Coastal Equipment Company Purchase and Sale Agreement was executed. 

  SELLER:  COASTAL EQUIPMENT COMPANY  
   
   
  By:  
  (Name) 
   
   
   
  BUYER: 
   
  By:  _________________________________________ 
  (Name) 
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Indiana Amendment to the Franchise Agreement 
 
FRANCHISOR and FRANCHISEE have signed a Franchise Agreement for a franchise to be 

located in Indiana. This Addendum reflects provisions of Indiana law. 
 

1. Pursuant to Section 23.2-2.7-1 of the Indiana Code, it is unlawful for any franchise 
agreement entered into between any franchisor and a franchisee who is either a resident of Indiana 
or a nonresident who will be operating a franchise in Indiana to contain any of the following 
provisions: 

 
(1)  Requiring goods, supplies, inventories, or services to be purchased exclusively from the 

franchisor or sources designated by the franchisor where such goods, supplies, inventories, or 
services of comparable quality are available from sources other than those designated by the 
franchisor. However, the publication by the franchisor of a list of approved suppliers of goods, 
supplies, inventories, or service or the requirement that such goods, supplies, inventories, or services 
comply with specifications and standards prescribed by the franchisor does not constitute 
designation of a source nor does a reasonable right of the franchisor to disapprove a supplier 
constitute a designation. This subdivision does not apply to the principal goods, supplies, inventories, 
or services manufactured or trademarked by the franchisor. 

 
(2)  Allowing the franchisor to establish a franchisor-owned outlet engaged in a substantially 

identical business to that of the franchisee within the exclusive territory granted the franchisee by 
the franchise agreement; or, if no exclusive territory is designated, permitting the franchisor to 
compete unfairly with the franchisee within a reasonable area. 

 
(3)  Allowing substantial modification of the franchise agreement by the franchisor without 

the consent in writing of the franchisee. 
 
(4)  Allowing the franchisor to obtain money, goods, services, or any other benefit from any 

other person with whom the franchisee does business, on account of, or in relation to, the transaction 
between the franchisee and the other person, other than for compensation for services rendered by 
the franchisor, unless the benefit is promptly accounted for, and transmitted to the franchisee. 

 
(5) Requiring the franchisee to prospectively assent to a release, assignment, novation, 

waiver, or estoppel which purports to relieve any person from liability to be imposed by this chapter 
or requiring any controversy between the franchisee and the franchisor to be referred to any person, 
if referral would be binding on the franchisee. This subdivision does not apply to arbitration before 
an independent arbitrator. 

 
(6)  Allowing for an increase in prices of goods provided by the franchisor which the 

franchisee had ordered for private retail consumers prior to the franchisee's receipt of an official 
price increase notification. A sales contract signed by a private retail consumer shall constitute 
evidence of each order. Price changes applicable to new models of a product at the time of 
introduction of such new models shall not be considered a price increase.  Price increases caused by 
conformity to a state or federal law, or the revaluation of the United States dollar in the case of 
foreign-made goods, are not subject to this subdivision. 

 
(7)  Permitting unilateral termination of the franchise if such termination is without good 

cause or in bad faith.  Good cause within the meaning of this subdivision includes any material 
violation of the franchise agreement. 
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(8)  Permitting the franchisor to fail to renew a franchise without good cause or in bad faith. 

This chapter shall not prohibit a franchise agreement from providing that the agreement is not 
renewable upon expiration or that the agreement is renewable if the franchisee meets certain 
conditions specified in the agreement. 

 
(9)  Requiring a franchisee to covenant not to compete with the franchisor for a period longer 

than three (3) years or in an area greater than the exclusive area granted by the franchise agreement 
or, in absence of such a provision in the agreement, an area of reasonable size, upon termination of 
or failure to renew the franchise. 

 
(10)  Limiting litigation brought for breach of the agreement in any manner whatsoever. 
 
(11)  Requiring the franchisee to participate in any: 
 

(A) advertising campaign or contest; 
(B) promotional campaign; 
(C) promotional materials; or 
(D) display decorations or materials; 

 
at an expense to the franchisee that is indeterminate, determined by a third party, or 
determined by a formula, unless the franchise agreement specifies the maximum percentage 
of gross monthly sales or the maximum absolute sum that the franchisee may be required to 
pay. 
 
2. If the Franchise Agreement contains a provision that is inconsistent with the Indiana 

Code, the provisions of the Indiana Code will supersede the Franchise Agreement.   
 
3. Section 22 of the Agreement, under the heading “Entire Agreement,” is amended to 

read as follows:  
 

This Agreement, the documents referred to herein, and the Attachments hereto, if any, 
constitute the entire, full, and complete Agreement between Franchisor and Franchisee 
concerning the subject matter hereof, and supersede any and all prior agreements, no 
other representations having induced Franchisee to execute this Agreement. No 
amendment, change, or variance from this Agreement shall be binding on either party 
unless mutually agreed to by the parties and executed in writing.  Nothing in this Section 
22 is intended as, nor shall it be interpreted as, a disclaimer by Franchisor of any 
representation made in its Franchise Disclosure Document, including any exhibits or 
amendments thereof.  

 
4. Sections 25.1, 25.2 and 25.3 of the Agreement, under the heading 

“Acknowledgments,” are deleted in their entirety. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment 
signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the commencement of the franchise 
relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, 
including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any 
franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision 
supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise. 
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5. This Addendum will have effect only if the Franchise Agreement and/or the 
relationship between Franchisor and Franchisee satisfy all of the jurisdictional requirements of the 
Indiana Code, without considering this Addendum. Except as expressly modified by this Addendum, 
the Franchise Agreement remains unmodified and in full force and effect. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed, sealed, and delivered this Indiana 
Amendment to the Franchise Agreement on the same date as the Franchise Agreement was executed. 
 

  GOLDEN CORRAL FRANCHISING SYSTEMS, INC. 
   
   
  By:  
  R. Chappell Phillips, Executive Vice President  

Email:  chappell.phillips@goldencorral.net  
   
  FRANCHISEE 
   
  By:  
           Name/Title:  ______________ 
           Email: ________________ 
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Maryland Disclosure Addendum 

In recognition of the requirements of the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure 
Law, the Franchise Disclosure Document of Golden Corral Franchising Systems, Inc. is amended as 
follows for use in the State of Maryland: 

1. Item 5, under the heading “Initial Fees,” is amended to add the following: 
 

Based on the financial condition of the franchisor, the Maryland Securities 
Commissioner has required a financial assurance. Therefore, all initial fees and 
payments owed by franchisees shall be deferred until the franchisor completes its 
pre-opening obligations under the franchise agreement and development agreement.
  

2. Item 17, under the heading “Renewal, Termination, Transfer and Dispute Resolution,” is 
amended to add the following: 

 
The Franchise Agreement and Area Development Agreement provide for termination 
upon bankruptcy. This provision may not be enforceable under federal bankruptcy 
law (11 U.S.C. Section 101 et seq.). 

The Franchise Agreement requires you to sign a general release as a condition of 
renewal or transfer of the franchise. These releases will not apply to any liability 
under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law.  

A franchisee may bring a lawsuit in Maryland for claims arising under the Maryland 
Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law. 

Any claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law 
must be brought within three (3) years after the grant of the franchise. 

3. Exhibit N to the Franchise Disclosure Document (Certification) is not applicable in 
Maryland. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a 
franchisee in connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have 
the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including 
fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any 
franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This 
provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the 
franchise.  
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Maryland Amendment to the Franchise Agreement 
 

In recognition of the requirements of the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure 
Law, the parties to the attached Golden Corral Franchising Systems, Inc. Franchise Agreement (the 
“Agreement”) agree as follows: 

1. Section 4.1 of the Agreement, under the heading “Initial Franchise Fee,” is amended 
by adding the following: 

Based on the financial condition of the franchisor, the Maryland Securities 
Commissioner has required a financial assurance. Therefore, all initial fees and 
payments owed by franchisee shall be deferred until the franchisor completes its 
preopening obligations under the Agreement. 

2. Section 22 of the Agreement, under the heading “Entire Agreement,” is amended to 
read as follows: 

This Agreement, the documents referred to herein, and the Attachments 
hereto, if any, constitute the entire, full, and complete Agreement between Franchisor 
and Franchisee concerning the subject matter hereof, and supersede any and all prior 
agreements, no other representations having induced Franchisee to execute this 
Agreement. No amendment, change, or variance from this Agreement shall be binding 
on either party unless mutually agreed to by the parties and executed in writing.  
Nothing in this Section 22 is intended as, nor shall it be interpreted as, a disclaimer 
by Franchisor of any representation made in its Franchise Disclosure Document, 
including any exhibits or amendments thereof.  

 
3.  Section 22 of the Agreement, under the heading “Entire Agreement,” is further 

amended to add the following sentence at the end of the section: 

The representations contained in this Section 22 are not intended to nor shall 
they act as a release, estoppel or waiver of any liability incurred under the Maryland 
Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law. 

4. Section 23 of the Agreement, under the heading “Applicable Law,” is amended by 
deleting subsections 23.2 and 23.5 and substituting the following new subsections 23.2 and 23.5, and 
by adding the following new subsection 23.7: 

23.2. Except with respect to claims arising under the Maryland Franchise 
Registration and Disclosure Law, any action brought by Franchisee against 
Franchisor shall be brought exclusively, and any action brought by Franchisor against 
Franchisee may be brought, in the federal district court covering the location at which 
Franchisor has its principal place of business at the time the action is commenced, 
provided, however, that if the federal court would not have subject matter 
jurisdiction had the action been commenced in such court, then, in such event, the 
action shall (with respect to actions commenced by Franchisee), and may (with 
respect to actions commenced by Franchisor) be brought in the state court within the 
judicial district in which Franchisor has its principal place of business at the time the 
action is commenced. The parties waive all questions of personal jurisdiction or 
venue for the purpose of carrying out this provision. 



 

MD-2 
Golden Corral/2023 State Addenda 

23.5. Franchisor and Franchisee irrevocably waive trial by jury in any 
action, proceeding, or counterclaim whether at law or in equity, brought by them 
against the other. Any and all claims and actions arising out of or relating to the 
Agreement, the relationship of Franchisor and Franchisee, or Franchisee’s operation 
of the Franchised business shall be commenced within two years from the occurrence 
of the facts giving rise to such claim or action, or such, claim or action shall be barred; 
except for claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure 
Law, which shall be commenced within three (3) years from the grant of the franchise. 
Franchisor and Franchisee hereby waive to the fullest extent permitted by law any 
right to or claim of any punitive or exemplary damages against the other and agree 
that in the event of a dispute between them each shall be limited to the recovery of 
any actual damages sustained by it. 

23.7. Any general release required to be executed pursuant to this 
Agreement, including but not limited to those required in connection with any 
transfer or renewal, will not apply to any liability under the Maryland Franchise 
Registration and Disclosure Law. 

5. Sections 25.1, 25.2 and 25.3 of the Agreement, under the heading 
“Acknowledgments,” are deleted in their entirety.  No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment 
signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the commencement of the franchise 
relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, 
including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any 
franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision 
supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise. 

6. Section 25 of the Agreement, under the heading “Acknowledgments,” is amended to 
add the following new subsection: 

25.5 The foregoing acknowledgments are not intended to nor shall they act 
as a release, estoppel or waiver of any liability incurred under the Maryland Franchise 
Registration and Disclosure Law. 

7. Each provision of this Amendment shall be effective only to the extent, with respect 
to such provision, that the jurisdictional requirements of the Maryland Franchise Registration and 
Disclosure Law are met independently without reference to this Amendment. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed, sealed, and delivered this 
Maryland Amendment to the Franchise Agreement on the same date as the Franchise Agreement was 
executed. 
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  GOLDEN CORRAL FRANCHISING SYSTEMS, INC. 
   
   
  By:  
  R. Chappell Phillips, Executive Vice President  

Email:  chappell.phillips@goldencorral.net  
   
  FRANCHISEE 
   
  By:  
           Name/Title:  _____________________________________________ 
           Email: ____________________________________________________ 
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Maryland Amendment to the Area Development Agreement 

In recognition of the requirements of the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure 
Law, the parties to the attached Golden Corral Franchising Systems, Inc. Area Development 
Agreement (the “Agreement”) agree as follows: 

1. Section 2.1 of the Agreement, under the heading “Development Fee,” is amended by 
adding the following: 

Based on the financial condition of the franchisor, the Maryland Securities 
Commissioner has required a financial assurance. Therefore, all initial fees and 
payments owed by franchisee shall be deferred until the franchisor completes its 
preopening obligations for the first Restaurant under the Agreement. 

2. Section 7.2.2.3 of the Agreement, under the heading “Transfers,” is deleted and 
replaced with the following: 

7.2.2.3 The transferor shall have executed a general release under seal, in a 
form satisfactory to Franchisor, of any and all claims against Franchisor and its 
officers, directors, shareholders, and employees, in their corporate and individual 
capacities, including, without limitation, claims arising under federal, state, and local 
laws, rules and ordinances, excluding only such claims as transferor may have under 
the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law; 

3. Section 12 of the Agreement, under the heading “Entire Agreement,” is amended to 
read as follows:  

 
This Development Agreement and the documents, exhibits and attachments 

referred to herein, if any, constitute the entire, full, and complete agreement between 
Franchisor and Area Developer concerning the subject matter hereof and supersede 
any and all prior agreements, no other representations having induced Area 
Developer to execute this Development Agreement. No amendment, change, or 
variance from this Development Agreement shall be binding on either party unless 
executed in writing. Nothing in this Section 12 is intended as, nor shall it be 
interpreted as, a disclaimer by Franchisor of any representation made in its Franchise 
Disclosure Document, including any exhibits or amendments thereof. 

 
4. Section 12 of the Agreement, under the heading “Entire Agreement,” is further 

amended to add the following sentence at the end of the section: 

The representations contained in this Section 12 are not intended to nor shall 
act as a release, estoppel or waiver of any liability incurred under the Maryland 
Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law. 

5. Sections 13.2 and 13.5 of the Agreement, under the heading “Applicable Law,” are 
deleted and replaced with the following: 

13.2 Except for claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration 
and Disclosure Law, any action brought by Area Developer against Franchisor shall 
be brought exclusively, and any action brought by Franchisor against Area Developer 
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may be brought, in the federal district court covering the location at which Franchisor 
has its principal place of business at the time the action is commenced, provided, 
however, that if the federal court would not have subject matter jurisdiction had the 
action been commenced in such court, then, in such event, the action shall (with 
respect to actions commenced by Area Developer), and may (with respect to actions 
commenced by Franchisor) be brought in the state court within the judicial district in 
which Franchisor has its principal place of business at the time the action is 
commenced. The parties waive all questions of personal jurisdiction or venue for the 
purpose of carrying out this provision. 

13.5 Franchisor and Area Developer irrevocably waive trial by jury in any 
action, proceeding, or counterclaim whether at law or in equity, brought by them 
against the other.  Any and all claims and actions arising out of or relating to the 
Agreement, the relationship of Franchisor and Area Developer, or Area Developer’s 
operation of its business shall be commenced within two years from the occurrence 
of the facts giving rise to such claim or action, or such claim or action shall be barred; 
except for claims arising under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure 
Law, which shall be commenced within three (3) years from the grant of the franchise. 
Franchisor and Area Developer hereby waive to the fullest extent permitted by law 
any right to or claim of any punitive or exemplary damages against the others and 
agree that in the event of a dispute between them each shall be limited to the recovery 
of any actual damages sustained by them. 

6. Sections 15.1, 15.2 and 15.3 of the Agreement, under the heading 
“Acknowledgments,” are deleted in their entirety.  No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment 
signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the commencement of the franchise 
relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, 
including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any 
franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision 
supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise. 

7. Section 15 of the Agreement, under the heading “Acknowledgments,” is amended to 
add the following new subsection: 

15.5 The foregoing acknowledgments are not intended to nor shall they act 
as a release, estoppel or waiver of any liability incurred under the Maryland Franchise 
Registration and Disclosure Law. 

8. Each provision of this Amendment shall be effective only to the extent, with respect 
to such provision, that the jurisdictional requirements of the Maryland Franchise Registration and 
Disclosure Law are met independently without reference to this Amendment. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed, sealed, and delivered this 

Maryland Amendment to the Area Development Agreement on the same date as the Area 
Development Agreement was executed. 
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  GOLDEN CORRAL FRANCHISING SYSTEMS, INC. 
   
   
  By:  
  R. Chappell Phillips, Executive Vice President  

Email:  chappell.phillips@goldencorral.net  
   
  AREA DEVELOPER 
   
  By:  
           Name/Title:  _____________________________________________ 
           Email: ____________________________________________________ 
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Michigan Disclosure Addendum 
 

THE STATE OF MICHIGAN PROHIBITS CERTAIN UNFAIR PROVISIONS THAT ARE SOMETIMES IN 
FRANCHISE DOCUMENTS.  IF ANY OF THE FOLLOWING PROVISIONS ARE IN THESE FRANCHISE 
DOCUMENTS, THE PROVISIONS ARE VOID AND CANNOT BE ENFORCED AGAINST YOU: 

(A) A PROHIBITION ON THE RIGHT OF A FRANCHISEE TO JOIN AN ASSOCIATION OF 
FRANCHISEES. 

(B) A REQUIREMENT THAT A FRANCHISEE ASSENT TO A RELEASE, ASSIGNMENT, 
NOVATION, WAIVER, OR ESTOPPEL WHICH DEPRIVES A FRANCHISEE OF RIGHTS AND 
PROTECTIONS PROVIDED IN THIS ACT.  THIS SHALL NOT PRECLUDE A FRANCHISEE, AFTER 
ENTERING INTO A FRANCHISE AGREEMENT, FROM SETTLING ANY AND ALL CLAIMS. 

(C) A PROVISION THAT PERMITS A FRANCHISOR TO TERMINATE A FRANCHISE PRIOR 
TO THE EXPIRATION OF ITS TERM EXCEPT FOR GOOD CAUSE.  GOOD CAUSE SHALL INCLUDE THE 
FAILURE OF THE FRANCHISEE TO COMPLY WITH ANY LAWFUL PROVISIONS OF THE FRANCHISE 
AGREEMENT AND TO CURE SUCH FAILURE AFTER BEING GIVEN WRITTEN NOTICE THEREOF AND 
A REASONABLE OPPORTUNITY, WHICH IN NO EVENT NEED BE MORE THAN 30 DAYS, TO CURE 
SUCH FAILURE. 

(D) A PROVISION THAT PERMITS A FRANCHISOR TO REFUSE TO RENEW A FRANCHISE 
WITHOUT FAIRLY COMPENSATING THE FRANCHISEE BY REPURCHASE OR OTHER MEANS FOR 
THE FAIR MARKET VALUE, AT THE TIME OF EXPIRATION, OF THE FRANCHISEE’S INVENTORY, 
SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, FIXTURES, AND FURNISHINGS. PERSONALIZED MATERIALS WHICH HAVE 
NO VALUE TO THE FRANCHISOR AND INVENTORY, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, FIXTURES, AND 
FURNISHINGS NOT REASONABLY REQUIRED IN THE CONDUCT OF THE FRANCHISED BUSINESS 
ARE NOT SUBJECT TO COMPENSATION.  THIS SUBSECTION APPLIES ONLY IF:  (i) THE TERM OF 
THE FRANCHISE IS LESS THAN 5 YEARS; AND (ii) THE FRANCHISEE IS PROHIBITED BY THE 
FRANCHISE OR OTHER AGREEMENT FROM CONTINUING TO CONDUCT SUBSTANTIALLY THE SAME 
BUSINESS UNDER ANOTHER TRADEMARK, SERVICE MARK, TRADE NAME, LOGOTYPE, 
ADVERTISING, OR OTHER COMMERCIAL SYMBOL IN THE SAME AREA SUBSEQUENT TO THE 
EXPIRATION OF THE FRANCHISE OR THE FRANCHISEE DOES NOT RECEIVE AT LEAST 6 MONTHS 
ADVANCE NOTICE OF FRANCHISOR’S INTENT NOT TO RENEW THE FRANCHISE. 

(E) A PROVISION THAT PERMITS THE FRANCHISOR TO REFUSE TO RENEW A 
FRANCHISE ON TERMS GENERALLY AVAILABLE TO OTHER FRANCHISEES OF THE SAME CLASS OR 
TYPE UNDER SIMILAR CIRCUMSTANCES. THIS SECTION DOES NOT REQUIRE A RENEWAL 
PROVISION. 

(F) A PROVISION REQUIRING THAT ARBITRATION OR LITIGATION BE CONDUCTED 
OUTSIDE THIS STATE.  THIS SHALL NOT PRECLUDE THE FRANCHISEE FROM ENTERING INTO AN 
AGREEMENT, AT THE TIME OF ARBITRATION, TO CONDUCT ARBITRATION AT A LOCATION 
OUTSIDE THIS STATE. 

(G) A PROVISION WHICH PERMITS A FRANCHISOR TO REFUSE TO PERMIT A TRANSFER 
OF OWNERSHIP OF A FRANCHISE, EXCEPT FOR GOOD CAUSE. THIS SUBDIVISION DOES NOT 
PREVENT A FRANCHISOR FROM EXERCISING A RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL TO PURCHASE THE 
FRANCHISE.  GOOD CAUSE SHALL INCLUDE, BUT IS NOT LIMITED TO: 
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(i) THE FAILURE OF THE PROPOSED TRANSFEREE TO MEET THE 
FRANCHISOR’S THEN CURRENT REASONABLE QUALIFICATIONS OR STANDARDS. 

(ii) THE FACT THAT THE PROPOSED TRANSFEREE IS A COMPETITOR OF 
THE FRANCHISOR OR SUBFRANCHISOR. 

(iii) THE UNWILLINGNESS OF THE PROPOSED TRANSFEREE TO AGREE 
IN WRITING TO COMPLY WITH ALL LAWFUL OBLIGATIONS. 

(iv) THE FAILURE OF THE FRANCHISEE OR PROPOSED TRANSFEREE TO 
PAY ANY SUMS OWING TO THE FRANCHISOR OR TO CURE ANY DEFAULT IN THE FRANCHISE 
AGREEMENT EXISTING AT THE TIME OF THE PROPOSED TRANSFER. 

(H) A PROVISION THAT REQUIRES THE FRANCHISEE TO RESELL TO THE FRANCHISOR 
ITEMS THAT ARE NOT UNIQUELY IDENTIFIED WITH THE FRANCHISOR.  THIS SUBDIVISION DOES 
NOT PROHIBIT A PROVISION THAT GRANTS TO A FRANCHISOR A RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL TO 
PURCHASE THE ASSETS OF A FRANCHISE ON THE SAME TERMS AND CONDITIONS AS A BONA FIDE 
THIRD PARTY WILLING AND ABLE TO PURCHASE THOSE ASSETS, NOR DOES THIS SUBDIVISION 
PROHIBIT A PROVISION THAT GRANTS THE FRANCHISOR THE RIGHT TO ACQUIRE THE ASSETS OF 
A FRANCHISE FOR THE MARKET OR APPRAISED VALUE OF SUCH ASSETS IF THE FRANCHISEE HAS 
BREACHED THE LAWFUL PROVISIONS OF THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT AND HAS FAILED TO CURE 
THE BREACH IN THE MANNER PROVIDED IN SUBDIVISION (C). 

(I) A PROVISION WHICH PERMITS THE FRANCHISOR TO DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY 
CONVEY, ASSIGN, OR OTHERWISE TRANSFER ITS OBLIGATIONS TO FULFILL CONTRACTUAL 
OBLIGATIONS TO THE FRANCHISEE UNLESS PROVISION HAS BEEN MADE FOR PROVIDING THE 
REQUIRED CONTRACTUAL SERVICES. 

(J) EXHIBIT N TO THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT (CERTIFICATION) IS NOT 
APPLICABLE IN MICHIGAN. NO STATEMENT, QUESTIONNAIRE, OR ACKNOWLEDGMENT SIGNED 
OR AGREED TO BY A FRANCHISEE IN CONNECTION WITH THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE 
FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP SHALL HAVE THE EFFECT OF (I) WAIVING ANY CLAIMS UNDER ANY 
APPLICABLE STATE FRANCHISE LAW, INCLUDING FRAUD IN THE INDUCEMENT, OR (II) 
DISCLAIMING RELIANCE ON ANY STATEMENT MADE BY ANY FRANCHISOR, FRANCHISE SELLER, 
OR OTHER PERSON ACTING ON BEHALF OF THE FRANCHISOR. THIS PROVISION SUPERSEDES ANY 
OTHER TERM OF ANY DOCUMENT EXECUTED IN CONNECTION WITH THE FRANCHISE.  

 
* * * * 

THE FACT THAT THERE IS A NOTICE OF THIS OFFERING ON FILE WITH THE ATTORNEY GENERAL 
DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL, RECOMMENDATION, OR ENDORSEMENT BY THE ATTORNEY 
GENERAL. 

 
* * * * 

THE NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE FRANCHISOR'S AGENT IN THIS STATE AUTHORIZED TO RECEIVE 
SERVICE OF PROCESS IS:  DEPT. OF ENERGY, LABOR, & ECONOMIC GROWTH, CORPORATIONS 
DIVISION, P.O. BOX 30054, LANSING, MICHIGAN  48909; 7150 HARRIS DRIVE, LANSING, MICHIGAN  
48909. 
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* * * * 

ANY QUESTIONS REGARDING THIS NOTICE SHOULD BE DIRECTED TO: 

DEPARTMENT OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL 
CONSUMER PROTECTION DIVISION 

ATTN:  FRANCHISE 
670 G. MENNEN WILLIAMS BUILDING 

LANSING, MICHIGAN 48913 
TELEPHONE NUMBER:  517-373-7117 

 
 
NOTE:  NOTWITHSTANDING PARAGRAPH (F) ABOVE, WE INTEND TO, AND YOU AGREE THAT WE 
AND YOU WILL, ENFORCE FULLY THE PROVISIONS OF THE ARBITRATION SECTION OF OUR 
AGREEMENTS. WE BELIEVE THAT PARAGRAPH (F) IS UNCONSTITUTIONAL AND CANNOT 
PRECLUDE US FROM ENFORCING THE ARBITRATION PROVISIONS. 
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Minnesota Disclosure Addendum 
 

In recognition of the requirements of the Minnesota Franchise Law, Minn. Stat. §§ 80C.01 through 
80C.22, and of the Rules and Regulations promulgated thereunder by the Minnesota Commissioner 
of Commerce, Minn. Rules §§ 2860.0100 through 2860.9930, the Franchise Disclosure Document of 
Golden Corral Franchising Systems, Inc. is amended as follows for use in the State of Minnesota: 
 

In Item 17, “Renewal, Termination, Transfer and Dispute Resolution,” is amended to add the 
following: 
 

With respect to franchises governed by Minnesota law, we will comply with Minn. 
Stat. Sec. 80C.14, Subds. 3, 4, and 5, which require, except in certain specified cases, that a 
franchisee be given 90 days’ notice of termination (with 60 days to cure) and 180 days’ notice 
for non-renewal of the franchise agreement. 

 
Minn. Stat. §80C.21 and Minn. Rule 2860.4400J prohibit us from requiring you to 

waive your rights as provided for in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 80C, or your rights to any 
procedure, forum, or remedies provided for by the laws of the jurisdiction. 

 
Minn. Rule 2860.4400D prohibits us from requiring you to assent to a release, 

assignment, novation, or waiver that would relieve any person from liability imposed by 
Minnesota Statutes §§ 80C.01 - 80C.22. 

 
Minnesota Rule 2860.4400J prohibits us from requiring you to waive your rights to a 

trial or to consent to liquidated damages, termination penalties, or judgment notes. This rule 
does not bar a voluntary arbitration of any matter. 

 
Exhibit N to the Franchise Disclosure Document (Certification) is not applicable in 

Minnesota. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a 
franchisee in connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the 
effect of (i) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in 
the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, 
franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes 
any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.  
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Minnesota Amendment to the Franchise Agreement 

In recognition of the requirements of the Minnesota Franchise Law, Minn. Stat. §§ 80C.01 through 
80C.22, and of the Rules and Regulations promulgated thereunder by the Minnesota Commissioner 
of Commerce, Minn. Rules §§ 2860.0100 through 2860.9930, the parties to the attached Golden 
Corral Franchising Systems, Inc. Franchise Agreement (the “Agreement”) agree as follows: 
 

1. Sections 2, 13, and 14 of the Agreement are amended to add the following: 
 

Minnesota law provides franchisees with certain termination, non-renewal, and 
transfer rights.  In sum, Minn. Stat. § 80C.14 (subd. 3, 4, and 5) currently require, except in 
certain specified cases, that a franchisee be given 90 days’ notice of termination (with 60 days 
to cure) and 180 days’ notice of non-renewal of the Franchise Agreement, and that consent 
to the transfer of the franchise not be unreasonably withheld. 

 
2. Section 22 of the Agreement, under the heading “Entire Agreement,” is amended to 

read as follows:  
 

This Agreement, the documents referred to herein, and the Attachments hereto, if 
any, constitute the entire, full, and complete Agreement between Franchisor and Franchisee 
concerning the subject matter hereof, and supersede any and all prior agreements, no other 
representations having induced Franchisee to execute this Agreement. No amendment, 
change, or variance from this Agreement shall be binding on either party unless mutually 
agreed to by the parties and executed in writing.  Nothing in this Section 22 is intended as, 
nor shall it be interpreted as, a disclaimer by Franchisor of any representation made in its 
Franchise Disclosure Document, including any exhibits or amendments thereof.  

 
3.  Section 23 of the Agreement, under the heading “Applicable Law,” is amended to add 

the following new subsections 23.7 and 23.8: 
 

23.7. Under Minnesota Statutes Section 80C.21, this Section 23 will not in any way 
abrogate or reduce any rights of the Franchisee as provided for in Minnesota Statutes, 
Chapter 80C, including the right to submit matters to the jurisdiction of the courts in 
Minnesota. Minnesota Statutes Section 80C.21 and Minnesota Rule 2860.4400J prohibit us 
from requiring litigation to be conducted outside Minnesota. 

 
23.8. Notwithstanding any general release required to be executed pursuant to the 

Agreement, you will not be required to assent to a release, assignment, novation, or waiver 
that would relieve any person from liability imposed by Minnesota Statute §§ 80C.01 - 80C.22, 
provided that the foregoing shall not bar the voluntary settlement of disputes. 

 
4.  Sections 25.1, 25.2 and 25.3 of the Agreement, under the heading 

“Acknowledgments,” are deleted in their entirety.  No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment 
signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the commencement of the franchise 
relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, 
including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any 
franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision 
supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise. 
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5. Each provision of this Amendment shall be effective only to the extent, with respect 
to such provision, that the jurisdictional requirements of the Minnesota Franchise Law or the Rules 
and Regulations promulgated thereunder by the Minnesota Commissioner of Commerce are met 
independently without reference to this Amendment. 
 
 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed, sealed, and delivered this Minnesota 
Amendment to the Franchise Agreement on the same date as the Franchise Agreement was executed. 
 

  GOLDEN CORRAL FRANCHISING SYSTEMS, INC. 
   
   
  By:  
  R. Chappell Phillips, Executive Vice President  

Email:  chappell.phillips@goldencorral.net  
   
  FRANCHISEE 
   
  By:  
           Name/Title:  ______________ 
           Email: ________________ 
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Minnesota Amendment to the Area Development Agreement 
 

In recognition of the requirements of the Minnesota Franchise Law, Minn. Stat. §§ 80C.01 
through 80C.22, and of the Rules and Regulations promulgated thereunder by the Minnesota 
Commissioner of Commerce, Minn. Rules §§ 2860.0100 through 2860.9930, the parties to the 
attached Golden Corral Franchising Systems, Inc. Area Development Agreement (the “Agreement”) 
agree as follows: 
 

1. Section 7.2.2.3 of the Agreement, under the heading “Transfers,” is deleted and 
replaced with the following: 

 
7.2.2.3 The transferee shall have executed a general release under seal, in a form 

satisfactory to Franchisor, of any and all claims against Franchisor and its officers, directors, 
shareholders and employees, in their corporate and individual capacities, including, without 
limitation, claims arising under federal, state, and local laws, rules and ordinances, excluding 
only such claims as the transferor may have under the Minnesota Franchise Law and the 
Rules and Regulations promulgated thereunder by the Minnesota Commissioner of 
Commerce; 

 
2. Sections 6 and 7 of the Agreement are each amended to add the following: 

 
Minnesota law provides franchisees with certain termination, non-renewal, and 

transfer rights. In sum, Minn. Stat. § 80C.14 (subd. 3, 4, and 5) currently require, except in 
certain specified cases, that a franchisee be given 90 days notice of termination (with 60 days 
to cure) and 180 days notice of non-renewal of the Franchise/Area Development Agreement, 
and that consent to the transfer of the franchise not be unreasonably withheld. 

 
3. Section 12 of the Agreement, under the heading “Entire Agreement,” is amended to 

read as follows:  
 
This Development Agreement and the documents, exhibits and attachments referred to 
herein, if any, constitute the entire, full, and complete agreement between Franchisor and 
Area Developer concerning the subject matter hereof and supersede any and all prior 
agreements, no other representations having induced Area Developer to execute this 
Development Agreement. No amendment, change, or variance from this Development 
Agreement shall be binding on either party unless executed in writing. Nothing in this 
Section 12 is intended as, nor shall it be interpreted as, a disclaimer by Franchisor of any 
representation made in its Franchise Disclosure Document, including any exhibits or 
amendments thereof. 

 
4. Section 13 of the Agreement, under the heading “Applicable Law,” is amended to add 

the following new subsection 13.7: 
 

13.7 Under Minnesota Statutes Section 80C.21, this Section 13 will not in any way 
abrogate or reduce any of your rights as provided for in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 80C, 
including the right to submit matters to the jurisdiction of the courts in Minnesota. Minnesota 
Statutes Section 80C.21 and Minnesota Rule 2860.4400J prohibit us from requiring litigation 
to be conducted outside Minnesota. 

 



 

MN-2 
Golden Corral/2023 State Addenda 

5. Sections 15.1, 15.2 and 15.3 of the Agreement, under the heading 
“Acknowledgments,” are deleted in their entirety.  No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment 
signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the commencement of the franchise 
relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, 
including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any 
franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision 
supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise. 

 
6. Each provision of this Amendment shall be effective only to the extent, with respect 

to such provision, that the jurisdictional requirements of the Minnesota Franchise Law or the Rules 
and Regulations promulgated thereunder by the Minnesota Commissioner of Commerce are met 
independently without reference to this Amendment. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed, sealed, and delivered this 
Minnesota Amendment to the Area Development Agreement on the same date as the Area 
Development Agreement was executed. 

 
  GOLDEN CORRAL FRANCHISING SYSTEMS, INC. 
   
   
  By:  
  R. Chappell Phillips, Executive Vice President  

Email:  chappell.phillips@goldencorral.net  
   
  AREA DEVELOPER 
   
  By:  
           Name/Title:  ______________ 
           Email: ________________ 
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New York Disclosure Addendum 
 

In recognition of the requirements of the New York General Business Law, Article 33, Sections 
680 through 695, and of the regulations promulgated thereunder (N.Y. Comp. Code R. & Regs. tit. 13, 
§§ 200.1 through 201.16), the Franchise Disclosure Document of Golden Corral Franchising Systems, 
Inc. is amended as follows for use in the State of New York: 

 
INFORMATION COMPARING FRANCHISORS IS AVAILABLE. CALL THE STATE ADMINISTRATORS 
LISTED IN EXHIBIT A OR YOUR PUBLIC LIBRARY FOR SOURCES OF INFORMATION.  REGISTRATION 
OF THIS FRANCHISE BY NEW YORK STATE DOES NOT MEAN THAT NEW YORK STATE 
RECOMMENDS IT OR HAS VERIFIED THE INFORMATION IN THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT.  IF YOU 
LEARN THAT ANYTHING IN THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT IS UNTRUE, CONTACT THE FEDERAL 
TRADE COMMISSION AND THE NEW YORK STATE DEPARTMENT OF LAW, BUREAU OF INVESTOR 
PROTECTION AND SECURITIES, 28 LIBERTY STREET, 21ST FLOOR, NEW YORK, NEW YORK  10005. 
 
THE FRANCHISOR MAY, IF IT CHOOSES, NEGOTIATE WITH YOU ABOUT ITEMS COVERED IN THE 
DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT. HOWEVER, THE FRANCHISOR CANNOT USE THE NEGOTIATING 
PROCESS TO PREVAIL UPON YOU TO ACCEPT TERMS WHICH ARE LESS FAVORABLE THAN THOSE 
SET FORTH IN THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT. 
 
Item 3, “Litigation,” additional disclosure: 
 

Neither we, nor any of our predecessors, nor any person identified in Item 2 above, nor any 
affiliate offering franchises under our trademark: 
 

a. Has any administrative, criminal, or material civil action pending against that 
person alleging a felony, a violation of a franchise, antitrust, or securities law, fraud, 
embezzlement, fraudulent conversion, misappropriation of property, unfair or deceptive 
practices, or comparable civil or misdemeanor allegations. There are no pending actions, 
other than routine litigation incidental to the business, which are significant in the context of 
the number of franchises and the size, nature or financial condition of the System or its 
business operations. 

 
b. Has been convicted of a felony or pleaded nolo contendere to a felony charge 

or, within the ten-year period immediately preceding the date of this disclosure document, 
has been convicted of or pleaded nolo contendere to a misdemeanor charge or has been the 
subject of a civil action alleging violation of a franchise, antifraud or securities law, fraud, 
embezzlement, fraudulent conversion or misappropriation of property, or unfair or deceptive 
practices or comparable allegations. 

 
c. Is subject to a currently effective injunctive or restrictive order or decree 

relating to the franchise or under any federal, state, or Canadian franchise, securities, 
antitrust, trade regulation, or trade practice law, resulting from a concluded or pending action 
or proceeding brought by a public agency; or is subject to any currently effective order of any 
national securities association or national securities exchange (as defined in the Securities 
and Exchange Act of 1934) suspending or expelling such person from membership in such 
association or exchange; or is subject to a currently effective injunctive or restrictive order 
relating to any other business activity as a result of an action brought by a public agency or 
department, including, without limitation, actions affecting a license as a real estate broker 
or sales agent. 
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Item 4, “Bankruptcy,” additional disclosure: 
 

Except as described in this Item, neither we, our affiliates, our predecessors, officers, 
or general partners, during the ten year period immediately before the date of the disclosure 
document: (a) filed as a debtor (or had filed against it) a petition to start an action under the 
U.S. Bankruptcy Code or any foreign bankruptcy laws; (b) obtained a discharge of its debts 
under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or any foreign bankruptcy laws; or (c) was a principal officer 
of a company or general partner of a partnership that either filed as a debtor (or had filed 
against it) a petition to start an action under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or any foreign 
bankruptcy laws, or that obtained a discharge of its debts under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or 
any foreign bankruptcy laws during or within one year after the officer or general partner 
held this position in the company or partnership.. 

 
Item 17, “Renewal, Termination, Transfer and Dispute Resolution,” revised disclosures: 

 
The following sentence is added to item “d”:  

“You may also terminate the Franchise Agreement or Area Development Agreement 
on any grounds available by law.” 

 
The following sentence is added to item “j”: 

“However, no assignment will be made by franchisor except to an assignee who, in 
our good faith judgment, is willing and able to assume our obligations under the Franchise 
Agreement or Area Development Agreement.” 

 
The following sentence is added to item “w”: 

 
“The foregoing choice of law should not be considered a waiver of any right conferred 

upon you by the General Business Law of the State of New York, Article 33.” 
 
Item 17, “Renewal, Termination, Transfer and Dispute Resolution,” additional disclosures: 

 
The New York General Business Law, Article 33, Sections 680 through 695, may 

supersede any provision of the Franchise Agreement or Area Development Agreement 
inconsistent with that law. 

 You must sign a general release when you transfer area development rights, or when 
you renew or transfer a franchise. This provision may not be enforceable under New York 
law. 
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Item 22, “Contracts,” additional disclosures: 
 
Exhibit N to the Franchise Disclosure Document (Certification) is not applicable in 

New York. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a 
franchisee in connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the 
effect of (i) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in 
the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, 
franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes 
any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.  
 

 

 

STATEMENT OF DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT ACCURACY 

THE FRANCHISOR REPRESENTS THAT THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT DOES NOT 
KNOWINGLY OMIT ANY MATERIAL FACT OR CONTAIN ANY UNTRUE STATEMENT 

OF A MATERIAL FACT. 
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New York Amendment to the Franchise Agreement 

In recognition of the requirements of the New York General Business Law, Article 33, Sections 
680 through 695, and of the regulations promulgated thereunder (N.Y. Comp. Code R. & Regs., tit. 13, 
§§ 200.1 through 201.16), the parties to the attached Golden Corral Franchising Systems, Inc. 
Franchise Agreement (the “Agreement”) agree as follows: 

 
1. Any provision in the Franchise Agreement that is inconsistent with the New York 

General Business Law, Article 33, Sections 680 – 695 may not be enforceable. 
 
2. Releases. Section 2.2.7 and Section 13.2.2.3 are each amended to add the following: 
  
The foregoing release of claims does not release any claim you may have under New York 

General Business Law, Article 33, Sections 680-695. 
 
3. Assignment by Franchisor. Section 13 is amended by adding the following: 
 
Golden Corral will not assign its rights under the Franchise Agreement except to an assignee 

who in our good faith judgment is willing and able to assume our obligations under the Franchise 
Agreement. 

 
4. Termination by Franchisee. Section 14 is amended by adding the following: 
 
You also may terminate this Agreement on any grounds available by law under the provisions 

of Article 33 of the General Business Law of the State of New York. 
 
5. Entire Agreement. Section 22 is amended to read as follows:  

 
This Agreement, the documents referred to herein, and the Attachments hereto, if any, 
constitute the entire, full, and complete Agreement between Franchisor and Franchisee 
concerning the subject matter hereof, and supersede any and all prior agreements, no 
other representations having induced Franchisee to execute this Agreement. No 
amendment, change, or variance from this Agreement shall be binding on either party 
unless mutually agreed to by the parties and executed in writing.  Nothing in this Section 
22 is intended as, nor shall it be interpreted as, a disclaimer by Franchisor of any 
representation made in its Franchise Disclosure Document, including any exhibits or 
amendments thereof.  

 
6.  Acknowledgements. Sections 25.1, 25.2 and 25.3 are deleted in their entirety.  No 

statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with 
the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under 
any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on 
any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the 
franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with 
the franchise. 
 

7.  Governing Law. Section 23.1 is amended by adding the following: 
 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the New York General Business Law shall govern any claim 

arising under that law. 
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8. This Amendment will have effect only if the Franchise Agreement and/or the 

relationship between you and Golden Corral satisfy all of the jurisdictional requirements of the New 
York General Business Law, without considering this Amendment. Except as expressly modified by 
this Amendment, the Franchise Agreement remains unmodified and in full force and effect. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed, sealed, and delivered this New York 
Amendment to the Franchise Agreement on the same date as the Franchise Agreement was executed. 
 

  GOLDEN CORRAL FRANCHISING SYSTEMS, INC. 
   
   
  By:  
  R. Chappell Phillips, Executive Vice President  

Email:  chappell.phillips@goldencorral.net  
   
  FRANCHISEE 
   
  By:  
           Name/Title:  ______________ 
           Email: ________________ 
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New York Amendment to the Area Development Agreement 

In recognition of the requirements of the New York General Business Law, Article 33, Sections 
680 through 695, and of the regulations promulgated thereunder (N.Y. Comp. Code R. & Regs., tit. 13, 
§§ 200.1 through 201.16), the parties to the attached Golden Corral Franchising Systems, Inc. Area 
Development Agreement (the “Agreement”) agree as follows: 

 
1. Any provision in the Agreement that is inconsistent with the New York General 

Business Law, Article 33, Sections 680 – 695 may not be enforceable. 
 
2. Release. Section 7.2.2.3 is amended to add the following: 
  
The foregoing release of claims does not release any claim you may have under New York 

General Business Law, Article 33, Sections 680-695. 
 
3. Assignment by Franchisor. Section 7.1 is amended by adding the following: 
 
Golden Corral will not assign its rights under the Agreement except to an assignee who in our 

good faith judgment is willing and able to assume our obligations under the Agreement. 
 
4. Termination by You. Section 6 is amended by adding the following: 
 
You also may terminate this Agreement on any grounds available by law under the provisions 

of Article 33 of the General Business Law of the State of New York. 
 
5. Entire Agreement. Section 12 is amended to read as follows:  

 
This Development Agreement and the documents, exhibits and attachments referred to 
herein, if any, constitute the entire, full, and complete agreement between Franchisor and 
Area Developer concerning the subject matter hereof and supersede any and all prior 
agreements, no other representations having induced Area Developer to execute this 
Development Agreement. No amendment, change, or variance from this Development 
Agreement shall be binding on either party unless executed in writing. Nothing in this 
Section 12 is intended as, nor shall it be interpreted as, a disclaimer by Franchisor of any 
representation made in its Franchise Disclosure Document, including any exhibits or 
amendments thereof. 

 
6. Governing Law. Section 13.1 is amended by adding the following: 
 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the New York General Business Law shall govern any claim 

arising under that law. 
 
7. Acknowledgments.  Sections 15.1, 15.2 and 15.3 are deleted in their entirety.  No 

statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with 
the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under 
any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on 
any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the 
franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with 
the franchise. 
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8. This Amendment will have effect only if the Agreement and/or the relationship 
between you and Golden Corral satisfy all of the jurisdictional requirements of the New York General 
Business Law, without considering this Amendment. Except as expressly modified by this 
Amendment, the Agreement remains unmodified and in full force and effect. 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed, sealed, and delivered this New 
York Amendment to the Area Development Agreement on the same date as the Area Development 
Agreement was executed. 

 
  GOLDEN CORRAL FRANCHISING SYSTEMS, INC. 
   
   
  By:  
  R. Chappell Phillips, Executive Vice President  

Email:  chappell.phillips@goldencorral.net  
   
  AREA DEVELOPER 
   
  By:  
           Name/Title:  ______________ 
           Email: ________________ 
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North Dakota Disclosure Addendum 
 

In recognition of the requirements of the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law, N.D. Cent. 
Code, §§ 51-19-01 through 51-19-17, and the policies of the North Dakota Securities Commission, the 
Franchise Disclosure Document of Golden Corral Franchising Systems, Inc. is amended as follows for 
use in the State of North Dakota: 

 
The North Dakota Securities Commissioner has held the following to be unfair, unjust, or 

inequitable to North Dakota franchisees (Section 51-19-09, N.D.C.C.): 
 

A.  Restrictive Covenants: Franchise disclosure documents which disclose the 
existence of covenants restricting competition contrary to Section 9-08-06, N.D.C.C., without 
further disclosing that such covenants will be subject to this statute. 
 
 B. Situs of Arbitration Proceedings: Franchise agreements providing that the 
parties must agree to arbitrate disputes at a location that is remote from the site of the 
franchisee's business. 
 
 C. Restriction on Forum: Requiring North Dakota franchisees to consent to the 
jurisdiction of courts outside of North Dakota. 
 
 D. Liquidated Damages and Termination Penalties: Requiring North Dakota 
franchisees to consent to liquidated damages or termination penalties. 
 
 E. Applicable Laws: Franchise agreements which specify that any claims arising 
under the North Dakota franchise law will be governed by the laws of a state other than North 
Dakota. 
 
 F. Waiver of Trial by Jury: Requiring North Dakota franchisees to consent to the 
waiver of a trial by jury. 
 
 G. Waiver of Exemplary and Punitive Damages: Requiring North Dakota 
franchisees to consent to a waiver of exemplary and punitive damages. 
 
 H. General Release: Requiring North Dakota franchisees to execute a general 
release of claims as a condition of renewal or transfer of a franchise. 
 
 I. Limitation of Claims: Requiring that North Dakota franchisees to consent to a 
limitation of claims. The statute of limitations under North Dakota law applies. 
 
 J. Enforcement of Agreement: Requiring that North Dakota franchisees to pay 
all costs and expenses incurred by the franchisor in enforcing the agreement. The prevailing 
party in any enforcement action is entitled to recover all costs and expenses including 
attorney's fees. 
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Exhibit N to the Franchise Disclosure Document (Certification) is not applicable in North 
Dakota. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in 
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving 
any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) 
disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting 
on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in 
connection with the franchise.  
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North Dakota Amendment to the Franchise Agreement  
and Area Development Agreement 

 
In recognition of the requirements of the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law, N.D. Cent. 

Code §§ 51-19-01 through 51-19-17, and the policies of the North Dakota Securities Commission, the 
Franchise Agreement and Area Development Agreement of Golden Corral Franchising Systems, Inc. 
are amended to add the following: 

 
1. The North Dakota Securities Commissioner has held the following to be unfair, unjust, or 
inequitable to North Dakota franchisees (Section 51-19-09, N.D.C.C.): 
 
 A.  Restrictive Covenants:  Franchise disclosure documents which disclose the existence 
of covenants restricting competition contrary to Section 9-08-06, N.D.C.C., without further disclosing 
that such covenants will be subject to this statute. 
 
 B. Situs of Arbitration Proceedings:  Franchise agreements providing that the parties 
must agree to arbitrate disputes at a location that is remote from the site of the franchisee's business. 
 
 C. Restriction on Forum:  Requiring North Dakota franchisees to consent to the 
jurisdiction of courts outside of North Dakota. 
 
 D. Liquidated Damages and Termination Penalties:  Requiring North Dakota franchisees 
to consent to liquidated damages or termination penalties. 
 
 E. Applicable Laws:  Franchise agreements which specify that any claims arising under 
the North Dakota franchise law will be governed by the laws of a state other than North Dakota. 
 
 F. Waiver of Trial by Jury:  Requiring North Dakota franchisees to consent to the waiver 
of a trial by jury. 
 
 G. Waiver of Exemplary and Punitive Damages:  Requiring North Dakota franchisees to 
consent to a waiver of exemplary and punitive damages. 
 
 H. General Release:  Requiring North Dakota franchisees to execute a general release of 
claims as a condition of renewal or transfer of a franchise. 
 
 I. Limitation of Claims: Requiring that North Dakota franchisees to consent to a 
limitation of claims. The statute of limitations under North Dakota law applies. 
 
 J. Enforcement of Agreement: Requiring that North Dakota franchisees to pay all costs 
and expenses incurred by the franchisor in enforcing the agreement. The prevailing party in any 
enforcement action is entitled to recover all costs and expenses including attorney's fees. 
 
2. Section 22 of the Franchise Agreement, under the heading “Entire Agreement,” is amended to 
read as follows:  

 
This Agreement, the documents referred to herein, and the Attachments hereto, if any, 
constitute the entire, full, and complete Agreement between Franchisor and Franchisee 
concerning the subject matter hereof, and supersede any and all prior agreements, no 
other representations having induced Franchisee to execute this Agreement. No 
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amendment, change, or variance from this Agreement shall be binding on either party 
unless mutually agreed to by the parties and executed in writing.  Nothing in this Section 
22 is intended as, nor shall it be interpreted as, a disclaimer by Franchisor of any 
representation made in its Franchise Disclosure Document, including any exhibits or 
amendments thereof.  

 
3. Section 12 of the Area Development Agreement, under the heading “Entire Agreement,” is 
amended to read as follows:  

 
This Development Agreement and the documents, exhibits and attachments referred to 
herein, if any, constitute the entire, full, and complete agreement between Franchisor and 
Area Developer concerning the subject matter hereof and supersede any and all prior 
agreements, no other representations having induced Area Developer to execute this 
Development Agreement. No amendment, change, or variance from this Development 
Agreement shall be binding on either party unless executed in writing. Nothing in this 
Section 12 is intended as, nor shall it be interpreted as, a disclaimer by Franchisor of any 
representation made in its Franchise Disclosure Document, including any exhibits or 
amendments thereof. 

 
4. Sections 25.1, 25.2 and 25.3 of the Franchise Agreement and Sections 15.1, 15.2 and 15.3 of 
the Area Development Agreement, under the heading “Acknowledgments,” are deleted in their 
entirety.  No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in 
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving 
any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) 
disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting 
on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in 
connection with the franchise. 
 
5. This Amendment will have effect only if the Agreement and/or the relationship between you 
and Golden Corral satisfy all of the jurisdictional requirements of the North Dakota Franchise 
Investment Law, without considering this Amendment. Except as expressly modified by this 
Amendment, the Agreement remains unmodified and in full force and effect. 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed, sealed, and delivered this North 
Dakota Amendment to the Franchise Agreement and Area Development Agreement on the same 
date as the Franchise Agreement and Area Development Agreement were executed. 
 

  GOLDEN CORRAL FRANCHISING SYSTEMS, INC. 
   
   
  By:  
  R. Chappell Phillips, Executive Vice President  

Email:  chappell.phillips@goldencorral.net  
   
  FRANCHISEE 
   
  By:  
           Name/Title:  ______________ 
           Email: ________________ 

 
 
 



 

RI-1 
Golden Corral/2023 State Addenda 

Rhode Island Disclosure Addendum 

In recognition of the requirements of the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act, §§ 19-28.1-
1 through 19-28.1-34, the Franchise Disclosure Document of Golden Corral Franchising Systems, Inc. 
is amended as follows for use in the State of Rhode Island: 

  
Item 17, “Renewal, Termination, Transfer and Dispute Resolution,” is amended to add the 

following: 
 

§ 19-28.1-14 of the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act provides that “A provision 
in a franchise agreement restricting jurisdiction or venue to a forum outside this state or 
requiring the application of the laws of another state is void with respect to a claim otherwise 
enforceable under this Act.” 

 
Item 22, “Contracts,” additional disclosures:  

 
Exhibit N to the Franchise Disclosure Document (Certification) is not applicable in 

Rhode Island. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a 
franchisee in connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the 
effect of (i) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in 
the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, 
franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes 
any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise.  
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Rhode Island Amendment to the Franchise Agreement 

In recognition of the requirements of the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act, §§ 19-28.1-
1 through 19-28.1-34, the parties to the attached Golden Corral Franchising Systems, Inc. Franchise 
Agreement (the “Agreement”) agree as follows: 

 
1. Section 22 of the Agreement, under the heading “Entire Agreement,” is amended to 

read as follows:  
 

This Agreement, the documents referred to herein, and the Attachments hereto, if any, 
constitute the entire, full, and complete Agreement between Franchisor and Franchisee 
concerning the subject matter hereof, and supersede any and all prior agreements, no 
other representations having induced Franchisee to execute this Agreement. No 
amendment, change, or variance from this Agreement shall be binding on either party 
unless mutually agreed to by the parties and executed in writing.  Nothing in this Section 
22 is intended as, nor shall it be interpreted as, a disclaimer by Franchisor of any 
representation made in its Franchise Disclosure Document, including any exhibits or 
amendments thereof.  

 
2. Section 23 of the Agreement, under the heading “Applicable Law,” is amended to add 

the following new subsection 23.7: 
 

23.7. §19-28.1-14 of the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act provides that “A 
provision in a franchise agreement restricting jurisdiction or venue to a form outside this 
state or requiring the application of the laws of another state is void with respect to a claim 
otherwise enforceable under this Act.” 

 
3. Sections 25.1, 25.2 and 25.3 of the Agreement, under the heading 

“Acknowledgments,” are deleted in their entirety.  No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment 
signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the commencement of the franchise 
relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, 
including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any 
franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision 
supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise. 
 

4. This Amendment shall be effective only to the extent, with respect to such provision, 
that the jurisdictional requirements of the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act, §§ 19-28.1-1 
through 19-28.1-34, are met independently without reference to this Amendment. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed and delivered this Rhode 
Island Amendment to the Franchise Agreement on the same date as the Franchise Agreement was 
executed. 
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  GOLDEN CORRAL FRANCHISING SYSTEMS, INC. 
   
   
  By:  
  R. Chappell Phillips, Executive Vice President  

Email:  chappell.phillips@goldencorral.net  
   
  FRANCHISEE 
   
  By:  
           Name/Title:  ______________ 
           Email: ________________ 
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Rhode Island Amendment to the Area Development Agreement 

In recognition of the requirements of the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act, §§ 19-28.1-
1 through 19-28.1-34, the parties to the attached Golden Corral Franchising Systems, Inc. Area 
Development Agreement (the “Agreement”) agree as follows: 

 
1. Section 12 of the Agreement, under the heading “Entire Agreement,” is amended to 

read as follows:  
 
This Development Agreement and the documents, exhibits and attachments referred to 
herein, if any, constitute the entire, full, and complete agreement between Franchisor and 
Area Developer concerning the subject matter hereof and supersede any and all prior 
agreements, no other representations having induced Area Developer to execute this 
Development Agreement. No amendment, change, or variance from this Development 
Agreement shall be binding on either party unless executed in writing. Nothing in this 
Section 12 is intended as, nor shall it be interpreted as, a disclaimer by Franchisor of any 
representation made in its Franchise Disclosure Document, including any exhibits or 
amendments thereof. 

 
2.  Section 13 of the Agreement, under the heading “Applicable Law,” is amended to add 

the following new subsection 13.7: 
 

13.7 §19-28.1-14 of the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act provides that “A 
provision in a franchise agreement restricting jurisdiction or venue to a form outside this 
state or requiring the application of the laws of another state is void with respect to a claim 
otherwise enforceable under this Act.” 

 
3.  Sections 15.1, 15.2 and 15.3 of the Agreement, under the heading 

“Acknowledgments,” are deleted in their entirety.  No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment 
signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the commencement of the franchise 
relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, 
including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any 
franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision 
supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise. 
 

4. This Amendment shall be effective only to the extent, with respect to such provision, 
that the jurisdictional requirements of the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act, §§ 19-28.1-1 
through 19-28.1-34, are met independently without reference to this Amendment. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed and delivered this Rhode 
Island Amendment to the Area Development Agreement on the same date as the Area Development 
Agreement was executed. 
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  GOLDEN CORRAL FRANCHISING SYSTEMS, INC. 
   
   
  By:  
  R. Chappell Phillips, Executive Vice President  

Email:  chappell.phillips@goldencorral.net  
   
  AREA DEVELOPER 
   
  By:  
           Name/Title:  ______________ 
           Email: ________________ 
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Virginia Disclosure Addendum 
 

In recognition of the requirements of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, the Franchise 
Disclosure Document of Golden Corral Franchising Systems, Inc. is amended as follows for use in the 
Commonwealth of Virginia: 

 
Item 17 (h), entitled “’Cause’ defined – non-curable defaults,” is amended to add the 

following:   
 

Pursuant to Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, it is unlawful for 
a franchisor to cancel a franchise without reasonable cause. If any grounds for default or 
termination stated in the Franchise Agreement does not constitute “reasonable cause,” as that 
term may be defined in the Virginia Retail Franchising Act or the laws of Virginia, that 
provision may not be enforceable. 

 
Item 22, “Contracts,” additional disclosures:  
 
Exhibit N to the Franchise Disclosure Document (Certification) is not applicable in Virginia. 

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection 
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims 
under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming 
reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf 
of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection 
with the franchise.  
 
 

 



 

WA-1 
Golden Corral/2023 State Addenda 

Washington Disclosure Addendum 
 

In recognition of the requirements of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, 
Wash. Rev. Code §§ 19.100.180, the Franchise Disclosure Document of Golden Corral Franchising 
Systems, Inc. is amended as follows for use in the State of Washington: 

 
The State of Washington has a statute, RCW 19.100.180, which may supersede the Franchise 

Agreement in your relationship with us, including the areas of termination and renewal of your 
franchise. There may also be court decisions which may supersede the Franchise Agreement in your 
relationship with us, including the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise.   

 
In any arbitration involving a franchise purchased in Washington, the arbitration site shall be 

either in the state of Washington, or in a place mutually agreed upon at the time of the arbitration, or 
as determined by the arbitrator.   
 

In the event of a conflict of laws between the Washington Franchise Investment Protection 
Act and the law chosen in the Franchise Agreement, the provisions of the Washington Franchise 
Investment Protection Act, Chapter 19.100 RCW will prevail.   
 

A release or waiver of rights executed by a franchisee will not include rights under the 
Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act or any rule or order thereunder, except when 
executed pursuant to a negotiated settlement after the Franchise Agreement is in effect and where 
the parties are represented by independent counsel.  Provisions such as those that unreasonably 
restrict or limit the statute of limitations period for claims under the Act, rights or remedies under 
the Act such as a right to a jury trial may not be enforceable. 
 

Transfer fees are collectable to the extent that they reflect the franchisor’s reasonable 
estimated or actual costs in effecting a transfer. 
 

Pursuant to RCW 49.62.020, a noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable against an 
employee, including an employee of a franchisee, unless the employee’s earnings from the party 
seeking enforcement, when annualized, exceed $100,000 per year (an amount that will be adjusted 
annually for inflation). In addition, a noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable against an 
independent contractor of a franchisee under RCW 49.62.030 unless the independent contractor’s 
earnings from the party seeking enforcement, when annualized, exceed $250,000 per year (an 
amount that will be adjusted annually for inflation). As a result, any provisions contained in the 
franchise agreement or elsewhere that conflict with these limitations are void and unenforceable in 
Washington. 

 
RCW 49.62.060 prohibits a franchisor from restricting, restraining, or prohibiting a 

franchisee from (i) soliciting or hiring any employee of a franchisee of the same franchisor or (ii) 
soliciting or hiring any employee of the franchisor. As a result, any such provisions contained in the 
franchise agreement or elsewhere are void and unenforceable in Washington.  Each provision of this 
Addendum to the disclosure document shall be effective only to the extent, with respect to such 
provision, that the jurisdictional requirements of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection 
Act, Wash. Rev. Code §§ 19.100.180, are met independently without reference to this Addendum to 
the disclosure document. 
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Exhibit N to the Franchise Disclosure Document (Certification) is not applicable in 
Washington. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in 
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving 
any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) 
disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting 
on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in 
connection with the franchise.  
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Washington Amendment to the Franchise Agreement 
 

In recognition of the requirements of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, 
Wash. Rev. Code §§ 19.100.010 through 19.100.940, the parties to the attached Golden Corral 
Franchising Systems, Inc. Franchise Agreement (the “Agreement”) agree as follows: 

 
1. Washington Modifications.   

A.  In the event of a conflict of laws, the provisions of the Washington Franchise 
Investment Protection Act, Chapter 19.100 RCW will prevail.  

B. The State of Washington has a statute, RCW 19.100.180, which may supersede the 
Franchise Agreement in your relationship with us, including in the areas of termination and renewal 
of your franchise. There also may be court decisions which may supersede the Franchise Agreement 
in your relationship with us, including in the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise.   

C.  In any arbitration or mediation involving a franchise purchased in Washington, the 
arbitration or mediation site will be either in the state of Washington, or in a place mutually agreed 
upon at the time of the arbitration or mediation, or as determined by the arbitrator or mediator at 
the time of arbitration or mediation. In addition, if litigation is not precluded by the franchise 
agreement, a franchisee may bring an action or proceeding arising out of or in connection with the 
sale of franchises, or a violation of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, in 
Washington.  

D. A release or waiver of rights executed by a franchisee will not include rights under 
the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act or any rule or order thereunder, except when 
executed pursuant to a negotiated settlement after the agreement is in effect and where the parties 
are represented by independent counsel. Provisions such as those which unreasonably restrict or 
limit the statute of limitations period for claims under the Act, or rights or remedies under the Act 
such as a right to a trial by jury, may not be enforceable. 

E. Transfer fees are collectible to the extent that they reflect our reasonable estimated 
or actual costs in effecting a transfer.  

F.  Pursuant to RCW 49.62.020, a noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable 
against an employee, including an employee of a franchisee, unless the employee’s earnings from the 
party seeking enforcement, when annualized, exceed $100,000 per year (an amount that will be 
adjusted annually for inflation). In addition, a noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable 
against an independent contractor of a franchisee under RCW 49.62.030 unless the independent 
contractor’s earnings from the party seeking enforcement, when annualized, exceed $250,000 per 
year (an amount that will be adjusted annually for inflation). As a result, any provisions contained in 
the franchise agreement or elsewhere that conflict with these limitations are void and unenforceable 
in Washington. 

G. RCW 49.62.060 prohibits a franchisor from restricting, restraining, or prohibiting a 
franchisee from (i) soliciting or hiring any employee of a franchisee of the same franchisor or (ii) 
soliciting or hiring any employee of the franchisor. As a result, any such provisions contained in the 
franchise agreement or elsewhere are void and unenforceable in Washington. 
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2. Section 22 of the Agreement, under the heading “Entire Agreement,” is amended to read as 
follows:  

 
This Agreement, the documents referred to herein, and the Attachments hereto, if any, 
constitute the entire, full, and complete Agreement between Franchisor and Franchisee 
concerning the subject matter hereof, and supersede any and all prior agreements, no 
other representations having induced Franchisee to execute this Agreement. No 
amendment, change, or variance from this Agreement shall be binding on either party 
unless mutually agreed to by the parties and executed in writing.  Nothing in this Section 
22 is intended as, nor shall it be interpreted as, a disclaimer by Franchisor of any 
representation made in its Franchise Disclosure Document, including any exhibits or 
amendments thereof.  

 
3. Sections 25.1, 25.2 and 25.3 of the Agreement, under the heading “Acknowledgments,” are 
deleted in their entirety.  No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a 
franchisee in connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect 
of (i) waiving any claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, 
or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person 
acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document 
executed in connection with the franchise. 
 

4. Construction.  In all other respects, the Franchise Agreement will be construed and enforced 
in accordance with its terms. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed and delivered this Washington 
Amendment to the Franchise Agreement on the same date as the Franchise Agreement was executed. 

 

  GOLDEN CORRAL FRANCHISING SYSTEMS, INC. 
   
   
  By:  
  R. Chappell Phillips, Executive Vice President  

Email:  chappell.phillips@goldencorral.net  
   
  FRANCHISEE 
   
  By:  
           Name/Title:  ______________ 
           Email: ________________ 
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Washington Amendment to the Area Development Agreement 
 

In recognition of the requirements of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, 
Wash. Rev. Code §§ 19.100.010 through 19.100.940, the parties to the attached Golden Corral 
Franchising Systems, Inc. Area Development Agreement (the “Agreement”) agree as follows: 

 
1. Washington Modifications.   

A.  In the event of a conflict of laws, the provisions of the Washington Franchise 
Investment Protection Act, Chapter 19.100 RCW will prevail.  

B. The State of Washington has a statute, RCW 19.100.180, which may supersede the 
Agreement in your relationship with us, including in the areas of termination and renewal of your 
franchise. There also may be court decisions which may supersede the Agreement in your 
relationship with us, including in the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise.   

C.  In any arbitration or mediation involving a franchise purchased in Washington, the 
arbitration or mediation site will be either in the state of Washington, or in a place mutually agreed 
upon at the time of the arbitration or mediation, or as determined by the arbitrator or mediator at 
the time of arbitration or mediation. In addition, if litigation is not precluded by the franchise 
agreement, a franchisee may bring an action or proceeding arising out of or in connection with the 
sale of franchises, or a violation of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, in 
Washington.  

D. A release or waiver of rights executed by a franchisee will not include rights under 
the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act or any rule or order thereunder, except when 
executed pursuant to a negotiated settlement after the agreement is in effect and where the parties 
are represented by independent counsel.  Provisions such as those which unreasonably restrict or 
limit the statute of limitations period for claims under the Act, or rights or remedies under the Act 
such as a right to a trial by jury, may not be enforceable. 

E. Transfer fees are collectible to the extent that they reflect our reasonable estimated 
or actual costs in effecting a transfer.  

F.  Pursuant to RCW 49.62.020, a noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable 
against an employee, including an employee of a franchisee, unless the employee’s earnings from the 
party seeking enforcement, when annualized, exceed $100,000 per year (an amount that will be 
adjusted annually for inflation). In addition, a noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable 
against an independent contractor of a franchisee under RCW 49.62.030 unless the independent 
contractor’s earnings from the party seeking enforcement, when annualized, exceed $250,000 per 
year (an amount that will be adjusted annually for inflation). As a result, any provisions contained in 
the franchise agreement or elsewhere that conflict with these limitations are void and unenforceable 
in Washington. 

G. RCW 49.62.060 prohibits a franchisor from restricting, restraining, or prohibiting a 
franchisee from (i) soliciting or hiring any employee of a franchisee of the same franchisor or (ii) 
soliciting or hiring any employee of the franchisor. As a result, any such provisions contained in the 
franchise agreement or elsewhere are void and unenforceable in Washington. 
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2. Entire Agreement. Section 12 is amended to read as follows:  

 
This Development Agreement and the documents, exhibits and attachments referred to 
herein, if any, constitute the entire, full, and complete agreement between Franchisor and 
Area Developer concerning the subject matter hereof and supersede any and all prior 
agreements, no other representations having induced Area Developer to execute this 
Development Agreement. No amendment, change, or variance from this Development 
Agreement shall be binding on either party unless executed in writing. Nothing in this 
Section 12 is intended as, nor shall it be interpreted as, a disclaimer by Franchisor of any 
representation made in its Franchise Disclosure Document, including any exhibits or 
amendments thereof. 

 
3. Acknowledgments. Sections 15.1, 15.2 and 15.3 are deleted in their entirety.  No statement, 
questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the 
commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any 
applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any 
statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. 
This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the 
franchise. 
 
4. Construction.  In all other respects, the Agreement will be construed and enforced in 
accordance with its terms. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed, and delivered this Washington 
Amendment to the Area Development Agreement on the same date as the Area Development 
Agreement was executed. 

  GOLDEN CORRAL FRANCHISING SYSTEMS, INC. 
   
   
  By:  
  R. Chappell Phillips, Executive Vice President  

Email:  chappell.phillips@goldencorral.net  
   
  AREA DEVELOPER 
   
  By:  
           Name/Title:  ______________ 
           Email: ________________ 
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EXHIBIT O

CURRENT FORM OF GENERAL RELEASE



EXHIBIT O

CURRENT FORM OF GENERAL RELEASE

Here is the form of General Release which, as of the date of this disclosure
document, we are using for transactions referenced in the Franchise Agreement or Area
Development Agreement for which a Franchisee or Area Developer is obligated to sign a
release. We may, in our sole discretion, periodically modify this General Release
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
 

 
The Board of Directors 
Golden Corral Franchising Systems, Inc. 
Raleigh, NC 
 

Opinion 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Golden Corral Franchising Systems, Inc. (the 
“Company”), which comprise the balance sheets as of December 28, 2022 and December 29, 2021, and 
the related statements of earnings and retained earnings and cash flows for the years ended December 
28, 2022, December 29, 2021, and December 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Company as of December 28, 2022 and December 29, 2021, and the results of its operations 
and its cash flows for the years ended December 28, 2022, December 29, 2021, and December 30, 2020, 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.  We are required to be 
independent of the Company and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant 
ethical requirements relating to our audits.  We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern within one year after the date that these financial statements are available to be issued. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes 
our opinion.  Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists.  The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  Misstatements are considered material if there is a 
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a 
reasonable user based on the financial statements. 
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In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we: 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.  Such 
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.  Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters 
that we identified during the audit.  

 

 
 
Raleigh, NC 
March 2, 2023 
 



December 28, 2022 and December 29, 2021

2022 2021
ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash 16,615,097$         12,984,780$         
Accounts receivable, net 1,929,297             1,504,564             
Other assets 1,279,120             150,935                

19,823,514           14,640,279           

Due from parent (Notes 1 and 4) 15,843,861           21,259,954           
Noncurrent receivables, net 307,571                361,265                
Cost of contracts 743,324                861,859                

Total assets 36,718,270$         37,123,357$         

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Current portion of deferred credits, net (Note 2) 608,205$              704,660$              
Accounts payable 6,683,870             10,413,801           
Dividends payable 5,000,000             3,000,000             
Other liabilities 2,409,401             1,265,783             

14,701,476           15,384,244           

Deferred credits (Note 2) 3,855,186             4,167,642             

Stockholder's equity:
Common stock - par value of $.10. Authorized, 10,000

shares; issued and outstanding, 1,000 shares 100                       100                       
Additional paid-in capital 99,900                  99,900                  
Retained earnings 18,061,608           17,471,471           

18,161,608           17,571,471           

Total liabilities and equity 36,718,270$         37,123,357$         

Golden Corral Franchising Systems, Inc.
Balance Sheets

See accompanying notes to financial statements.  3



Statements of Earnings and Retained Earnings
Years Ended December 28, 2022, December 29, 2021 and December 30, 2020 

2022 2021 2020

Revenues:
Franchise fees 927,688$              1,156,556$           2,313,495$           
Franchise royalties 61,165,079           44,452,373           14,890,448           
Franchise advertising 34,395,514           22,675,386           13,503,249           

96,488,281           68,284,315           30,707,192           

Expenses:
Administration (Note 4) 19,421,248           11,621,144           13,752,914           
Legal fees -                            1,500                    10,550                  
Franchise advertising 33,251,896           21,851,627           13,751,416           

52,673,144           33,474,271           27,514,880           

Earnings before income taxes 43,815,137           34,810,044           3,192,312             

Income tax expense (Note 3) 225,000                100,000                29,000                  

Net earnings 43,590,137           34,710,044           3,163,312             

Retained earnings, beginning 17,471,471           16,761,427           16,598,115           

Dividends (43,000,000)          (34,000,000)          (3,000,000)            

Retained earnings, ending 18,061,608$         17,471,471$         16,761,427$         

Golden Corral Franchising Systems, Inc.

See accompanying notes to financial statements.  4



Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 28, 2022, December 29, 2021 and December 30, 2020 

2022 2021 2020

Cash flows from operating activities:
 Net earnings 43,590,137$        34,710,044$        3,163,312$          

 Noncash items included in earnings:
Amortization of costs of contracts 118,535               110,106               70,225                 

 Increase (decrease) in cash due to 
 changes in:

Accounts receivable (424,733)              (843,016)              1,608,250            
Other current assets (1,128,185)           (64,085)                494,454               
Noncurrent receivables 53,694                 (47,290)                (313,975)              
Cost of contracts -                           -                           90,842                 
Deferred credits (408,911)              (965,100)              (1,700,075)           
Accounts payable (3,729,931)           9,785,881            (5,003,477)           
Other current liabilities 1,143,618            823,759               (248,167)              

39,214,224          43,510,299          (1,838,611)           

Cash flows from financing activities:
Dividends paid (41,000,000)         (31,000,000)         (8,000,000)           
(Increase) decrease in due from parent 5,416,093            (1,194,192)           8,780,624            

(35,583,907)         (32,194,192)         780,624               

Net increase (decrease) in cash 3,630,317            11,316,107          (1,057,987)           

Cash, beginning 12,984,780          1,668,673            2,726,660            

Cash, ending 16,615,097$        12,984,780$        1,668,673$          

Supplemental disclosures of cash
flow information:

Cash paid during the year for income taxes 198,621$             65,222$               59,845$               

Supplemental information on noncash 
financing activities:

Dividends declared not paid 5,000,000$          3,000,000$          -$                         

Golden Corral Franchising Systems, Inc.

See accompanying notes to financial statements.  5
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Notes to Financial Statements 
 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The Company, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Golden Corral Corporation, was established for the purpose of selling 
Golden Corral Restaurant franchises. 

The number of franchise restaurants open as of each year end was as follows: 

 2022 358 
 2021 355 
 2020 264 
 
Basis of Presentation 

The financial statements of the Company are presented in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America, which require management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses during the reporting period, and of contingent assets 
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

COVID-19 Pandemic 

In January 2020, the Secretary of Health and Human Services declared the novel strain of coronavirus (“COVID-
19”) a public health emergency. Subsequently in March 2020, the World Health Organization declared COVID-19 
a global pandemic that resulted in a significant reduction in sales at our restaurants due to changes in consumer 
behavior as social distancing practices, dining room closures and other restrictions were mandated or encouraged 
by federal, state and local governments.  
 
In response to COVID-19, federal, state and local governments began to react to the public health crisis by 
encouraging “social distancing” and requiring, in varying degrees, restaurant dine-in limitations and other 
restrictions that largely limited the restaurants of the Company's franchisees take-out and delivery sales. 
Subsequent to imposition, government-imposed dine-in restrictions were relaxed in many of the locations in which 
the Company’s franchisees operate, although dining room capacity was still limited in many restaurants during 
2021. The capacity limitations and personal safety preferences in the reopened dining rooms resulted in reduced 
traffic in franchise restaurants.  
 
Fiscal Year 

The Company uses a thirteen four-week period, fifty-two/fifty-three week fiscal year with the year ending on the 
Wednesday closest to December 31. The years ended December 28, 2022, December 29, 2021 and  
December 30, 2020 each included fifty-two weeks. 

Revenue Recognition 

Franchise Revenue – Each franchised restaurant operates under a separate franchise agreement. Franchise 
revenue consists primarily of royalties, advertising revenue and initial fees. The franchise arrangement between the 
Company as the franchisor and its franchisees as the customer requires the Company to perform various activities 
to support the brand that do not directly transfer goods and services to the franchisee, but instead represent a single 
performance obligation, which is the transfer of the franchise license. The intellectual property subject to the franchise 
license is symbolic intellectual property as it does not have significant standalone functionality, and substantially all 
of the utility is derived from its association with the Company’s past or ongoing activities. The nature of the 
Company’s promise in granting the franchise license is to provide the franchisee with access to the brand’s symbolic 
intellectual property over the term of the license. The services provided by the Company are highly interrelated with 
the franchise license and as such are considered to represent a single performance obligation. 
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The transaction price in a standard franchise arrangement consists of (a) initial franchise fees; (b) continuing 
franchise fees (royalties); and (c) advertising fees. Since the Company considers the licensing of the franchising 
right to be a single performance obligation, no allocation of the transaction price is required. 

The Company recognizes the primary components of the transaction price as follows: 

 Upfront franchise fees are recognized as revenue ratably on a straight-line basis over the term of 
the franchise agreement commencing when the restaurant opens. 

 The Company is entitled to royalties and advertising fees based on a percentage of the franchisees’ 
sales. Royalty and advertising revenue are recognized when the franchisees’ sales are recognized 
and collection is probable. 

The Company considers itself to be primarily responsible for fulfilling the promise to provide all of the services 
specified in the franchise agreement, including advertising activities, which are not considered to be a separately 
distinct performance obligation in the context of providing the right to the symbolic intellectual property. Accordingly, 
revenues for advertising services are recognized by the Company when related revenue is received by its 
franchisees. These revenues are presented as franchise advertising revenues and expenses incurred to provide 
these services are presented as advertising expense in the accompanying statements of earnings and retained 
earnings. 

Cost of Contracts – The Company often incurs sales commissions during the process of opening new franchise 
restaurants. Once the restaurant opens, the related costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of the 
franchise agreement. Amortization was approximately $119,000, $110,000 and $70,000 in 2022, 2021 and 2020, 
respectively. Commissions that were paid relative to a development contract that terminates without the opening of 
a franchise restaurant are expensed at the time of termination. 

Development Fees 

Development fees represent amounts collected from certain franchisees to reserve the right to develop particular 
geographic markets within a time frame specified in their development agreements. These amounts are applied 
against the franchise fee due upon signing of individual franchise agreements. 

Royalty Fees  

Royalty fees accrue based on a percentage of franchisee sales when collectability of the fee is reasonably assured. 
Costs relating to royalty fees are expensed as incurred. 

Income Taxes 

The Company files a consolidated S corporation federal income tax return with Investors Management Corporation, 
Golden Corral Corporation’s parent. Investors Management Corporation elected S corporation status effective 
December 30, 2010. Earnings and losses after that date are included in the personal income tax returns of the 
stockholders. The Company may incur continuing income tax obligations in certain states where the Company is 
required to file and pay corporate taxes. 

Tax positions must meet a recognition threshold of more-likely-than-not in order for the benefit of those tax positions 
to be recognized in the Company’s financial statements. See Note 3 for disclosure of unrecognized tax benefits. 
Interest and penalties related to income tax assessments, if any, are reflected in income tax expense of the 
accompanying statements of earnings and retained earnings. 

Due From Parent  

Due from Parent represents non-interest bearing advances made to Golden Corral Corporation plus or minus net 
intercompany charges and credits from Golden Corral Corporation. 
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Accounts Receivable 

Accounts receivable consist primarily of amounts due from franchisees, net of allowance for uncollectible amounts, 
if any. The allowance for uncollectible amounts is based on management’s evaluation of specific receivables. No 
allowance for uncollectible amounts was recorded as of December 28, 2022 and December 29, 2021. 

Recent Pronouncements 

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-13, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement 
of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments (“ASU 2016-13”), which requires the application of a current expected 
credit loss (“CECL”) impairment model to financial assets measured at amortized cost, including trade accounts 
receivable and held-to-maturity debt securities. Under the CECL model, lifetime expected credit losses on such 
financial assets are measured and recognized at each reporting date based on historical, current, and forecasted 
information. Furthermore, the CECL model requires financial assets with similar risk characteristics to be analyzed 
on a collective basis.  ASU 2016-13, as amended, is effective for the Company in fiscal years beginning after 
December 15, 2022 with early adoption permitted.  The Company is evaluating the impact of adoption on its financial 
statements, including accounting policies, processes and systems. 
 
Subsequent Events  

The Company evaluated the effect subsequent events would have on the financial statements through March 2, 
2023, which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued. 

 Deferred Credits 

Deferred credits consist of the following: 

  2022   2021  
 
Deferred franchise fees $ 3,648,391 $ 4,007,302 
Deferred development fees  815,000  865,000 
 
    $ 4,463,391 $ 4,872,302 

 Income Taxes 

In conjunction with the Company’s tax status as an S corporation, substantially all taxable income is allocated to the 
stockholders of the Company. The Company incurs income tax expense only in certain states that require the 
Company to file and pay corporate taxes. 

The provision for state income tax expense was $225,000 in 2022, $100,000 in 2021, and $29,000 in 2020. 

The Company has determined that it does not have any material unrecognized tax benefits or obligations as of 
December 28, 2022 and December 29, 2021. 

The federal income tax returns for the years on or after 2019 remain subject to examination. The years that the 
various state income tax returns remain subject to examination will vary by state. 
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 Related Party Transactions 

Golden Corral Corporation and affiliates provide administrative services to the Company. The amount charged to 
expense for these services was $19,289,007, $11,485,804 and $13,214,421 for the years ended December 28, 
2022, December 29, 2021 and December 30, 2020, respectively. These costs include amounts related to deferred 
compensation plans offered by Golden Corral Corporation. GC Development Corp., a wholly owned subsidiary of 
Golden Corral Corporation, provides certain services to the Company, which can include demographic services, 
real estate services and construction coordination and advice. In addition to services provided on a specific charge 
basis, the Company reimburses Golden Corral Corporation for general services rendered. 



State Effective Dates

STATE EFFECTIVE DATE

Pending

Pending

Pending

Pending

Pending

Pending

Pending

Pending

Pending



RECEIPT

Your copy



RECEIPT

Copy for Golden Corral


